aroondah

- City Council

Councillor
(as addressed)

A Special Council Meeting, will be held on Monday 12 October 2020, commencing at 6.00pm,
for the sole purpose of considering the Annual Report 2020/21, and your presence is
requested.

Yours faithfully

Steve Kozlowski
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Note:

Due to COVID-19 this is a virtual meeting of Council and is being streamed live on the
internet and recorded. This meeting of Council can be viewed on Council’s website
via
http://webcast.maroondah.vic.gov.au/video.php

The Public Gallery is currently closed to the Public.

City Offices 179 Maroondah Highway, Ringwood, 3134
Postal PO Box 156, Ringwood 3134

DX 38068, Ringwood
Telephone 1300 88 22 33

Translating and Interpreting Service (TIS): 131 450
National Relay Service (NRS): 133 677

Facsimile (03) 9298 4345
Email maroondah@maroondah.vic.gov.au
Web www.maroondabh.vic.gov.au

Service Centres | Croydon: Civic Square
REALM: 179 Maroondah Hwy, Ringwood
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PURPOSE

To formally consider the Annual Report 2019/20 pursuant to the Local Government Act 1989
(the Act 1989) and the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act 2020) and associated regulations.

CARETAKER STATEMENT

The recommended decision is not a ‘Prohibited Decision’, as defined in section 69(2) of the
Local Government Act 2020, or a ‘Significant Decision’ within the meaning of clause 8 of the
Election Period Policy.

STRATEGIC / POLICY ISSUES

The following directions contained in Maroondah 2040: Our Future Together and the Council
Plan 2017-2021 (Year 4: 2020-2021) provide the strategic framework that underpins the
purpose of this report.

Outcome Area: A well governed and empowered community

Our Vision: In 2040, Maroondah will be a vibrant and diverse city with a healthy and active
community living in green leafy neighbourhoods which are connected to thriving and
accessible activity centres contributing to a prosperous economy within a safe, inclusive and
sustainable environment.

Key Directions 2020 — 2021:

8.1 Provide community inspired governance that is transparent, accessible, inclusive and
accountable.

8.2 Ensure responsible and sustainable management of Maroondah’s resources, assets,
infrastructure and natural environment

Priority Action 2020-2021:

Not Applicable
BACKGROUND

Under Section 131 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act 1989), Council is required to
prepare and submit an Annual Report to the Minister for Local Government within three
months of the end of each financial year. The 2019/20 Annual Report was submitted to the
Minister on 22 September 2020.

Section 134 of the Act 1989 also requires Council to hold a meeting to consider the report
within one month of submission to the Minister. This meeting is required to be an open meeting
and at least 14 days’ notice must be given. Such notice was given in The Age newspaper on
23 September 2020.

ISSUE / DISCUSSION

Council endorsed the Annual Report 2019/20 for submission to the Minister at its meeting held
on 21 September 2020 and a copy of the report was subsequently forwarded to the Minister
for Local Government on 22 September 2020.
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The necessary statutory advertising has been undertaken and copies of the report have been
made available from Council Service Centres and Council’'s website.

Key features of the Annual Report as required by section 131 of the Act 1989 include the
following:

. A report of Council’s operations during the financial year

. Audited financial statements for the financial year

. Performance Statement prepared under Section 132

. Report on the Performance Statement prepared under Section 133

. Inclusion of Council results relating to the Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework for the 2019/20 financial year

The report demonstrates Council’'s ongoing commitment to the Maroondah community and
highlights a range of achievements. During 2019/20, Council:

o Completed construction of the $4.25m HE Parker Sporting Pavilion in Heathmont

° Undertook a strategic review of golf in Maroondah, including a new Maroondah Golf
Strategy

o Delivered the Be Kind Maroondah campaign

° Promoted and expanded membership of the BizHub Co-Working Space at Realm, and
provided support to small businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic

. Worked in partnership to implement the Bayswater Business Precinct Strategy, including
launch of the BBP Connect social platform and BBP Jobs platform

o Adopted a new Arts and Cultural Development Strategy 2020-2025
o Hosted Karralyka performances online during the COVID-19 pandemic
° Adopted the Maroondah Vegetation Strategy 2020-2030

. Undertook renewal works on the Dandenong Creek shared trail and constructed 3.49
kilometres of new footpaths

. Commenced the design of multi-level carparks in Croydon, Ringwood, Heathmont and
at Heatherdale Station

. Completed the Lincoln Road upgrade in Croydon

. Implemented the new Ringwood Activity Centre Masterplan into planning processes
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° Progressed the Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct Masterplan
. Worked in partnership to implement the Tarralla Creek Connects project
° Commenced development of a Children and Families Strategy

° Progressed the implementation of additional female changing facilities, constructing new
facilities at HE Parker Pavilion in Heathmont and Quambee Pavilion in Warranwood

° Provided support for older people, vulnerable residents and linguistically and culturally
diverse groups during COVID-19

. Reviewed Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’
° Implemented a COVID-19 relief and recovery response framework

. Implemented the new Local Government Act 2020
FINANCIAL / ECONOMIC ISSUES

Not Applicable

ENVIRONMENTAL / AMENITY ISSUES

Not Applicable

SOCIAL / COMMUNITY ISSUES

Not Applicable

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

Pursuant to Section 131 of the Act 1989:

° Following the submission of the Annual Report to the Minister, Council must give public
notice that the Annual Report has been prepared and can be inspected at Council
Offices

o Section 134 of the Act 1989 also requires Council to hold a meeting to consider the
report within one month of submission to the Minister. This meeting is required to be an
open meeting and at least 14 days’ notice of the meeting must be given.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act 1989, such public notice was published in The
Age newspaper on 23 September 2020.

Copies of the endorsed Annual Report were also made available for inspection on Council’s
website.

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 5 12 OCTOBER 2020



DIRECTOR STRATEGY & COMMUNITY — PHIL TURNER

FORMAL CONSIDERATION OF ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 ITEM 1
Cont’'d

CONCLUSION

The Annual Report 2019/20 confirms that Council has made significant advances towards
achieving the community aspirations relating to community service delivery, environmental
enhancement, economic development, infrastructure development and civic administration
and leadership, in addition to its statutory requirements under Section 131 of the Act 1989.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Maroondah City Council Annual Report 2019-20
CONFIDENTIALITY
Not Applicable
RECOMMENDATION

THAT COUNCIL:

1. FORMALLY ENDORSES THE MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT
2019/20

2. NOTES THAT THE RELEVANT STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET
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Acknowledgment of Country

We, in the spirit of Reconciliation, acknowledge the Traditional
Custodians of the land now known as the City of Maroondah, where
Indigenous Australians have performed age old ceremonies. We
acknowledge and respect their unique ability to care for Country and
their deep spiritual connection to it. We pay our respects to their
Elders, past, present and emerging.
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Welcome to the Maroondah City
Annual Report 2019/20

The Annual Report provides a record of the
achievements, performance and financial
management of Maroondah City Council for the
2019/20 financial year in delivering a wide range of

services to its community.

Council is committed to transparent reporting
and accountability to the community. This Annual
Report is a key tool used to advise the Maroondah
community of Council’s performance during the
financial year against the Council Plan 2017-2021
(Year 3: 2019/20) and Annual Budget 2019/20.

The Local Government Act 1989 states that all
Victorian Councils must prepare an annual financial
year report and submit it to the Minister for Local
Government by 30 September each year.

Requirements include a report of Council’s
operations, audited standard statements,
audited financial statements and report on the
performance statement during the financial year.

The Audit and Risk Advisory Committee reviewed
these financial statements at its meeting on 12
August 2020, and Council endorsed the financial
report in principle at the Council meeting on 17
August 2020. The Standard and Performance
Statements were certified by the Principal
Accounting Officer (Manager Finance and
Governance), the Chief Executive Officer and two
nominated Councillors. The Victorian Auditor
General’s office has certified the Performance
Statement and the Financial Report including the
Standard Statements.

How to use this Annual Report

The 2019/20 Annual Report is divided into seven sections:

Our Highlights

Our City

Our Council

Our Performance

Corporate
Governance

Statutory
Information

Financial Report

Provides reflections from the Mayor and CEO and outlines key capital works
and highlights from 2019/20.

Profiles the City of Maroondah, outlines our vision and details Council’s
integrated planning framework.

Provides details of our Councillors, Wards and the Council organisation.

Identifies 2019/20 achievements relating to Council’s eight outcome areas
outlined in the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20). Each outcome
area includes information on achievements, challenges, future directions,
interesting facts and statistics, as well as Council’s performance against the
commitments identified in the Council Plan 2017-2021.

Reports on governance procedures and risk management.

Provides information linked to statutory requirements including information
on Best Value reporting, the Victorian Local Government performance
indicators and the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework.

Includes detailed financial statements which fulfil Council’s reporting
requirements.
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Message from the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer

We are pleased to present the 2019/20 Maroondah
City Council Annual Report to the Maroondah
community and to the Minister for Local
Government.

While the Annual Report reflects on Council’s
activities during 2019/20, we continue to have

our sights firmly set on the future. We have
successfully completed the third year of the four
year Council Plan and delivered the Council Plan
2017-2021 to reflect Year 4 initiatives, based on the
community directions in Maroondah 2040 ‘Our
future together’, and feedback received from a
range of community consultation activities.

Other strategic and long-term planning has taken
place to guide the development of a new Children
and Families Strategy; a new Youth Strategy; Arts
and Cultural Development Strategy; Golf Strategy;
and a new Liveability and Wellbeing Strategy,
which will provide longer-term direction and the
key priorities to improve the health and wellbeing
of the Maroondah community.

We have continued to plan for the future of our
two key Activity Centres, with a review of the
Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC)
Masterplan and significant work in the Croydon
Activity Centre.

The Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre
Masterplan 2018 was adopted by Council in
November 2018 replacing the 2004 Ringwood
Transit City Masterplan. Council has prepared
Amendment C130 to implement the objectives and
strategies of the Ringwood MAC Masterplan 2018.
The process for inclusion of C130 in the Maroondah
Planning Scheme progressed over the past 12
months, with community consultation during
February to April 2020 and a Planning Panel
hearing scheduled for July.

Council has continued to work with key
stakeholders, user groups, and the community
on the development of the Croydon Community
Wellbeing Precinct Masterplan. This long term
project will bring together a range of community
services, programs and activities for people of all
ages and abilities within a parkland setting in the
Croydon Activity Centre.

Council continued its advocacy to the Victorian
Government and the Australian Government

to seek funding opportunities for a range

of significant projects that will benefit the
Maroondah community. Projects include $60
million for carparks at four of our railway stations,
road improvements for Dorset Road ($50 million)
and Canterbury Road ($24.5 million), and funding
for sporting and community facilities.

Council continues to lead the way in its service
delivery and focus has been on ensuring vulnerable
people within the community continue receiving
the services they require. Over the last few

years, the number of awards and recognition for
excellence received by Council is testament to

the service innovations and quality delivered by
our high performing organisation on behalf of the
Maroondah community. Council will continue to
seek best practice service delivery and recognition
while ensuring prudent financial management and
ongoing investment in Council’'s employees to
ensure they have the skills, knowledge and tools to
meet the needs of the Maroondah community.

Council’s 2019/20 Budget and Long Term Financial
Strategy (LTFS) continued to be based on sound
financial management, as well as an understanding
of the rising cost of living facing ratepayers. The
LTFS outlines Council’s projected financial position
for the next 10 years and provides a guide to the
community, Council and management in their
analysis of options and decision-making about the
future directions and operations of Council.
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The LTFS demonstrates our long term financial
sustainability and ensures we can continue to
invest in community facilities and services, and not
take on new debt, while operating within the rate
cap environment. The Local Government (Fair Go
Rates) Act was passed by the Victorian Parliament
in November 2015. The Act introduced a rate cap
based on CPI plus or minus any adjustment and
came into effect on 1 July 2016. Maroondah City
Council complied with the Victorian Government’s
2019/20 rate cap of 2.5 per cent over the average
property rate of Council.

The COVID-19 pandemic was declared on March

11, with a profound impact on our community.
Council has continued to provide the majority of its
services during the various stages of the pandemic
and the government restrictions between March
and June 2020. However, the restrictions required
the closure of our leisure facilities, including
Karralyka, Aquanation, Aquahub, our stadiums

and golf courses, resulting in a loss of $10 million
in user fees and a redirection of in excess of $5
million of expenditure to COVID-19 response in the
2019/20 year.

While we continue to manage the COVID-19
impacts, we are very proud of the work that has
been achieved by the organisation, in partnership
with the Councillors and the community. The
significant achievements of the past year should
be celebrated, and are detailed throughout this
report. We commend it as a record of the extent
of what has been accomplished to ensure our City,
and the Maroondah community, continues to be
active, prosperous, vibrant, sustainable, accessible,
thriving, inclusive and empowered.

Key highlights for
annual report 2019/20

e Karralyka celebrated 40 years of hosting arts
and cultural events with a birthday event
held on the outdoor lawn on 23 February
2020. Residents enjoyed guest appearances,
entertainment, music, food trucks and free
cake. Entertainment was provided on the
main stage by MC Dave O’Neil, ABC’s Lah
Lah’s Big Live Band, Chart Topping 80’s Band,
and The Code One band. Children enjoyed
a magic fairy show, a reptile experience,
free face painting, interactive games,
rides and music for the whole family.

* New public art was installed in November
2019 in Town Park, Croydon. lan
Bracegirdle’s Spotted Marsh Frog features
the Spotted Marsh Frog, a species found
in the nearby Tarralla Creek wetlands.
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The HE Parker Sporting Pavilion was in the
final stages of construction as we moved
towards the end of June. The new $4.25 million
building will include four female-friendly
change rooms to cater for growing female
involvement in grassroots sport, as well as a
large multipurpose room and amenities. Once
completed, the facility will accommodate the
Heathmont Cricket Club, Heathmont Football
Club and Sport and Life Training (SALT).

Maroondah has participated in the Councils
and Emergencies Project, a multi-year,

three phased project that aims to enhance

the emergency management capability

and capacity of local governments to meet
their obligations in the management of
emergencies. As part of this project, the
Municipal Emergency Management Plan 2020-
2023 was adopted by Council in March 2020.

Council continued its partnership with
Together for Equality and Respect (TFER) in
its work towards preventing violence against
women in Maroondah. The 16 Days of Activism
campaign ran during November 2019, and in

March 2020, Council delivered a Women’s
Safety Online event at Realm presented by
the Office of the eSafety Commissioner.

In response to an increased demand for support
services due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Maternal and Child Health Hotline offered a
confidential, 24-hour information and advice
service to vulnerable families regarding
concerns about child health as well as the
health of parents. Maternal and Child Health
‘home’ visits, Breastfeeding support, Early
Parenting Program, First Time Parents Group,
Supported Playgroup Program continued
during restrictions via video, phone or
Facebook. A series of online videos were
also produced to support parents with
sleeping, feeding and parenting support.

Maroondah-first pilot program Good Food
For Me is helping to teach older residents
important yet simple, practical ways on how
to live with better health through better
nutrition. The pilot program was launched in
February 2020 following the success of the
Good Food For Me seminar held in early 2019.

We continue to work in partnership with
Knox and Yarra Ranges Councils to develop
an overarching strategic framework for the
revitalisation of the Bayswater Business
Precinct (BBP) to attract future investment,
maximise business performance and generate
employment growth for the region.





Council has broadened its support offerings

to Maroondah’s small business community by
strengthening its partnerships with the Victorian
Chamber of Commerce and Industry and the
Australian Small Business Advisory Service
Digital Solutions to provide access to a broader
range of workshops and development programs
for our small to medium enterprises (SMEs).

Through the annual Student Wellbeing Action
Team (SWAT) program, Council worked

with a select group of Year 10 students from
Maroondah schools who were keen to take
their leadership to the next level. SWAT
supports young people to uncover their
strengths and use their new skills to lead

a wellbeing project in their own school.

Council’s Kindergarten Expo held in March
2020 was again highly successful with

all Maroondah kindergartens present

to promote their centre and discuss
timetables, learning and their programs.

Following a review of the Arts and Cultural
Development Strategy 2014-2018 the
timeframe for the next Strategy was adjusted
to the 2020-2025 period. During 2019/20,
community and stakeholder consultation
was undertaken resulting in the adoption

of the Arts and Cultural Development
Strategy 2020-2025 in March 2020.

The FReeZA team have delivered a range of
events during 2019/20 including a ‘metal’ show
at EV’s Youth Centre and a skate competition
at Y Space in Croydon. During COVID-19
restrictions a successful online event involved
an Instagram livestream. The annual Youth
Week activities, held in May, were adapted
with online events held for the Pure Talent art
exhibition and the annual Youth Awards.

The Vegetation Review continued during
2019/20 resulting in the adoption of the
Maroondah Vegetation Strategy on 16
March 2020. Implementation of the actions
within the Strategy, including a revision of
planning controls within the Maroondah
Planning Scheme is now underway.

Major desilting and waterbody reinstatement
works were completed at a number of
locations, including at Settlers Orchard
Reserve in Croydon Hills, the Ringwood Lake
waterbody and pondage system, The Dell
reserve and at The Range estate wetlands.

Stage one works for the upgrade of
Lincoln Road in Croydon, between Hull
Road and Dornoch Court, have been
completed, with the second stage, from
Dornoch Court to Dorset Road, expected
to be completed in August 2020.

The COVID-19 pandemic significantly impacted
the Maroondah community in 2020 Council
has put in place a temporary change to the
organisational structure to implement a
coordinated relief and recovery framework.
The framework aims to support a community
led recovery through: the provision of up-to
date community information and engagement;
coordination of personal support; referrals

for emergency shelter, food, material aid

relief and counselling; recovery initiatives that
build on community strengths and needs;
monitoring of the social and economic impacts
of COVID-19; support for local business

and economic activity; and ensuring the
continuation of Council service delivery.

The new Local Government Act 2020 is being
implemented in four transitional stages, during
which time it will co-exist with many of the
provisions within the former Local Government
Act 71989, up until 1 July 2021. The first phase

of reforms took effect on 6 April 2020, which
put in place governance principles that provide
the foundation framework for the new Act.

Council continues to provide information
across a range of channels and platforms,
both traditional and digital. Multimedia and
video output increased during 2020, and

a fortnightly eNewsletter was launched in
January, providing news on Councils services,
activities and events. During COVID-19 this
eNewsletter provided important health and
support information to our community, which
was supplemented with a number of traditional
bulletins sent directly to our residents.
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Council awards and recognition

Maroondah City Council is proud to be recognised for its commitment to leadership and service
excellence. A selection of the honours received during 2019/20 are highlighted below:

2019 Victorian Early Years Award - Outer East
Early Start Kindergarten - Finalist

This program is an initiative from the Childhood
Out of Home Care Working Group of which Council
is a partner. The program was established under
the auspice of the Brighter Futures Children and
Youth Area Partnership. The strategic aim of the
partnership is to increase the participation and
educational outcomes for preschool aged children
in Out of Home Care, with the scope broadened to
include all 3-year old children who have ever been
engaged in the Child Protection system.

2019 Active Ageing and Wellbeing Awards -
Buried in Treasures - Winner

Winning the Outstanding Program or Project
(non-grant based), the Buried in Treasures
program assists people with hoarding behaviours
and is run in partnership between Council and
Uniting Care. The 16-week program is a self-help,
small group which supports people with hoarding
and over-acquiring behaviours to make a change.
Hoarding behaviour is the persistent accumulation
of, and lack of ability to relinquish, large numbers
of objects or living animals, resulting in

extreme clutter.

2019 LGPro Corporate Planners Award -
Maroondah Youth Strategy - High Commendation
and Delegates Award

Maroondah City Council’s Youth Strategy has
catalysed an evidence-based transformation of
Council’s work with, and for, young people,
whilst also leading a shift in focus towards raising
youth wellbeing across the entire community.
Through innovative partnerships with University
of Melbourne and the Department of Education,
Maroondah’s Youth Services team have adopted
the science of positive psychology and wellbeing
to facilitate a whole of system change that has
mobilised more than 1000 local professionals
towards our common vision that young people
are flourishing as part of a healthy and thriving
community.

2020 National Awards for Local Government -
Ringwood Arts Precinct - Finalist

The Arts Animates category recognises the
creation of vibrant and cohesive communities
through the Arts. The Ringwood Arts Precinct is
a highly successful project which has transformed
the centre of the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity
Centre to create a place to experience and
participate in the arts as part of everyday life.
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2020 MAV Technology Awards for Excellence -
Implementing Desktop as a Service - Finalist
Council was keen to leverage technology to act

as a force multiplier, increasing its service delivery
capacity, responsiveness and efficiency whilst also
increasing its resilience to service interruptions and
enabling greater business continuity capabilities.
This project saw the delivery of Desktop as a
Service creating a mobilised workforce, able to
work from any location or field site.

2020 Australian Workplace Health & Safety
Awards - Ergonomic desk setup video - Finalist
Council developed and produced an instructional
video and support communications for the
organisation to assist employees with egonomic
desk and chair set up in the workplace. This activity
resulted in improved wellbeing for employees and
was well utilised by our employees working from
home during the COVID restrictions.

2020 PLA Awards - Community Facility of the
Year - Maroondah Nets - Finalist

Construction of the HE Parker multi-sports
complex (Maroondah Nets) commenced in
March 2018 and was opened to the community in
April 2019. The new facility was formally named
Maroondah Nets, which identifies the location

of the facility, as well as referencing the nets
that are used by each of the sports that use the
facility in netball, volleyball, badminton and table
tennis. Community consultation was key to the
development of the project due to the unique
bushland nature of HE Parker Reserve.

2020 ALGWA Victoria Bursary - Winner

The Annual Bursary Award is aimed at encouraging
and assisting women in Local Government to
further their education in a field directly related

to their role. Council’'s Coordinator Local Laws

was the Bursary recipient and will use the Bursary
towards completing their current Law degree.

2020 AILA National Landscape Architecture
Awards - Croydon Town Square - Finalist
Council’'s new Croydon Town Square improves
the sense of character, arrival experience and
functionality of this gateway precinct in the heart
of Croydon. For commuters, weekly shoppers,
lunch goers, or traders on their coffee break,

the Square offers respite and a slice of solitude
amongst the urban hum, with a generous number
of seats and a comfortably sloped expanse of
grass. Included in the development was a new
Changing Places facility, made possible through
funding from the Victoria Government. Each
component of the Square works to create a public
space that welcomes visitors and locals alike.





Maroondah 2020
Australia Day awards

Maroondah’s Citizen of the Year was awarded to
Averil Embury for her significant contribution to

the Australian Red Cross ‘Trauma Teddies’ program.

Trauma Teddies are hand knitted toys given to
children and adults who are affected by some form
of disruption to their normal lives, which causes
them anxiety and panic.

Averil began by knitting skins (the two sides of
the teddy) but soon extended her involvement by
offering to finish the teddies by sewing them up,
sewing on the Australian Red Cross label, filling
them and giving the teddy life by adding eyes,
ears, neck and a smile of love.

Averil has been the main ‘finisher’ for the area for
many years, finishing an average of 100 per month.
Averil has also been volunteering at Olivet for the
past 20 years where she assists the mending of
pillowcases, food protectors, turning old sheets
into laundry skip covers and the list goes on;
nothing is too much for Averil.

Young Citizen of the Year was awarded to

Ben Voogd for his time assisting Ringwood

Little Athletics, Little Athletics Victoria and Little
Athletics Junior Development Coaching Squads.
Ben is a team member of Ringwood Seniors
where his contribution to set up and assist is
acknowledged by his peers and Club Committee.
Ben has been coaching Junior Athletics to state
titles over the past four years. In addition to
coaching, Ben is a National and State title holder,
representing Australia and achieving Gold in

the Oceania Championships. He has also broken
Meet Records, won Australian Championships
representing Victoria and won Victorian
Championships representing Ringwood.

The Community Event of the Year was awarded
to the Winter Shelter, a Maroondah churches
and community response to local homelessness.
It is the mission of Winter Shelter to provide not
only shelter but food and honour for people who
need comfort and support. Winter Shelter works
together with local Christian churches to provide
the best support to those without anywhere to
stay in Maroondah.

Community endorsement

Council’s overall community satisfaction results
provided good news with the Maroondah
community continuing to rate Council’s overall
performance at a level significantly higher than
the state-wide average. This is evidence of the
high standard of work across all areas of Council,
including our strategic leadership.

Council’'s 2020 results are generally slightly lower
when compared to results averaged out over the
past five years. However, Council continues to
perform well in comparison to state-wide average
results. It is important to note that the survey
period coincided with the emergence of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Council’s overall performance is rated in line with
the average rating for councils in the Metropolitan
group and is rated statistically significantly higher
than the state-wide average for councils (index
scores of 66 and 58 respectively).

Key highlights of the 2020 survey include:

* the rating for ‘Councils overall performance’
(65) is seven points higher compared
to the state-wide average (58);

* the rating for ‘overall direction of Council’
(56) is five points higher compared
to the state-wide average (51);

» the rating for ‘making decisions in the interest
of the community’ (58) is five points higher
compared to the state-wide average (53); and

e the rating for ‘business and community
development and tourism’ (63) is four points

higher compared to the state-wide average (59).

This Victorian Government initiated survey is just
one of a range of tools used to measure Council’s
progress towards the vision and outcomes
highlighted in Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future
together’ and Council’s mission. The survey is
one of the processes by which Council receives
important community feedback to ensure its
activities are well targeted, performing efficiently
and are relevant to the community.

Council continues its commitment to continuous
improvement and effective community
consultation and encourages active involvement
and participation to ensure we continue to be
responsive to the needs of the community.

s
L

Cr Mike Symon
Mayor

Steve KozlowskKi
CEO
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Our city

The City of Maroondah covers a land area of
61.4 square kilometres in Melbourne’s outer east,
22 kilometres from the Central Business District.
The area is a substantially developed peri-urban
residential municipality, with an estimated
population of 118,558 residents and 46,324
households with an average of 2.56 people per
household.

It includes the suburbs of Bayswater North,
Croydon, Croydon Hills, Croydon North, Croydon
South, Heathmont, Kilsyth South, Ringwood,

Ringwood East, Ringwood North and Warranwood.

The city also includes small sections of Kilsyth,
Park Orchards, Vermont and Wonga Park.

With little remaining land available for greenfield
residential development, future population growth
will be mainly stimulated by housing consolidation
and medium density development.

Maroondah has the strategic advantage of being
located at the north-eastern junction of the
Eastern Freeway - EastLink corridor. There are two
train lines and a large number of bus routes linking
the City with other regions. Our sustainable
transport links continue to expand, with on-road
cycling paths and 38km of shared trails, including
the Mullum Mullum Creek Trail, the EastLink Trail,
Taralla Creek Trail and the Dandenong Creek Trail.

T~

Calder Hwy Hume Hwy
Maroondah Hwy
Western Hwy Eastern Fwy.
EastLink
Princes Fwy
Princes Hwy
Nepean Hwy

Sth Gippsland Hwy

Location of the City of Maroondah

Aerial view of Aquanation, looking south and Ringwood multipurpose pavilion and soccer pitch, located at Jubilee Park
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Our history

The first settlers to the area prior to European
colonisation were the Indigenous Australians of the
Kulin nation approximately 40,000 years ago.

European settlers arrived in the 1830s and
commenced using the land for grazing cattle. The
original Ringwood village emerged in the mid to
late 19th century, following the initial sale of land
and the local proliferation of grazing, fruit growing,
antimony mining and brick making activities.

The first constructed road through the area led to
Mount Dandenong and was known as Sawmill
Road, then Oxford Road, then finally given its
current name of Mount Dandenong Road. The area
became better known as it was used by bullock
teams heading for the gold fields in Woods Point
and the Great Dividing Range.

The railway line from Melbourne commenced its
eastward development in 1861 extending to
Lilydale through Ringwood and Croydon in
December 1882. This resulted in a consolidation of
township facilities, including the provision of local
churches, banks and schools to accommodate

a growing population. The line to Ferntree Gully
followed soon afterwards.

The proclamation in 1924 of the Borough of
Ringwood coincided with the electrification of the
railway line, encouraging township development
and subdivision. Electric trains were in service
between Ringwood and Croydon in 1924 and were
extended to Lilydale in 1925.

During its early days, Croydon was part of the
Shire of Lillydale’s South-West Riding. Unlike some
neighbouring towns, it had not been planned and
proclaimed a town by the Department of Crown
Lands and Survey, but resulted from the private
subdivision of crown land in the Parishes of
Warrandyte, Mooroolbark and Ringwood.
Severance of Croydon from Lillydale Shire was
requested in 1957 since it was the most densely
populated part of the Shire. The Shire of Croydon
was declared in 1961.

Considerable suburban expansion during the
post-war period gave rise to the declaration of the
City of Ringwood in 1960 and formal recognition
as part of the broader metropolitan region.
Eastland was established in 1967 as a major ‘new
format’ retail centre. In 1971, the City of Croydon
was declared, reflecting increased residential
development and population growth in this area.

Maroondah City Council was formed on

15 December 1994 by the amalgamation of the
former Cities of Croydon and Ringwood, and parts
of the former Shire of Lillydale and the former City
of Doncaster and Templestowe. The term
‘Maroondah’ is named after an aboriginal word
meaning ’leaf’ which symbolises the green
environment of the city.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
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Our community

Maroondah has an estimated population of 118,558
residents and 46,324 households with a similar age
structure to the State’s average.

Compared with metropolitan Melbourne,
Maroondah has a slightly higher proportion of
residents aged 50 and over and a lower proportion
of residents aged between 18 to 35 years.

According to the 2016 census, cultural diversity
in Maroondah continues to increase with 23.1%
of people born overseas. In the 2019 calendar
year, there were 934 migrants who settled in
Maroondah.

There is a strong sense of community
participation within Maroondah embodied by a
large number of committed volunteers. More than
two thirds of parents in Maroondah are actively
involved in their local schools and one third of
Maroondah’s residents are members of organised
community groups.

§ L T e, [

Our environment

Maroondah has 44 bushland reserves that offer
residents and visitors the enjoyment of wildflowers,
wildlife, bush walks and wetlands. There are more
than 750,000 trees (mostly native species) in parks
and reserves providing shade and shelter, helping
to control water runoff, evaporation and erosion
and providing a home for wildlife.

There are many areas of recreational open

space in Maroondah. The city has 557 parks and
reserves with 51 sports ovals. Open space areas
include two golf courses, 129 public playgrounds,
three skate areas, and five outdoor exercise
equipment locations. Mobility and connectiveness
is supported by 38kms of shared trails associated
with these open space areas.

Maroondah’s residents and businesses are great
recyclers: over 26,520.73 tonnes of recycling and
green waste was diverted from landfill in 2019/20.
Maroondah continues to have a high diversion rate
of waste from landfill.

N
=

Hundreds of people came to the Jazz in the Park event at Ringwood Lake Park
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Our health

Maroondah residents report a good level of life satisfaction, consistent with ratings across both the
Eastern Metropolitan Region (EMR) and Victoria. Maroondah is below both the Victorian and Greater
Melbourne rates in a number of avoidable mortality fields. The self-reported health of Maroondah
residents is higher for men in comparison with the eastern region and Victoria, but lower for women.

Self-reported health results from Victorian Population Health Survey (DHHS 2017):

Self reported health

Excellent/Very Good

% Women Men
Maroondah 39.9 55.8
Eastern Region 42.9 439
Victoria 41.5 41.8

Life satisfaction

Good Fair/Poor

Women Men Women Men
44.4 31.6 15.7 12.6
37.3 377 19.6 18.1
37.2 379 20.8 19.7

Low/Medium
% Women Men
Maroondah 21.7 14.4
Eastern Region 18.6 20.6
Victoria 201 20.8

High Very High

Women Men Women Men
51.2 541 26.4 3.4
53.5 53.4 26.5 25.2
50.8 51.2 27.4 26.6

Source: https.,/www?2.health.vic.gov.au/public-health/population-health-systems/health-status-of-victorians/survey-data-and-
reports/victorian-population-health-survey/victorian-population-health-survey-2017

Our economy

Over 9700 businesses operate within the city with over 97 percent being small business, employing
less than 20 people. The majority of businesses are in the construction, property and business services,
finance and insurance, retail trade and manufacturing sectors.

The key industries in terms of output continue to
be manufacturing and construction, representing
48 percent of the total $14.5 billion output and
25 percent of the 44,100 local jobs. These
industries are also the key drivers of the local
economy and employment, followed closely by
retail and health care.

Maroondah is well positioned to take advantage
of Victoria’s future growth. Ringwood is a
Metropolitan Activity Centre and Croydon a key
activity centre meaning both provide commercial
and retail opportunities together with increased
housing development and access to transport.

In addition, a range of key service and retail
precincts are clustered along the Maroondah
Highway corridor and 31 neighbourhood shopping
centres are spread throughout the municipality.

The Bayswater Business Precinct (BBP) is a
regionally significant industrial precinct serviced
directly by Victoria’s principal freight network.
BBP is home to a diverse range of industries
servicing local, national and international markets
with strong internal supply chains. BBP is also a
key employment hub as well as major contributor
to the local and regional economy.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
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Our Community Vision

Maroondah will be a vibrant and diverse city with
a healthy and active community, living in green
and leafy neighbourhoods which are connected
to thriving and accessible activity centres
contributing to a prosperous economy within a
safe, inclusive and sustainable environment.

&

Vibrant and
culturally rich
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S
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Our future outcomes

Council worked with the community to develop a vision for the future of Maroondah which was adopted
in June 2014. Over the past 18 months, Council has revised the Maroondah 2040 Community Vision to
capture the latest community aspirations and priorities, along with emerging themes and trends.

This refreshed Maroondah 2040 Community Vision was adopted by Council on 22 June 2020.

Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’ provides the strategic blueprint for Council and the community to
continue to work together to shape the future of Maroondah to the year 2040.

Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’ identifies a range of preferred outcomes for the community
looking ahead to the year 2040. The community’s future vision is:

A safe, healthy and active community

In 2040, Maroondah will be a safe, healthy and
active community where all people have the
opportunity to experience enhanced levels of
social, emotional and physical wellbeing.

A prosperous and learning community

In 2040, Maroondah will be a thriving regional
centre of economic activity and education,
where the sustainable growth of local businesses
is supported, and diverse lifelong learning
opportunities are accessible for all community
members.

A vibrant and culturally rich community

In 2040, Maroondah will be a vibrant and creative
community recognised for celebration of the arts,
cultural expression and diverse entertainment
options.

A clean, green and sustainable community

In 2040, Maroondah will be a resilient community
committed to sustainable living, enhancing our
natural environment, and providing leadership in
responding to climate change.

In 2040, Maroondah will be accessible for all

ages and abilities with walkable neighbourhoods,
sustainable transport options, and a safe integrated
transport network.

In 2040, Maroondah will be an attractive,
sustainable and well built community with thriving
activity centres and a network of neighbourhoods
where everyone has the opportunity to live, work
and play locally.

In 2040, Maroondah will be an inclusive and
equitable community where all people are valued,
supported and socially connected, and diversity is
embraced and celebrated.

A well governed and empowered community

In 2040, Maroondah will be an empowered
community actively engaged in local decision
making, led by an innovative community inspired
Council that collaborates regionally and proactively
champions local needs.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
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Our organisational vision

We will foster a prosperous, healthy and
sustainable community.

Our mission

We are dynamic and innovative leaders, working
in partnership to enhance community wellbeing.

Our enablers

There is a range of enablers that support Council
working towards our vision and acting on our
mission:
*  We are people who are adaptable,

capable, positive and engaged.

* In delivering services, we are people focused,
proactive, integrated and responsive.

* In our approach to our roles,
we are collaborative, strategic,
sustainable and best practice.

Our values

¢ We are accountable to each other and
our community.

¢ We collaborate in an adaptable and supportive
workplace.

¢ We perform at our best.

We are open, honest, inclusive and act
with integrity.

¢ We ensure every voice is heard, valued and
respected.

¢ We are brave, bold and achieve excellence.

Council values collaborating with the community and industry leaders
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How we plan

Council’s strategic documents are linked to an The Framework includes a number of other key
Integrated Planning Framework. The Framework planning documents, the Long Term Financial
seeks to ensure Council’s activities and resources Strategy and Annual Budget, as well as a range
are aligned in order to meet the aspirations, needs of supporting strategies and policies adopted

and expectations of the Maroondah community. by Council.

The Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’ and All community focused plans, strategies and
the Council Plan 2017-2021, along with associated policies have been formally adopted by Council
legislation and regulatory requirements, provide and can be accessed on Council’s website.

the direction for Council strategy, policies, plans
and service delivery.

These strategic documents in turn guide internal
service delivery plans that identify activities and
projects to be undertaken by Council to meet
community needs and expectations.
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Maroondah 2040
‘Our future together’

Council’s Integrated
Planning Framework

is underpinned by

the shared long term
community vision outlined
in Maroondah 2040 ‘Our
future together’, which
was updated in 2019/20
following extensive
community engagement
and consideration of
emerging trends.

The aspirations and priorities for the future have
been grouped into eight broad outcomes.

Under each of these outcomes, a range of key
directions have been identified that are high

level strategies aimed at guiding the activities of
Council and the community in working toward the
achievement of the vision.

Council Plan

From Maroondah 2040
‘Our future together’
evolves a four year Council
Plan that establishes
Council’s medium-term
key directions (strategies)
and resourcing to deliver
on the outcomes identified
within the vision.

The Council Plan outlines
the role of Council

in delivering on the
Maroondah 2040 community vision.

A refreshed Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3:
2019/20) was adopted on 20 May 2019 to
guide Council’s activities for the 2019/20 and
2020/21 years.

This Annual Report reports on the achievements
and progress towards 2019/20 priority actions in
the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20).
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Other major plans

In addition to Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future
together’ and the Council Plan, there are a

range of other strategic documents that have a
significant influence on Council’s service delivery
and the Maroondah community.

These include:

* The Municipal Strategic Statement provides
a clear, concise statement of land use issues
and directions, and outlines a vision for the
future development of the municipality.

« The Maroondah Health and Wellbeing
Plan provides directions and guidelines for
working in partnership with key community
stakeholders towards the improved health
and wellbeing of the Maroondah community.

* The Municipal Emergency Management
Plan addresses the prevention of, response
to, and recovery from, emergencies
within the municipality of Maroondah.

Other Council policies,
strategies and plans

There are many other policies, strategies and
plans that also contribute to the delivery of
outcomes and key directions within Maroondah
2040 ‘Our future together’ and the Council Plan.
All community facing policies, strategies and
plans can be found on Council’s website at www.
maroondah.vic.gov.au

Service Delivery Plans

The provision of strategic direction through
Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’, the
Council Plan 2017-2021, and the Long Term
Financial Strategy set the direction for Service
Delivery Plans across each of Council’s service
areas. These plans are reviewed annually to meet
community needs and expectations.

Long Term Financial Strategy

The Long Term Financial Strategy takes the
outcome areas and key directions as specified in
the Council Plan 2017-2021 and expresses them in
financial terms over a rolling 10-year period.





Annual Budget

The Annual Budget documents the financial and
non-financial resources required by Council to
implement the outcome areas, key directions
and priority actions identified in the Council Plan
2017-2021.

Consultation is conducted on the draft Annual
Budget and feedback is considered before
Council adopts the final Budget.

Key principles

Overarching governance principles

Maroondah City Council is committed to
performing its role in accordance with the
overarching governance principles of the

Local Government Act 1989 and the new

Local Government Act 2020, and supporting
principles relating to community engagement,
public transparency, strategic planning, financial
management and service performance.

N
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Charter of Human Rights

Council recognises and protects the rights,
interests and responsibilities of individuals, the
community, and public bodies in the City of
Maroondah in accordance with the Charter of
Human Rights and Responsibilities. Council’s
strategies, policies and decision-making
procedures are compatible with the Charter of
Human Rights. Council aims to ensure that it
pursues a human rights approach across all areas
of Council activity.

Risk management

Council continues to build upon its culture of

risk management as an integral part of corporate
governance and operations, developing strategies
and systems to minimise risks. This ensures the
sustainable delivery of services and amenities
enjoyed by ratepayers, residents and visitors.

The identification and management of risk

will continue to be undertaken in a systematic
process, implementing the principles set out in the
Australian Standards for Risk Management AS/
NZS ISO 31000:2018. The Maroondah City Council
Strategic Risk Management Plan and Policy
provide the framework for this to be achieved.
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Community engagement

Council is committed to engaging with its
community in a meaningful, accountable,
responsive and equitable way. Maroondah’s
Community Engagement Policy 2015 is a formal
expression of Council’s commitment to engaging
the Maroondah community through the use of
appropriate, effective and inclusive practices.

The Policy outlines Council’s position, role and
commitments to ensure community engagement
is integrated into Council activities to support
decision-making, build relationships and
strengthen communities. The Policy also seeks
to improve Council’'s engagement processes and
outcomes by encouraging a consistent approach
and continual learning through evaluation, and
through expanding the range of engagement
methods used.

Community engagement is defined as the range
of opportunities for public involvement in Council
decision-making, relationship building and
community strengthening. Often engagement
processes support two or all three of these
objectives. Community engagement is achieved

when the community is, and feels, part of a process.

Council’'s Community Engagement Policy is built
on a set of commitments that guide the planning,
development, implementation, evaluation

and continuous improvement of community
engagement processes. These commitments

are based on core values identified by the
International Association for Public Participation
and are undertaken in accordance with Council’s
Privacy Policy.

To support the implementation of this Policy,
Council has developed a Community Engagement
Toolkit which is designed to assist Council

service areas, teams and employees who wish to
undertake community or stakeholder engagement
for a specific purpose. The Toolkit resources

are intended to provide guidance through the
planning, implementation and evaluation of

a successful and valued community

engagement process.

The Local Government Act 1989 and the new
Local Government Act 2020 and a range of
other legislation set out community engagement
requirements for some specific consultations.

In many instances, Council will go above and
beyond the minimum requirements of the Act to
gain a strong understanding of our community’s
wants and needs to ensure we are achieving the
best possible outcomes for our community.

Community engagement at Maroondah Festival
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Our Council

The role and function of Council

Our Maroondah
community

The role of Council

Service delivery

Section 64A(1) of the Victorian Constitution Act
1975 describes local government as a distinct

and essential tier of government consisting

of democratically elected Councils having the
functions and powers that the Parliament considers
are necessary to ensure the peace, order and good
government of each municipal district.

The role of a Council is defined in the Loca/
Government Act 1989 and the new Loca/
Government Act 2020, which formalises a Council’s
legal status, purpose and objectives; delegates
Council with specific functions and powers; and
imposes Council with various duties.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Advocacy

Facilitation

At Maroondah City Council, our role is to:

« deliver services that meet the needs and
expectations of the Maroondah community;

e advocate on behalf of community needs
to other levels of Government; and

» facilitate the delivery of outcomes by working
in partnership with residents, businesses,
community organisations and key stakeholders.

Over 120 different services are provided by
Council including: aged and disability support
services, business support, community planning
and development, children and youth services,
infrastructure maintenance and renewal, leisure
and sporting facilities, maternal and child
health, community health, immunisation, parks
and reserves, planning and building, drainage,
roads and footpaths, and waste and recycling.





Our Councillors and wards

The municipality is divided into three wards:
Arrabri, Mullum and Wyreena. Each ward is
represented by three Councillors.

Councillors are responsible for the stewardship and
governance of Council.

The nine Councillors are the elected
representatives of all residents and ratepayers
across the city.

Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2020
defines the role of a Councillor to:

¢ participate in the decision making of the Council

* represent the interests of the municipal
community in that decision-making; and

¢ contribute to the strategic direction of
the Council through the development and
review of key strategic documents of the
Council, including the Council Plan.
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Mayor and Deputy Mayor

Cr Mike Symon was unanimously elected to the
position of Mayor on 13 November 2019. Cr Symon
is Maroondah’s 24th Mayor. During the financial
year, Cr Symon served as Mayor from 13 November
2019 to 30 June 2020.

As Mayor of Maroondah, Cr Symon is the Deputy
Chair of the Eastern Region Group of Councils and
Member of the MAV Board representing the Metro
East Region.

Cr Marijke Graham was elected to the position of
Deputy Mayor on 13 November 2019. The Deputy
Mayor position provides support to the Mayor
during the mayoral term.

From 1 July to 12 November 2019, Cr Rob Steane
held the position of Mayor, and Cr Kylie Spears was
Deputy Mayor.

——— e — — ——

Maroondah City Council’s civic and administrative offices are located in Realm at Ringwood Town Square

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

25





Annual Report 2019/20

Council election Mayoral election

Local Government Elections in Victoria are for The position of Mayor is elected by the Councillors
a term of four years and are conducted by the for a one-year term. The role of Mayor is significant
Victorian Electoral Commission. The last general as a community leader and Council spokesperson.
election for Maroondah City Council was held on The Mayor performs an important leadership, social
22 October 2016. The next general election for and ceremonial function and chairs all Council
Council will be held on 24 October 2020. meetings.

Following the next Council Election on 24 October
2020, the Minister for Local Government has
determined that Maroondah’s electoral structure
will change to have nine wards. Each of these nine
Wards will be represented by a single Councillor.

ARRABRI

[
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Meet your Councillors

Arrabri Ward

Cr Tony Dib OAM JP Cr Paul Macdonald Cr Kylie Spears
Mobile: 0438 515 089 Mobile: 0436 001 760 Mobile: 0436 003 660
tony.dib@ paul.macdonald@ kylie.spears@
maroondah.vic.gov.au maroondah.vic.gov.au maroondah.vic.gov.au
Sworn in February 2010 Elected in October 2016 Elected in October 2016

Mullum Ward

Cr Nora Lamont Cr Samantha Mazzuchelli Cr Mike Symon (Mayor)
Mobile: 0428 394 581 Mobile: 0408 145 110 Mobile: 0436 002 080
nora.lamont@ samantha.mazzuchelli@ma- mike.symon@
maroondah.vic.gov.au roondah.vic.gov.au maroondah.vic.gov.au

First elected in November 2008  Ejrst elected in November 2012 Elected in October 2016

Wyreena Ward

Cr Tasa Damante Cr Marijke Graham Cr Rob Steane

Mobile: 0436 704 819 (Deputy Mayor) Mobile: 0407 519 986
tasa.damante@ Mobile: 0418 109 015 rob.steane@
maroondah.vic.gov.au marijke.graham@ maroondah.vic.gov.au

Sworn in July 2018 maroondah.vic.gov.au First elected in November 2008

Elected in October 2016
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Corporate Management Team

Within the framework of strategic leadership and representative government, a position of Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) is established by the Local Government Act 1989 to oversee the day-to-day
management of Council operations in accordance with the strategic directions of the Council Plan.

At Maroondah, the CEO, together with four Directors, form the Corporate Management Team (CMT) that
lead the organisation. CMT meets formally on a weekly basis to oversee and manage the operations of
Council, discuss forthcoming Council agendas and strategic and policy issues. Members of CMT attend all
Council meetings to provide information and advice enabling the Council to make informed decisions.

CMT is supported by Service Area Managers and employees with specialist skills to develop, implement,
manage and deliver the operational, service and administrative activities required to meet the needs and
expectations of the community.

Chief Executive Officer - Steve Kozlowski

Steve has 31 years of senior local government management experience at

Chief Executive Officer and Director levels, including 10 years with Maroondah
City Council from 1994 to 2003. From the start of 2004, he was Chief Executive
Officer at East Gippsland Shire until he rejoined Maroondah City Council on

8 September 2014 as Chief Executive Officer.

Steve has held executive positions on a number of national, state and regional
committees across a range of interests including: economic development,
environmental planning, tourism, coastal settlement development and
community development. Steve is chair of the Melbourne Metropolitan Regional
Development Australia (RDA) Committee having been jointly appointed to

the position by the State and Federal Governments. He is a member of the
Metropolitan Development Advisory Panel that provides advice to the State
Ministers for Planning and Suburban Development. In addition, Steve is also
Chair of the Eastern Region Economy and Planning Working Group, a member
of the Victorian Government’s Eastern Metropolitan Regional Partnership, and a
member of the Eastern Region Group of Councils (ERG).

Steve is a fellow of a number of professional associations including the Australian
Institute of Company Directors and LGPro. He holds an MBA, Grad.Dip. in
Business Administration and a Bachelor of Business (Local Government).

Director Corporate Services - Marianne Di Giallonardo

Marianne is responsible for Finance and Governance; Workplace People and
Culture; Information Technology; and Revenue, Property and Customer Service.

Marianne has over 39 years experience in a range of local and Victorian
Government arenas, including senior leadership and management across the
portfolios of Corporate, Community and Leisure, and Infrastructure Services
management. Her qualifications include Certified Manager with the Institute

of Managers and Leaders and a Masters of Business Administration. She is a
member of a number of sector boards including representing Asia Pacific on the
Infor Global Customer Experience Board and Local Government Professionals
Director Special Interest Group Executive.
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Director Development and Amenity - Andrew Fuaux

Andrew is responsible for Engineering & Building; Health, Local Laws and
Emergency Management; and Statutory Planning.

Andrew has 21 years local government experience. He commenced with
Maroondah City Council in 2010 as Manager Statutory Planning, bringing

a wealth of experience from his leadership and management roles at
Whitehorse and Yarra Ranges Councils across a diverse range of service areas,
including planning, engineering, health services, local laws and environmental
management.

Andrew’s tertiary qualifications include a Graduate Diploma in Urban Policy &
Planning and a Degree in Social Science (Environmental Assessment & Policy).
He is a Fellow of the Institute of Managers and Leaders (previously AIM), and
member of the Victorian Planning & Environment Law Association, and the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Director Operations, Assets and Leisure - Adam Todorov

Adam is responsible for Operations, Assets and Leisure, including the Maroondah
Leisure facilities.

Adam joined Maroondah City Council in 2001 and has over 19 years experience
spanning Engineering, Infrastructure Management, Assets and Facilities. He

was responsible for leading the development of the Infor Public Sector Asset
Management System which supports the management of Council’s $1.9 billion in
community assets. It is now recognised as an industry leader in the management
of community assets.

Adam'’s tertiary qualifications include a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil) attaining
Upper Second Class Honours. He is an Associate Fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders, and a Member of Engineers Australia.

Director Strategy and Community - Phil Turner

Phil is responsible for Business and Activity Centre Development (including
Council’s involvement in the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre); Community
Services; and Integrated Planning.

Phil commenced with the former City of Ringwood in 1985 and has over 35 years
experience in local government. His experience spans the management of Town
Planning; Economic Development; Corporate and Business Planning; Local Laws;
and Building Services.

Phil’s tertiary qualifications include a Bachelor of Applied Science in Town
Planning and a Graduate Diploma in Business Administration and Urban
Research and Policy.
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Organisation structure

The following chart details the organisational structure of Maroondah City Council as at 30 June 2020.
There are 14 service area managers and 1154 employees (469.50 EFT) that work to deliver outcomes for

the local community.

Chief Executive Officer
Steve Kozlowski

; Development

Corporate Services and Amenity
Director Director

Marianne Di Giallonardo Andrew Fuaux

Communications and Engagement
Sherryn Dunshea

Operations
Assets and Leisure

Director
Adam Todorov

Strategy and
Community

Director
Phil Turner

Finance and Governance Engineering and
Tony Rocca Building Services
- Contracts and Purchasing Andrew Taylor

» Financial Services « Building Services

* Governance « Engineering Services

* Payroll

» Risk Management |
- VRIS e S Health, Local Laws and
I — Emergency Management
Information Technology Kirsten Jenkins

Les Schneider * Community Health

* Emergency Management

e Geographical Information o Lol Lame

Systems
* IT Applications |
* IT Infrastructure )
Statutory Planning
] .
Angela Kechich
Revenue, Property _ « Environmental Planning
and Customer Service « Statutory Planning
Dale Muir 4
e Customer Service
e Libraries

* Revenue and Property
e Realm Operations

Workplace People
and Culture
Stephen Bishop

e Learning and Development
* Recruitment
* Workforce Relations

Assets
Steve Mcintosh

* Assets Management
* Facilities

Leisure
Tim Cocks

* Aquahub

¢ Aquanation

e Croydon Memorial Pool

* Dorset Golf

e Karralyka

* Maroondah Federation
Estate

* Maroondah Nets

¢ Ringwood Golf

* Sports and Recreation

e Sportsfields

* The Rings

Operations
Vincent King

e Bushland and Weed
Management

e Construction Maintenance

e Logistics

e Tree and Park Maintenance

Business and Activity

Centre Development
Chris Zidak

« Activity Centre Development
* Business Support

Community Services
Debra Styles

* Aged and Disability Services

e Arts and Cultural
Development

» Children’s Services

e Maternal and Child Health

* Youth Services

* Wyreena Community Arts
Centre

|
Integrated Planning
Grant Meyer

* Council and Community
Planning

* Strategic Planning and
Sustainability
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Chief Executive Officer

The position of Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) is
established by the Local Government Act 1989 to
oversee the day-to-day management of Council’s
operations in accordance with the strategic
directions of the Council Plan. Steve Kozlowski is
Council’s Chief Executive Officer.

Directors

Reporting to the CEO are four Directors who each
provide oversight of a Directorate which comprises
a number of service areas. As at 30 June 2020, the
four Directors are:

¢ Marianne Di Giallonardo - Director
Corporate Services

¢ Andrew Fuaux - Director
Development and Amenity

¢ Adam Todorov - Director Operations,
Assets and Leisure

¢ Phil Turner - Director Strategy and Community
Direct reports to the CEO

There is one service area manager who reports
directly to the CEQ:

¢ Sherryn Dunshea - Manager
Communications and Engagement

Corporate Services Directorate - Service Area
Managers

There are four service area managers who report
to the Director Corporate Services. As at 30 June
2020, these managers are:

¢« Tony Rocca - Manager Finance and Governance

¢ Les Schneider - Manager
Information Technology

¢ Dale Muir - Manager Revenue,
Property and Customer Service

¢ Stephen Bishop - Manager
Workplace People and Culture

Development and Amenity - Service Area
Managers

There are three service area managers who report
to the Director Development and Amenity. As at
30 June 2020, these managers are:

* Andrew Taylor - Manager Engineering
and Building Services

« Kirsten Jenkins - Manager Health, Local
Laws and Emergency Management

* Angela Kechich - Manager Statutory Planning

Operations, Assets and Leisure - Service Area
Managers

There are three service area managers who report
to the Director Operations, Assets and Leisure. As
at 30 June 2020, these managers are:

« Steve MclIntosh - Manager Assets
e Tim Cocks - Manager Leisure
¢ Vincent King - Manager Operations

Strategy and Community Directorate - Service
Area Managers

There are three service area managers who report
to the Director Strategy and Community. As at 30
June 2020, these managers are:

e Chris Zidak - Manager Business and
Activity Centre Development

e Debra Styles - Manager Community Services

e Grant Meyer - Manager Integrated Planning
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Corporate performance and values

The CEO, directors and service area managers are employed under fixed-term employment contracts and
their performance is measured and reviewed annually against key performance indicators.

Councillors review the performance of the CEO, whilst the CEO reviews the performance of directors and
service area managers. Employee activities are strongly guided by Council’s values.

These values guide the behaviour of employees and service areas across the organisation, contributing to
Council’s ability to meet community needs and expectations.

Allocation of resources for service delivery

The diagram below outlines how Maroondah City Council allocates available resources for the provision
of a broad range of services to the community.

For more information on Council’s financial performance during 2019/20, please see the Financial Report
on page 159.

In 2019/20, for every $100 of rates, Council spent:

Leisure & Capital Transport
Culture Works & Access

$11.36

Environment Development
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Organisational profile

There was a total of 1154 employees at Maroondah City Council as at 30 June 2020. This included
337 full-time, 301 part-time, and 516 casual employees; resulting in an equivalent of 469.50 full-time

employees. The following provides an overview of Council’s workforce:

Total equivalent full-time employees (annually as at 30 June 2020)

500
Year EFT
490
2019/20 469.50 480
470
2018/19 473.28
460
2017/18 482.09 450
440
2016/17 471.5
430
Notes: 420
¢ A number of positions 410
are dependent on 400
external funding.
. Casual employees 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17
are not included
in the figures above.
Equivalent full-time employees by Directorate (as at 30 June 2020)
CEO Office 13.7 CEO Office
Corporate Services 84.7 . Corporate
Services
Development & Amenity 91.4 . Development
& Amenity
Operations, Assets & Leisure 181.7
Operations,
Strategy & Community 98.0 Assets & Leisure
. Strategy
Total 448,38 & Community

Note: A number of positions are externally funded
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Categories of Employees (% of total employees as at 30 June 2020)

100%

Year Full-time | Part-time Casual
90%
2019/20 29.2% 261%  44.7% 80%
[o)
2018/19 28.8% 26.5% 44.5% 70%
60%
2017/18 30.2% 288%  41.0% 50% |
40% |
2016/17 29.6% 301%  40.3% 0%
30% _ |
20%
10%
0%
O O "D <\
R % v v

. Full-time Part-time . Casual

Resignations and new starts

70
Year Resignations
63 51

60

2019/20
2018/19 48 43 50 -
2017/18 43 48
40 —
2016/17 58 58
30 —
Note: Data represents full-time
employees onl
% y 20 |
10 —
0

2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

. Resignations New Starts
Employee recognition

Major milestones of long service for employees at Maroondah City Council are acknowledged and
recognised in June each year. These service milestones demonstrate strong people leadership within
the organisation. In 2019/20, 25 Council employees achieved 10 years of service, 17 employees achieved
20 years of service, eight employees achieved 30 years of service and one employee achieved 40 years
of service.

Employees achieving exceptional performance are recognised through the Recognising Extra Value
(REV) Program with 13 employees receiving a REV Award during 2019/20.

Recognition is also given to employees for successful study completion. In 2019/20, five employees
successfully completed their studies.
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Workplace People and Culture

Workplace People and Culture is committed to
the provision of quality services and activities to
meet the aspirations, needs and expectations of
Council and the community. Our commitment to
continuous improvement and innovation ensures
an ongoing review of our organisational systems
and processes, continually looking for better ways
of working, creating greater effectiveness and
increased efficiency.

Council is a people business. Given that change

is inevitable in today’s world, human resources
initiatives and strategies must evolve and respond
to changing business, community, market and
regulatory needs and demands whilst maintaining
a desired workplace culture.

Maroondah City Council’s Workforce People and
Culture Strategy operates from values-based
principles that place ‘people’ at the heart of
Council operations and simultaneously seeks
improvement in service effectiveness for the
community and employee wellbeing.

Workforce People and Culture Strategy
2016-2020

The Workforce People and Culture Strategy
2016-2020 has been developed as part of
Council’s strategic planning framework. The
Strategy aims to provide an organisational road
map for the development, implementation, review
and measurement of Workforce People and
Culture initiatives, activities and systems for the
next four years.

Council recognises the need to attract quality
people and to optimise their performance

and retention in order to continue to provide

vital services to the community. Furthermore,
implementing active workforce strategies in an
environment of continuous change, potential
uncertainty and continuous improvement requires
a considered approach.

To ensure long term sustainability in meeting
the needs and aspirations of the Maroondah
community as articulated in Maroondah 2040 -
Our future together and the Council Plan
2017-2021, the Workforce, People and Culture
Strategy 2016-20 includes a set of outcome
areas, each with supporting key directions

and priority actions.

The Strategy covers the short, medium and long
term and is formally reviewed on an annual basis
as part of Council’s Annual Reporting Process and
Service Delivery Planning process.

Consistent with an increased focus on managing
risk, corporate governance and people, the
development and implementation of this Strategy
constitutes an essential document for Council’s
Corporate Management Team, line management,
key organisational stakeholders and human
resource professionals.

Valuing diversity

Maroondah City Council promotes a culture of
awareness and acceptance of diversity. Council
values and promotes equality in the workplace and
commits to providing redress for people who have
been discriminated against, harassed, or bullied.
Council continues to pride itself on ensuring our
employees are well educated in all aspects of equal
opportunity and valuing diversity.

Workplace giving

Employees at Maroondah City Council continue to
donate to various charities on a monthly schedule,
through direct payroll deductions. The charities
selected reflect employee interest or involvement,
with all charities being registered fundraisers

in Australia. A total of $22,693 was donated by
employees in 2019/20.
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A safe, healthy and active
community

Our vision

In 2040, Maroondah will be a safe, healthy and active community where all
people have the opportunity to experience enhanced levels of social, emotional
and physical wellbeing.

Our commitments

Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified 13 priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards a safe, healthy and active community.

Amend planning controls relating to alcohol density through
participation in the South East Melbourne Councils’ Alliance
(SEMCA) Alcohol Density Project

In June 2018, the Minister for Planning rejected the exhibition of the
proposed group planning scheme amendment (GC88) to introduce
Amzﬂm_ a packaged liguor policy into the Maroondah Planning Scheme. This
T ST _”' e planning scheme amendment was intended to provide participating
R e L el i Councils with planning tools to effectively manage applications for
1 s the sale of packaged liquor, particularly in areas of high supply. In
rejecting the proposal, the Minister commented that the planning
scheme is not placed to respond to social impacts on alcohol
consumption and alcohol related harm. Council is currently working
Status: Complete with project partners to identify alternative avenues to mitigate
alcohol density issues.

e i [

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Commence construction of the
$3.5M Silcock Sporting Pavilion
redevelopment in Croydon

The Silcock Sporting Pavilion redevelopment will include the
demolition of existing cricket/soccer changerooms and will provide
four female friendly change rooms as well as two new umpire
changerooms; first aid and public toilet facilities; multi-purpose
social space; new kiosk and kitchen; and a new undercover spectator
viewing area. Construction commenced in April 2020 and is
expected to be completed in March 2021.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Complete the $4.25M redevelopment of the HE Parker
Sporting Pavilion

The redevelopment is currently in the final stages of construction
completion. The double-storey facility will be home to four
female-friendly change rooms, to cater for growing female
involvement in grassroots sport, as well as a large multipurpose room
and amenities. The facility will focus on inclusiveness and accessibility
for all abilities. Once completed, the facility will accommodate the
Heathmont Cricket Club, Heathmont Football Club and Sport and
Life Training (SALT). Construction commenced in September 2019
and is anticipated to be completed in mid-2020.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Complete the $5M Springfield Sporting Pavilion redevelopment

This project will see a new multipurpose pavilion incorporating
universal design principles and female friendly facilities for all users.
Detailed design has commenced, and construction is expected to
begin in 2020/21.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure
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Complete the Jubilee Sporting Precinct redevelopment

The RO Spencer Pavilion serves the Jubilee Sporting precinct, and the
Russell Lucas Oval which is a Premier Grade cricket ground. In April
2018, the Victorian Government committed $2 million in funding to
support the project. The $3.5 million pavilion redevelopment will include
improved accessibility features; new and improved change and toilet
facilities, including female friendly facilities; and a first-floor extension
with designated office space. Design has commenced, and it is
Status: In progress anticipated that the construction will begin in 2020/21. The RO Spencer
Responsibility: Operations, Assets Pavilion redevelopment is also part of a broader precinct enhancement
and Leisure plan that will see some key longer-term outcomes for the community
identified in the plan to be implemented over the next 10 years.

Undertake sportsfield reconstruction works at Quambee
Reserve No 1 oval in Ringwood North

The main oval at Quambee Reserve was redesigned and
reconstructed in 2019/20 to improve drainage, subsurface quality
and grass cover. This will enable increased playing capacity of

the ground, supporting the North Ringwood Football Club and
Warranwood Cricket Club. Construction commenced in September
2019 and was completed in mid-2020.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Implement the changes that result from the reform of the
Environment Protection Act

Council has contributed to the consultation and the Regulatory
Impact Statements associated with the new Environment Protection
Amendment Act 2078. Implementation has been postponed until 1
July 2021 to ease the burden on business, industries and community
members due to impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. In the interim,
the Environment Protection Authority Victoria (EPA) will continue to
regulate under the Environment Protection Act 1970.

Status: Deferred

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Complete the $3.25M Proclamation Park Sporting Pavilion
redevelopment

This project will see the demolition of the existing pavilion and the
construction of a new two storey facility, including female change
facilities to meet the growing female participation in cricket and
baseball. In addition, there will be an accessible public toilet, storage
for clubs, and a level one multipurpose room with kitchen, kiosk
and spectator viewing area. The new pavilion will be home to the
Ringwood Athletic Club, Ringwood Little Athletics Centre, Ringwood
- _ Professional Athletic Club, Ringwood Cricket Club, Ringwood Saints
EESDLZ?SSLbrglty: QIR SR Baseball Club, and Proclamation Park Walkers. Design commenced
during 2019/20 and construction is anticipated to begin in 2020/21.

Status: In progress
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Undertake a review and develop a Physical Activity Strategy
2020-2024

Council will undertake a review of the Physical Activity Strategy and
undertake a physical activity participation study to compare with
results obtained in 2009 and 2014. Due to commence in 2020/21, the
project will identify key focus areas for the 2020-2024 period.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Develop a new Municipal Emergency Management Plan
considering changes to legislation and outcomes of Local
Government Victoria’s Councils and Emergencies project

The Councils and Emergencies Project is a multi-year, three phased
project that aims to enhance the emergency management capability
and capacity of local governments to meet their obligations in the
management of emergencies. As part of this project, the Municipal
Emergency Management Plan 2020-2023 was adopted by Council in

March 2020.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Complete the Dorset Recreation Reserve Redevelopment

An enhancement plan is currently being developed for Dorset
Recreation Reserve, including redevelopment of the existing pavilion.
Input is being sought from residents for both Dorset Recreation
Reserve and Eastfield Park to identify improvement works that would
take place over the short, medium and long term. Dorset Recreation

| 1

) T e | Reserve features a park, nature-based playground, and 3.5-kilometre
shared walking/bicycle trail around Dorset Golf Course. It is also
home to Croydon City Arrows Soccer Club and the Maroondah
Soccer and Darts Club.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure
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Work with partners of Together for Equality and Respect
(TFER): A Strategy to Prevent Violence Against Women
in Melbourne East to prevent violence against women

in Maroondah, including participation in the “16 days of

activism” campaign

lence
inst
en

L
#16daysofactivism L

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

The 16 Days of Activism Against Gender Based Violence is a global
campaign which runs from 25 November (International Day for the
Elimination of Violence Against Women) to 10 December (Human
Rights Day). In the Eastern Metropolitan Region (EMR) the campaign
is supported by partners of Together for Equality and Respect -

the regional strategy for Preventing Violence Against Women. The
Strategy, led by Women’s Health East, is a partnership between the
seven local governments of the EMR, community health services

and other agencies that focus on primary prevention efforts to end
violence against women. During November 2019, Council participated
in the 16 Days of Activism campaign which involved the placement
of seven billboards in prominent locations around Maroondah with
messages relating to violence against women and family violence. In
March 2020, Council also delivered a Women’s Safety Online event
at Realm involving a presentation from the Office of the eSafety
Commissioner.

Commence development of second Maroondah Youth
Strategy Action Plan 2019-2021

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Council has completed community consultation for the Youth
Strategy Action Plan 20719-2027 and the action development phase
has commenced. The Action Plan will include the adaptation of
services to meet the emerging and future wellbeing needs of young
people from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. The draft Action
Plan will be completed at the end of 2020.
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DL You lRnow?

Maroondah Immunisation
Services immunised 1260
people against influenza.
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i %A A safe, healthy and active
xﬁ community

Our strategic indicator results

Indicator/Measure Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2019/20 | 2019/20 | 2018/19| 2017/18| 2016/17| 2015/16
Overall Maternal and Child Health 100% 98.3 % 98.87% 101.2% 102.8% 99.4%

service client participation in key
ages and stages visits

Attendance at Council aquatic and 9.0 9.93 101 8.75 n.2 7.23
leisure facilities as a proportion of the
residential population

(LGPRF - Number of visits per head
of population)

Community satisfaction with 80 76 80 80 77 78
recreation facilities

(Local Government Community
Satisfaction Survey)

Aquanation
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Our achievements

In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken
a wide range of other activities in working towards a safe, healthy and active
community. Some highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a safe community

Partnerships to improve mental health outcomes
and address family violence

Council’s Maternal and Child Health service has
developed strong partnerships to improve the
mental wellbeing of children and their families
through improved referral pathways. Key partners
include Eastern Access Community Health (EACH);
Eastern Health Mental Health Services; Eastern
Community Legal Centre (ECLC); Eastern Health
Perinatal Emotional Health Service (PEHS) for
women experiencing emotional health issues,
including postnatal depression and trauma
impacting mental health during the first 12 months
post birth; and Child and Youth Mental Health
Services. Maternal and Child Health have seen an
increase in mental health and family violence issues
during COVID-19 restrictions and expect to see an
increase in referrals as restrictions are lifted.

Buried in Treasures program

The Maroondah Hoarding and Squalor Network
is a forum that has been developed for local
agencies and community groups confronted with
hoarding and squalor issues. Funding was sought
from the Outer East Primary Care Partnership
(OEPCP) to host a series of community forums,
update the website and expand the network to
the municipalities of Maroondah, Knox and Yarra
Ranges. A Buried in Treasures Program was
established, providing a six-week, two-hour
self-help action group for people living with
hoarding behaviour. Offering a judgment-free
setting, the program encourages individuals to

make positive changes to their home environment.

Improved lighting at Jubilee Park

Flood lighting was installed at six tennis courts
at Ringwood Central Tennis Club at Jubilee Park.
This project received $105,000 in Australian
Government funding through the “Move it”
SportAUS Grants program.

Maroondah Liquor Accord updated

Council has worked with the Maroondah Liquor
Accord over the past year to review and develop

a new Accord. The Maroondah Liquor Accord

was launched in November 2015 and since that
time has enjoyed strong membership and vibrant
engagement with a broad range of licensees
including hotels, restaurants/cafes, late night clubs,
packaged liguor outlets, cinemas and sporting
clubs. The project involved development of a

new logo, a statement of values endorsed by the
membership and a range of key commitments. The
commitments relate to providing positive social
environments, making venues safe and inclusive,
promoting zero tolerance for violence, not serving
underage persons, monitoring liquor compliance
laws, providing responsible service of alcohol, and
encouraging health and wellbeing

Ask for Angela safety program

In partnership with the Maroondah Liquor Accord,
Council continued implementation of the Ask for
Angela campaign in local licensed venues. Ask for
Angela is an international campaign to promote
safety in licensed venues. If a patron feels unsafe,
they can discretely use the simple code word
which alerts venue staff that the person requires
assistance. The campaign in Maroondah is being
delivered in partnership with Victoria Police,
EDVOS - a specialist family violence service in
Melbourne’s Eastern Metropolitan Region, and
Eastern Centre Against Sexual Assault (ECASA).

Review of the sharps exchange program

A review of the sharps exchange program was
undertaken to ensure it continues to support the
exchange of sharps containers resourcefully and
safely and ensuring it is meeting the needs of those
members of the community requiring the service
for medical conditions. During COVID-19 restrictions
the program continued with modified hours and
meeting social distancing/hygeine requirements.
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A A safe, healthy and active

Ay

Our achievements

community

Working towards a healthy community

Maroondah Health and Wellbeing Plan

The Maroondah Health and Wellbeing Plan
2017-20217 is a strategic plan that describes how
Council and partners will work together to achieve
improved health and wellbeing for our local
community. The Plan was adopted in late 2017
involving input from local community members,
partners and stakeholders from the health and
community service sectors. A range of actions
were undertaken by Council over the past year
including: alcohol-harm reduction in sporting
club settings; delivery of mental health initiatives;
support for Communities of Wellbeing initiatives;
continued delivery of the Plus 10 schools initiative;
development of a healthy choices policy for
sporting venues; advocacy through the Eastern
Affordable Housing Alliance; participation in the
Together for Equality and Respect partnership;
initiatives to increase female participation

in sport; social inclusion partnerships with
community houses; indigenous groups and CALD
communities; and coordinating emergency relief
partnerships to provide support for community
members during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Be Kind Maroondah

The Be Kind Maroondah campaign was launched
during the COVID-19 pandemic to keep the
community connected during social isolation

and encourage kindness and goodwill. Several
initiatives were undertaken within three major
themes; Be kind to yourself; Be kind to others; and
Be kind to business. Information and resources
were made available on Council’'s website and
people were encouraged to share kindness
stories. A knitting project encouraged people to
donate knitted items to those sleeping rough or in
financial need. Grade 5 and 6 students also wrote
letters to connect with older residents.

Stressless and look after your mental
wellbeing event

During October 2019, Council hosted a free

mental health community event focused on
providing information on proven methods to
reduce stress and manage anxiety. Over 300
community members attended the event which
was delivered in partnership with EACH, Eastern
Regional Libraries and Neami National. The event
featured Matthew Johnstone, author, illustrator and
former creative director of The Black Dog Institute,
discussing proven methods to reduce stress,
manage anxiety and lift mood. Participants were
given the opportunity to connect with relevant
service providers on topics such as healthy eating,
animal therapy, and physical exercise.

Men’s health event

In June 2020, over 400 men from across the
Eastern Region attended on online men’s health
event, delivered in partnership between seven
Councils as part of a Joint Local Government
Health and Wellbeing Series. The event provided

an opportunity to hear from former AFL footballer
Tom Boyd sharing his story of going from #1

AFL draft pick to premiership player and then to
retirement, all within five years. The event was
delivered during Men’s Health Week which focuses
on promoting male health facts and health services.
Mental health is a key component to this, as men
take their own lives at four times the rate of women.
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Maroondah Positive Education Network
(formerly Plus10 Schools) - helping our young
people flourish

Council continued to work in partnership to

deliver the Maroondah Positive Education

Network (formerly Plus1O Schools) to increase the
wellbeing and educational outcomes of students in
Maroondah through the implementation of targeted
wellbeing initiatives. As part of the project, Council
delivered presentations and workshops to over 1000
students and 33 teachers; and school staff from
Maroondah completed the Professional Certificate
in Positive Education. The Maroondah Positive
Education Project was presented at the 6th World
Congress for Positive Education and the Maroondah
Positive Education Project was highly commended
in the community partnerships category of the
LGPro Awards for Excellence.

Emergency meals assistance from Karralyka

Council’s Karralyka Centre significantly increased
its Delivered Meals output as part of the response
to the COVID-19 pandemic and the requirement
for older vulnerable residents to self-isolate. Meals
provided during the pandemic were supported
through additional Australian Government funding.
This funding was used to produce extra meals to
meet demand, as well as for the redeployment of
employees to cover the loss of volunteers involved
in meal delivery.

Victorian Government’s Healthy Choices
framework to be implemented in Council facilities

Council has continued the implementation of

the Victorian Government’s Healthy Choices
Framework and standards as part of the funding
agreement for Maroondah Nets. Healthy Choices
aims to improve the availability and promotion

of healthier foods and drinks in community
settings, and sport and recreation centres. Council
has commenced development of policies and
associated implementation plans for identified
Council facilities and for Council employees.
Implementation activities will continue in 2020/21.

Good Food for Me program for older residents

A Maroondah-first pilot program Good Food For
Me is helping to teach older residents important
yet simple, practical ways on how to live with
better health through better nutrition. The pilot
program was launched in February 2020 following
the success of the Good Food For Me seminar held
in early 2019. Open to residents aged 65 and over,
the three-week program provided an introduction
to the dietary needs of older people, while
learning how to prepare everyday meals easily,
independently and on a budget. The program is
funded by the Commonwealth Home Support
Program and is free to those registered and
referred through My Aged Care.

Increased access to Maternal and Child
Health Services

In response to an increased demand for support
services as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,

the Maternal and Child Health Hotline continued
to offer a confidential, 24-hour information and
advice service to vulnerable families regarding
concerns about child health as well as the health
of parents. Maternal and Child Health ‘home’ visits,
Breastfeeding support, Early Parenting Program,
First Time Parents Group, Supported Playgroup
Program continued during restrictions via video,
phone or Facebook. A series of online videos were
also produced to support parents with sleeping,
feeding and parenting support.

MCH services
go digital!

i /

NDIS transition service

Council continues to provide a National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS) transition service to
assist local residents with information, support
and/or advocacy services as they navigate the
system wide changes. In 2019/20, over 600 hours
of support was provided to Maroondah residents
who were provided information and/or support
through monthly Pathways for Carers walks,
information provided at Maroondah Kindergarten
Expo and other general information
sessions/forums.

Occupational therapy service continues to
address the needs of the community

With the Australian Government’s introduction

of multiple occupational services in Maroondah
and the high demand for support to regain or
learn general life skills for independence, a greater
focus has been on using resources to benefit

more people. While Council’s 1:1 Occupational
Therapy service continued, there have been several
innovative pilot programs responding to complex,
unmet needs, as well as the delivery of new
programs.
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Our achievements
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Working towards an active community

Strategic review of golf in Maroondah

Council has undertaken a strategic review of
Maroondah Golf to ensure the sport in Maroondah
is sustainable in the future. A stage one report
developed by external consultants identified both
challenges and opportunities for the future of golf
in Maroondah. A community consultation has been
undertaken, and Council is now using the stage one
review findings and the community consultation
results to guide the development of the Maroondah
Golf Strategy.

Walking football and netball programs

Maroondah City Council together with Melbourne
East Netball Association commenced Walking
Netball at Maroondah Nets. Walking Netball brings
together a variety of low-intensity cardio, strength,
flexibility and balance in one fun game. The game
has been designed so anyone can play, regardless
of age, ability or fitness level. Council continued
the Walking Football Program in Maroondah in
partnership with Knox City Council, U3A Croydon
and Knox. The Walking Football program has
been a huge success in helping senior Maroondah
residents stay physically and socially active.
Targeted at participants aged over 50, Walking
Football aims to improve the physical and mental
health outcomes for older residents and empower
them to be physically active every day. Following
the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Walking
Football and Netball programs were suspended
pending the relaxation of restrictions.

Health and exercise services for older residents

In response to the temporary closure of
Maroondah sports and recreation facilities during
the COVID-19 pandemic, Council developed
alternative physical and social programs for the
community. Sports and recreation employees
were redeployed to assist the volunteer workforce
delivering emergency meals to older and
vulnerable residents.

Run Maroondah

Held in September 2019, the annual Run
Maroondah event was held at HE Parker Reserve,
Heathmont, with approximately 460 participants.
This run caters for people of all ages and has
different course lengths including 15km and 10km
runs, a 5km run/walk, and for children, the 1.2km
kids dash. The aim is to encourage individuals and
families to have fun together while taking part in
physical activity.

Increased participation at Ringwood
and Dorset Golf

Community participation has continued to grow
for both Ringwood and Dorset Golf facilities
over the past year. Participation in games of golf
has increased by 3.7% and secondary spend has
increased by 27% on the previous twelve months.
Council also introduced programs to encourage
participation of juniors and women in 2019/20
attracting a total of 800 participants.

Improvements to Jubilee Park Croquet Pavilion

Jubilee Park Croquet Pavilion redevelopment
works were completed in August 2019, improving
accessibility to and within the facility as well

as a general upgrade to the facility. These
improvements will support activities of Ringwood
Croquet Club.
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Active for Mental Health program

Council and Eastern Health partnered to run an
Active for Mental Health pilot program supporting
people to gain confidence to exercise and enhance
their wellbeing whilst transitioning from residential
mental health support services to independent
living in the community.

Vacation Care activities

Council’s Vacation Care program continued to be
conducted during the school holidays with a focus
on primary school children aged 5 to 12. Activities
encourage the children to socialise, have fun, be
active and learn. This is achieved by a mix of safe
and inclusive activities and excursions. As part of
the response to COVID-19 pandemic, the Term 2
program did not run, however the Term 3 program
will run from a single venue with numbers capped
to allow for physical distancing.

Council’s Vacation Care program activities encourage children to socialise, have fun, be active and learn
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Looking ahead

community

In continuing to work towards a safe, healthy and active community during

2020/21, Council will:

Design and construct sporting/multipurpose
pavilion redevelopments at Silcock Reserve,
Proclamation Park, Springfield Park, and
Ainslie Park

As a result of funding by the Australian
Government, Victorian Government and Council,
several significant redevelopments are underway
for multipurpose pavilions located in sporting
reserves across Maroondah. Construction has
commenced on the $3.5 million Silcock Sporting
Pavilion which will include multipurpose spaces
for enhanced community use; new flexible

change rooms, enhanced amenities, storage

areas, office space, and kitchen areas. The $3.25
million Proclamation Park Sporting Pavilion
redevelopment will see the demolition of the
existing pavilion and the construction of a new two
storey facility, including female change facilities to
meet the growing female participation in cricket
and baseball. Redevelopment of sporting pavilions
are also planned at Springfield and Ainslie Park.

Establish a regional cricket hub at the Jubilee
Park sporting precinct

The RO Spencer Pavilion serves the Jubilee
Sporting precinct, and in particular the Russell
Lucas Oval, which is a Premier Grade cricket
ground. Successful Council advocacy to the
Victorian Government resulted in $2 million in
funding for the redevelopment of the pavilion,
which is home to the Ringwood cricket and
football clubs and the Ringwood Spiders All
Abilities Sports Club. Once completed it will

also become home to the Ringwood District
Cricket Association and to Cricket Victoria’s

new Eastern Metro Zone Association. The $3.5
million redevelopment will include improved
accessibility including a new entrance along with
connections to and from the existing ground floor
and grandstand areas. Also included in the works
are new and improved female friendly change
and toilet facilities and a first floor extension with
designated office space.
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Undertake a strategic review of golf in Maroondah

To ensure golf in Maroondah is sustainable in
the future, Council is undertaking a review. The
community consultation phase has concluded,
and Council is now utilising the stage one review
findings and community consultation results to
guide the development of a Maroondah

Golf Strategy.

Plan and implement the Dorset Recreation
Reserve and Eastfield Park Enhancement Plans
and undertake staged redevelopment works

An enhancement plan is currently being
developed for Dorset Recreation Reserve,
including redevelopment of the existing pavilion,
which will include female-friendly changerooms
and amenities. The Australian Government has
provided $2 million towards the works. The facility
will accommodate the Croydon City Arrows Soccer
Club and the Australian Chin Community. Input

is being sought from residents for both Dorset
Recreation Reserve and Eastfield Park in order to
identify improvement works that would take place
over the short, medium and long term.

An enhancement plan is currently being developed
for Dorset Recreation Reserve






Develop a Liveability and Wellbeing Strategy
2021-2031 (incorporating the Municipal Public
Health Plan)

The current Maroondah Health and Wellbeing
Strategy 2017-2021 is due to conclude in 2021
and will be replaced by the new Maroondah
Liveability and Wellbeing Strategy 20271-203].
The Strategy will provide a long-term holistic
strategy covering key priorities to improve the
health, wellbeing and resilience of Maroondah
residents. Extensive community consultation has
been undertaken on eight key topics - celebrating
diversity; community learning; healthy lifestyle;
liveable neighbourhoods; safe communities;
social inclusion; social influences and sustainable
environment. Council is also completing research
on various social issues to ensure that an
integrated action plan is developed as part of
the Strategy. The Strategy will be completed in
2020/21 and identify a range of future priorities
for Council following the COVID-19 pandemic.

Work with partners of Together for Equality
and Respect (TFER): A Strategy to Prevent
Violence Against Women in Melbourne East
to prevent violence against women in
Maroondah, including participation in the
“16 days of activism” campaign

The 16 Days of Activism Against Gender Based
Violence is a global campaign which runs from 25
November (International Day for the Elimination of
Violence Against Women) to 10 December (Human
Rights Day). In the Eastern Metropolitan Region
(EMR), the campaign is supported by partners of
Together for Equality and Respect - the regional
strategy for Preventing Violence Against Women.
The Strategy, led by Women’s Health East, is a
partnership between the seven local governments
of the EMR, community health services and other
agencies that focus on primary prevention efforts
to end violence against women. Council will
continue to support the campaign in 2020/21.

Work in partnership to enhance the Maroondah
Hoarding and Squalor website enabling it to
become a State-wide resource

The Maroondah Hoarding and Squalor Network
commenced in 2014 for agencies and community
groups confronted with hoarding and squalor. The
group provides partners with an opportunity to
develop relationships, share skills and knowledge,
and establish positive collaborative outcomes.

A major achievement of the Network is the
development of a dedicated website for support
workers, and the family and friends of people
with hoarding tendencies, which contributes to
awareness of the condition and available avenues
of assistance. In 2020/21, the website will be
enhanced and become a state-wide resource.

Develop and deliver services in the Croydon
Community Wellbeing Precinct

The transformation of the existing Croydon Civic
Precinct into the Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct will focus on delivering enhanced
community spaces and functionality in relation to
wellbeing facilities, family and children facilities,
sport and recreation facilities, and open space.
These combined elements, proposed to become
integrated community hubs, will also enhance the
accessibility and connectivity for the community.

Implement Council’s annual sportsfield
improvement program

The sports field improvement program for 2020/21
will focus on enhancements to playing fields at
Silcock Reserve, which consist of two cricket ovals
and four soccer pitches.

Implement changes to emergency management
legislation and outcomes of Local Government
Victoria’s Councils and Emergencies Project

The Council and Emergencies Project is led by
the Department of Environment, Land, Water and
Planning (DELWP) through Local Government
Victoria (LGV) and was developed to address a
need identified by the sector and prioritised in the
Victorian Emergency Management Strategic Action
Plan. The priority seeks to ‘enhance the capability
and capacity of Local Governments to meet their
obligations in the management of emergencies’.
The Emergency Management Legislation
Amendment Act 2018 will come into effect in
December 2020.

Implement the changes that result from the
reform of the Environment Protection Act

Implementation of changes to the Environment
Protection Act have been postponed until 1 July
2021 to ease the burden on business, industries
and community members due to impacts of

the COVID-19 pandemic. In the interim, the
Environment Protection Authority Victoria (EPA)
will continue to regulate under the Environment
Protection Act 1970.
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Our core services

community

Council delivers a wide range of services aimed at promoting a safe, healthy and
active community. These services include:

Aquahub/Croydon Memorial Pool (Leisure)

Aquahub provides a variety of programs and
services to those in the community looking to
improve or maintain their health and wellbeing.
The facility provides a large gym, a comprehensive
group fitness program, aquatic facilities for both
general usage (lap swimming, recreation use,
individual rehab) and specialised programs (aqua
aerobics, rehab classes, special needs programs),
and a quality aquatic education program for all
ages and abilities. Croydon Memorial Pool has
served the community since 1962. The seasonal
outdoor pools provide for general usage (lap
swimming, recreation use) and specialised
programs (aquatic education, aqua aerobics,
school carnivals). The facility also provides a
summer venue for youth events and a family-
friendly destination during the summer months

Aquanation (Leisure)

Aqguanation features a 66.5metre 10 lane pool

with a 10metre diving tower and dry dive training
area. The facility also offers a warm water pool, a
dedicated learn to swim pool, large toddler and
children’s leisure play pool, two large waterslides, a
large gym with three separate group fitness rooms,
child care facilities and a café.

Community Health (Health, Local Laws and
Emergency Management)

This team plays an instrumental role protecting
and promoting the health and wellbeing of the
community through education and prevention
strategies. The function also initiates regulatory
intervention where there is a risk to the health,
wellbeing and/or safety of our community. A
broad range of proactive and reactive activities
are undertaken that include the registration

and assessment of food and health businesses;
statutory food and water sampling; communicable
disease investigations; preventative health
services; direct immunisation services including
a flu program, and general health promotion and
education activities.
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Emergency Management (Health, Local Laws and
Emergency Management)

Activities supporting prevention, response, and
recovery from disasters within the Maroondah
municipality and the surrounding Eastern region
are a key focus of the Emergency Management
team. The team is currently playing a significant
role in Council’s response to the COVID-19
pandemic in coordination, relief and recovery
planning.

Local Laws
(Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management)

The Local Laws team provide a broad range of
services to ensure the amenity, function and safety
of the City of Maroondah is maintained to a high
standard. The activities include the registration and
management of domestic animals; ensuring the
management of safe and accessible car parking;
protection of resident and business amenity and
safety; fire preparedness and prevention; and
managing Maroondah’s 73 school crossings.

Leisure Marketing (Leisure)

Maroondah Leisure’s marketing team partners

with and supports the Maroondah Leisure facility
teams to develop and deliver communication

and marketing to the consumer market and
customers. The team provides expertise in business
development, marketing and communication
campaign and channel management and work
closely with venue teams to respond and deliver to
business plan and venue budgets, whilst meeting
customer needs and expectations.





Maroondah Golf and Sportsfields (Leisure)

Maroondah Golf offers two 18-hole public courses
to the community. Ringwood Golf is on Canterbury
Road and is often referred to as one of Melbourne’s
leading public access courses. The course offers
golf lessons, practice facilities, a fully stocked golf
shop and a café. Dorset Golf is located in Trawalla
Road, Croydon and offers a fully stocked golf shop,
golf lessons and practice facilities. The Maroondah
Golf team also provide maintenance of Council’s
parks and gardens, sportsfields and playgrounds.
This includes grass mowing and maintenance of
landscaped areas within the municipality.

Maroondah Leisure Sales and Membership
(Leisure)

The Maroondah Leisure Sales and Membership
team work in conjunction with the Maroondah
Leisure facility teams and Marketing team in
acquiring new perpetual members as well as

the management of existing Maroondah Leisure
members. The membership team facilitates

the needs of the business and the customers
through business planning, financial management,
communication internally and externally and
maintaining positive customer relationships. The
major focus is to ensure an exceptional customer
experience through service delivery.

Maternal and Child Health (Community Services)

The Maternal and Child Health (MCH) service is

a state-wide universal service for families with
children from birth to school age. The service is
delivered from seven Maternal and Child Health
centres across the municipality and is provided

in partnership with the Department of Education
and Training (DET). Council also provides an
enhanced service focusing on children, mothers
and families at risk of poor health and community
wellbeing outcomes. Support is provided in the
home, the maternal and child health centre and
other locations within the community. The service
supports families and their children in the areas
of parenting, development, and assessment,
promotion of health and development, wellbeing
and safety, social supports, referrals and links
with communities. It includes key ages and stages
consultations and a flexible service component.

Council’s enhanced MCH service focuses on
children, mothers and families at risk of poor
health and wellbeing outcomes, where multiple
risk factors for poor health outcomes are present.
The team also delivers parent education programs,
drop in sessions and a lactation service. A new
addition to the MCH Service is the Supported
Playgroup Program which includes five facilitated
playgroups for vulnerable families with children
who have needs.

Sport and Recreation (Leisure)

Sport and Recreation supports and encourages
increased community involvement in physical
activity by coordinating the delivery of programs,
activities and events such as the annual Maroondah
Festival and Run Maroondah. The team also seeks
to maximise opportunities for community-based
physical activity by supporting club capacity

and improving infrastructure. This is achieved
through advocacy; providing information and

skill development to local clubs and groups;
establishing partnerships; and monitoring
participation patterns to ensure local service
planning remains relevant to community needs.
Sport and Recreation is also responsible for
managing occupancy of Council’s sporting facilities
and pavilions including seasonal allocations, leases,
licences and casual use.

The Rings and Maroondah Nets (Leisure)

The Rings is a four-court indoor stadium in
Ringwood. The venue offers a range of both
junior and adult competitions and programs,
mainly catering for basketball and netball. The
Rings conducts school holiday activities including
multisport programs and skills coaching.

Maroondah Nets is a new facility which
commenced operations in May 2019. The indoor
facility has multipurpose rooms, gym, café and
caters for four netball courts, six volleyball and
badminton courts plus table tennis. In addition,
there are also four outdoor netball courts. The
facility caters for junior and senior competitions,
casual hire and holiday programs.

Maroondah Nets caters for netball, volleyball,
badminton and table tennis
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A prosperous and learning
community

Our vision

In 2040, Maroondah will be a thriving regional centre of economic activity
and education, where the sustainable growth of local businesses is supported,
and diverse lifelong learning opportunities are accessible for all community
members.

Our commitments

Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified eight priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards a prosperous and learning community.

Continue to develop Regional Service Partnerships such as
procurement efficiencies, library services and advocacy

The Eastern Regional Group of Councils has progressed joint
advocacy in support of funding to key Council services, housing
affordability and homelessness. This has included cost recovery
for support to fire affected councils, and access to JobKeeper for
Council employees impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

TP S

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Over 300 businesses were
contacted by phone to offer

Work in partnership to implement the 5“2?3{;%‘g‘v“.%f{‘;s:;gy;;??es
Bayswater/Bayswater North Industrial

Precinct Strategy to assist local businesses

and promote investment attraction

Council is working in partnership with Knox and Yarra Ranges
Councils to develop an overarching strategic framework for the
revitalisation of the Bayswater Business Precinct (BBP) to attract
future investment, maximise business performance and generate
employment growth for the region. The partnership has implemented
a Business to Business (B2B) social platform, BBP Connect, which
was launched in June 2020 along with a complimentary BBP Jobs
platform to connect local jobseekers, businesses and training and
education providers. The project has been successful in gaining
funding and is working in partnership with the Victorian Government
Responsibility: Strategy and to develop a transformation strategy. Led by the Victorian

Gy Government, the design for the widening of Canterbury Road as a
key component of Victoria’s principle freight network is progressing.
Elements of the BBP partnership have been impacted by coronavirus
(COVID-19), with the project exploring ways of connecting and
working online.

Status: In progress

Develop, promote and expand the BizHub Coworking Space

BizHub is located within Realm and provides a flexible working space
for local businesses on a permanent or a casual basis. Members were
surveyed during 2019/20 to gain insights into improving the services
offered such as mentoring, workshops and business support. The
COVID-19 pandemic saw the temporary closure of the space and

the introduction of an online platform, S/ack, as a means of keeping

g . the co-workers connected through online peer-to-peer mentoring,

I i~, collaboration and education.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Plan and implement carparking improvements in the
Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre and the Croydon
Activity Centre

Council has successfully advocated for Australian Government
funding for the construction of multi-level carparks in the Ringwood

Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC) and the Croydon Major Activity
Centre. Both multi-level carparks are currently in the design phase.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Work in partnership to facilitate appropriate development
within the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC) and
Croydon Major Activity Centre

The ongoing partnership between Council, businesses and the
community within Maroondah’s key activity centres is creating

an engaging, community focused program which positions the
Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC) and the Croydon
Major Activity Centre as two of Melbourne’s premier urban
destinations. Improvements to the amenity of Maroondah Highway
have continued through graffiti removal, an innovative public

art program and a partnership approach between Council and
property owners in Ringwood MAC. Work also commenced on

St [l iere e the development of an upgraded Maroondah Highway boulevard.
Responsibility: Strategy and To further drive investment in the Ringwood and Croydon
Celm Wy activity centres, proactive discussions have been held with major

landowners, Swinburne University, privately owned shopping
centres and developers to explore potential opportunities for
partnerships and future development.

Undertake a strategic review of shopping centres in Maroondah
and develop a Community Shopping Centre Strategy

Work continued throughout the year on a strategic review of
Maroondah’s neighbourhood and local shopping centres. Boundaries
were mapped for 31 centres, business owners confirmed, and a
comprehensive audit of above ground infrastructure was undertaken.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Implement the changes that result from the Small Business
Victoria Regulation Review in relation to the Food Act

The Better Approvals Project is a collaboration between Council

and Small Business Victoria which has involved a suite of reforms

to improve the small business customer experience. The project

was implemented in April 2020, providing a more streamlined
approach to supporting businesses in the Maroondah area. During
the COVID-19 pandemic, assistance was provided to small businesses
serving food, helping them to quickly adapt their mode of service
delivery, implement social distancing measures, as well as providing
quick approval under the Food Act (1984).

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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As part of the Croydon Community Precinct development,
plan and deliver the Croydon Library integrated Customer
Service project

In late 2019, Council shifted its customer service presence from the
former Croydon Civic offices into Croydon Library. This integration
of customer service within the library will serve as a working model
in preparation for the new hub within the Croydon Community
Wellbeing Precinct into the future.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Corporate Services

Our strategic indicator results

Indicator/Measure Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

2019/20 | 2019/20 | 2018/19| 2017/18| 2016/17 | 2015/16
Library membership as a proportion 16.20% 15.88% 16.26% 16.18% 14.9% 24.2%
of the residential population

Participant satisfaction with business 90% 100% 97% 97% 96.5% 96%
support workshops
Increase in new business skills 90% N/A* 98% 97% 96% 93%

and networking achieved through
BizZWeek activities

* BizWeek postponed in 2019/20 due to the COVID-19 pandemic

7@

1

WomenGig

The Women On The Go expo celebrates women in business and is a collaboration
between Maroondah City Council, Knox City Council, and Yarra Ranges Council
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community

Our achievements

A prosperous and learning

In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a prosperous and learning
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a prosperous community

BizHub supports our businesses during
the COVID-19 pandemic

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Council’s
BizHub team mobilised quickly to establish a
triage service for Maroondah-based small to
medium enterprises (SMEs). This service linked
businesses to a range of professional advice
including business, legal, financial and mental
health support services. Together with the
Melbourne East Regional Economic Development
Group (MEREDG) and Eastern Region Councils,
businesses were surveyed on the impact of the
pandemic on their operations, with the results
informing Council’s actions. Hundreds of local
businesses were contacted by phone directly and
offered support. ‘We're Still Open’ and ‘Be Kind
to Business’ campaigns were launched for local
shopping centres, offering support for businesses
who were still trading, including social distancing
decals on footpaths.

New offerings for our small business community

Council has broadened its support offerings

to Maroondah’s small business community by
strengthening its partnerships with the Victorian
Chamber of Commerce and Industry and the
Australian Small Business Advisory Service Digital
Solutions to provide access to a broader range

of workshops and development programs for our
small to medium enterprises (SMEs). The COVID-19
pandemic saw many of these offerings transferred
online to enable SMEs to continue to gain value
from the webinars and other business support
incentives rolled out by Council during

the pandemic.
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Council progressed a Special Charge Scheme for
Croydon Main Street Traders Association

In April 2019, the Croydon Main Street Traders
Association (CMSTA) lodged a petition with
Council to commence the statutory process to
declare a new Special Charge Scheme that will
operate for a five year period. Following extensive
consultation with traders, the statutory process
was completed and Council declared the Special
Charge Scheme at its October meeting in 2019.
The funds raised by the scheme will be used by
CMSTA for promotional events, advertising, the
employment of a part-time Shopping Centre
Co-ordinator and activities which aim to increase
commerce, patronage, safety, visual appeal and
vitality of the Croydon Main Street precinct. In
April 2020, the traders asked for the scheme to
be placed on hold due to the impact of COVID-19
restrictions, and it will be reactivated when
appropriate.

Supporting the Maroondah Business Group

Council continues to be an active member and
supporter of the Maroondah Business Group
following its formation in 2019. This group
actively supports the local business community
by promoting shared learning, collaboration,
engagement and advocacy.





Working towards a learning community

Developing youth leadership

Through the annual Student Wellbeing Action Team
(SWAT) program, Council worked with a select
group of Year 10 students fromm Maroondah schools
who were keen to take their leadership to the next
level. SWAT supports young people to uncover
their strengths and use their new skills to lead a
wellbeing project in their own school. The 2019
SWAT presentation night, held at Aguinas College
in October, involved presentations on the wellbeing
projects that the 24 participating students had
developed and implemented at their schools. The
2020 SWAT program has been cancelled due to
COVID-19 restrictions and school closures.

Council’s Kindergarten Expo

Council’'s Kindergarten Expo, in March 2020, was
again highly successful with approximately 189
parents attending. All Maroondah kindergartens
were present to promote their centre and
discuss timetables, learning and their programs
with families. Families could also learn about
services provided by the Maroondah Integrated
Kindergarten Association (MIKA); Council’s
Maternal and Child Health and immunisation teams;
the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS);
and the Department of Education and Training.

Continued implementation of the Volunteer, Work
Experience and Student Placement Programs

Council continued to provide its volunteering and
Student Placement Program until placements were
put on hold due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
program provides opportunities for volunteers and
students to support the wider community, support
their studies and provide practical work experience.
Council volunteers assist with programs such

as Delivered Meals, maintaining our bushland,
reserves and community gardens, arts and cultural
programs, and advisory committees.

Maroondah graduates more drivers from its
L2P program

The L2P program continued for its fifth year with
over 304 hours of practice provided by volunteer
mentor drivers. The program matches learner
drivers with a fully licensed volunteer mentor to
help them gain the required 120 hours of driving
experience to be eligible for a probationary
driver’s licence. The program is particularly
valuable for those learner drivers who do not have
easy access to either a car or supervisor with a
full licence. Volunteer mentor drivers are provided
with comprehensive training and support. During
COVID-19 restrictions, the program has been
suspended due to physical distancing restrictions,
impacting the hours that were able to be
delivered. The program will recommence once
restrictions have eased.

Support for kindergartens during the
COVID-19 pandemic

Council offered increased assistance to
kindergartens during the COVID-19 pandemic,
supporting early education providers as they
adapted their services to deliver programs both
on-site and at home, ensuring children and families
continued to be engaged.

Community Houses offer education programs and
essential services during the COVID-19 pandemic

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Community
Houses continued to provide a focal point for
community engagement, making changes to their
service delivery and activities in order to comply
with COVID-19 restrictions. Community Houses
continued to offer accredited education programs
and essential services such as childcare, emergency
relief and health and wellbeing programs.

Accessible library services during the
COVID-19 pandemic

Despite the suspension of Maroondah’s libraries
and the click-and-collect service as a result of
COVID-19 restrictions, Eastern Regional Libraries
arranged for the community to continue accessing
books, magazines and DVDs through a ‘Click for
Home Delivery’ postal service. To keep children at
home entertained, libraries streamed ‘Storytime
Live’ to the Eastern Regional Libraries (ERL)
Facebook page each weekday at 1lam.
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Looking ahead

A prosperous and learning

In continuing to work towards a prosperous and learning community during

2020/21, Council will:

Undertake a strategic review of shopping centres
in Maroondah

A comprehensive review of shopping centres

in Maroondah is being undertaken which will
complement the 20-Minute Neighbourhood
Project. It is expected that this will be completed
in 2020/21 and provide a basis for prioritising
amenity works in the centres.

Work in partnership to implement the Bayswater
Business Precinct Strategy to assist local
businesses and promote investment attraction

The Bayswater Business Precinct Strategy is a
partnership with Knox and Yarra Ranges Councils
to maintain and strengthen the economic value
of the Bayswater Business Precinct. Consultants
have been engaged to develop a transformation
strategy following a successful bid for funding.
Once completed the need for a movement and
place plan will be considered. During 2020/21,
work will continue on the implementation of BBP
Connect (Business-to-Business platform) and BBP
Jobs - connecting job seekers with employers.

Develop and promote the BizHub
Coworking Space

The BizHub Coworking Space in Realm, provides
a flexible working space for local businesses on a
permanent or casual basis. BizHub will continue
to be reviewed and modified during 2020/21

to ensure it meets the needs of its members

and responds to the challenges of an evolving
coworking industry.
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Plan and implement carparking improvements in
the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre and
the Croydon Major Activity Centre

The review of the Ringwood and Croydon
parking strategies has commenced with internal
consultation underway. Both strategies will

be completed in late 2020 following external
community consultation, although this may be
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Design

is underway for multi-level car parks in the
Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC)
and the Croydon Major Activity Centre with the
construction schedule yet to be finalised.

Work in partnership to facilitate appropriate
development within the Ringwood
Metropolitan Activity Centre and

Croydon Major Activity Centre

This partnership between Council and key
stakeholders has focused on developing an
engaging, community focused program to
position and promote the Ringwood Metropolitan
Activity Centre (MAC) and the Croydon Major
Activity Centre as two of Melbourne’s premier
urban destinations. During 2020/21, work will
continue on a number of projects, including
design of the Maroondah Highway boulevard, a
Masterplan for Staley Gardens and endorsement
of the Amendment C130 to the Maroondah
Planning Scheme.

Implement the Better Approvals Project

The Better Approvals Project, which is a
collaboration between Council and Small
Business Victoria, aims to improve the small
business customer experience. The project has
identified opportunities to improve Council’s
small business permit process across statutory
planning, health, building and local laws. Changes
to be implemented in 2020/21 include a customer
centric design, the introduction of a small business
concierge, and improved communication and
information on the permit process.





Our core services

Council delivers a number of services aimed at promoting a prosperous and
learning community. These services include:

Business and Activity Centre Development Libraries

Business and Activity Centre Development delivers (Revenue, Property and Customer Service)

support and development programs for the Council provides two library facilities - one at
business community and manages the relationships Realm in Ringwood and one at Civic Square in
between Council, businesses and community. The Croydon. The library service is delivered under a
team delivers a collaborative co-working space, regional partnership model by Eastern Regional
programs, information, training, and opportunities Libraries Corporation.

for businesses to connect and support business

growth and employment throughout the region.

The team also stewards development of the

Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre and

the Croydon Major Activity Centre by fostering

partnerships that improve the viability and

prosperity of these important commercial hubs.

These partnerships are enhanced through

co-ordination of activations and programs at Realm

and Ringwood Town Square.

Realm library
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A vibrant and culturally
rich community

Our vision

In 2040, Maroondah will be a vibrant and creative community recognised for
celebration of the arts, cultural expression and diverse entertainment options.

Our commitments

Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified four priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards a vibrant and culturally rich community.

Commence development of an Arts and Cultural
Development Strategy 2019-2023

A review of the Arts and Cultural Development Strategy 2014-2018
was undertaken in 2018 and the timeframe for the next Strategy
adjusted to the 2020-2025 period. During 2019/20, community and
stakeholder consultation was undertaken, and the Arts and Cultural
Development Strategy 2020-2025 was endorsed by Council in
March 2020.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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27,000 people participated in
Maroondah Festival activities

Establish a new Arts Advisory

Committee and implement new public art
across Maroondah in accordance with
Council’s Public Art Policy

The Maroondah Arts Advisory Committee comprises three
Councillors and five industry representatives. Established in May
2018, the Committee meets quarterly and has contributed to the
development of the Maroondah Arts and Cultural Development
Strategy 2020-2025; directions for new Public Art commissions;
input into the Maroondah 2040 Refresh; and ideas for the growth
and display of Council’s Maroondah Art Collection.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Complete the $15 million Karralyka redevelopment

Design works have commenced for the $15 million Karralyka
redevelopment and will continue over the next few years. The
proposed redevelopment will include a new entrance and foyer; and
an outdoor paved terraced area leading from the function rooms.
The redevelopment will also include an additional function room and
a new video-conferencing board room, both of which will enable
Karralyka to increase its offering for training and conference activity.
A range of disability groups in the eastern region that use Karralyka
for functions and performances will have improved accessibility and
facilities for their participants and supporters. The redevelopment

ReépLor)Sibi”ty: Operations, Assets works are subject to the allocation of external funding.
an elsure

Status: In progress

Further develop the programming and profile of the
Ringwood arts precinct

The Ringwood arts precinct consists of a network of indoor and
outdoor formal and informal facilities and sites. Current areas of
focus include a guided Urban Art Tour including indoor and outdoor
street art and public art works commissioned by QIC and Council.
The tour has been developed in partnership with Eastland with

the first tours undertaken in December 2019. Other sites for arts
development have included identified locations along Maroondah
Highway in Ringwood. The first location to involve public art
treatment helped to address amenity and graffiti issues and involved
Minna Leunig’s painted mural ‘The Anthropocene’. Arts activities
Responsibility: Strategy and have been undertaken online or in modified form, such as self-guided
GO walks, as part of the response to the COVID-19 pandemic, with
activities to recommence once restrictions are lifted.

Status: In progress
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A vibrant and culturally rich
community

Our strategic indicator results

Indicator/Measure Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16

Community satisfaction with arts and
cultural facilities

Participation in Maroondah Festival 27,000 27,000 27,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
activities (est) (est) (est)
Community members participating in 1659 N/A* 1626 1589 1659 1520
classes at Wyreena Community Arts

Centre

* Term 2 and 3 classes at Wyreena Community Arts Centre cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic

Maroondah Youth Services team at Maroondah Festival
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Our achievements

In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a vibrant and culturally rich
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a vibrant and culturally rich community

Indigenous arts and culture celebrated

Council has continued to work in close partnership
with Indigenous artists, community and cultural
groups to build on and promote the richness

of Indigenous arts and culture to the whole
community. Highlights during 2019/20 included:
the introduction of Ringwood Urban Art Tour
which includes a range of Indigenous public art;
inspiring traditional arts and crafts community
workshops with Aunty Daphne Milward and Aunty
Irene Norman; and an “Indigenous perspectives
on the Anthropocene” exhibition at Maroondah
Federation Estate Gallery, in association with

the 2019 R&M McGivern Art Prize. A number of
Reconciliation Week celebrations moved to an
online format, with Kutcha Edwards performing
online and hosting a question and answer session.

All-ages live music event at EV’s Youth Centre

The FReeZA team have delivered a range of
events during 2019/20 including a ‘metal’ show
at EV’s Youth Centre attracting 101 participants,
and a skate competition at Y Space in Croydon.
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, all live
events were temporarily suspended. During
these restrictions, the FReeZA team delivered a
successful online event involving an Instagram
livestream with 301 participants.

Children’s Week activities

A range of events and online activities were held
in Maroondah during October 2019 to celebrate
Children’s Week. Wyreena Community Arts Centre
held a Halloween themed event, which attracted

a huge response from the community with over
1000 people attending the weeknight event.
Families dressed in Halloween costumes with
roving entertainment, craft activities and the Silver
Birches building was transformed into a magical
space with a treasure quest theme. Unfortunately,
the Children’s Fun Day did not proceed due to
inclement weather.

Another successful Maroondah Festival

In November 2019, the 30th Maroondah Festival
attracted a crowd of more than 27,000 people.
There were hundreds of free and low-cost
activities on offer for people of all ages with many
community groups providing information and
entertainment. The day included: a sensory garden,
various stages with local performers, food trucks,
community workshops and rides for children of

all ages. The event is considered the largest free
community event operating in Melbourne’s east.
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Karralyka’s 40th Birthday

Karralyka celebrated 40 years of hosting arts and
cultural events with a birthday event held on the
outdoor lawn on 23 February 2020. Residents
enjoyed guest appearances, entertainment, music,
food trucks and free cake. Entertainment was
provided on the main stage by MC Dave O’Neil,
ABC'’s Lah Lah’s Big Live Band, Chart Topping 80’s
Band, and The Code One band. Children enjoyed

a magic fairy show, a reptile experience, free face
painting, interactive games, rides and music for the
whole family.

Events in Ringwood Town Square

The year saw increasing popularity of events

held in Ringwood including the annual Christmas
festivities and open-air movie nights held in
conjunction with Eastland. Ringwood Town Square
and Realm continue to be vibrant spaces for our
community. Events and activities were suspended
from March to June 2020 in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Wetlands, as it perches on reeds
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New public art in Tarralla Creek wetlands

Installed in November 2019, lan Bracegirdle’s
Spotted Marsh Frog is located in Town Park,
Croydon, near the Fred Geale Oval. The latest
installation features the Spotted Marsh Frog,
a species found in the nearby Tarralla Creek
wetlands. The provision of public art around
Maroondah is guided by Council’s Public Art
Policy, which demonstrates Council’s commitment
to public art in Maroondah and responds to
the community’s desire for traditional and
contemporary art forms in public settings.

Karralyka performances online

Despite the cancellation and postponement of
performances due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
Karralyka offered livestreaming of certain
performances for residents to enjoy from home.
Toe Tapping Tuesday’s offered free livestreamed
performances by well-known performers and up
and coming talent across a range of genres.

o

lan Bracegirdle’s sculpture captures the Spotted Marsh Frog, a species found in the nearby Tarralla Creek






76,822 guests attended
Karralyka in 2019/20
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A vibrant and culturally rich
community

Looking ahead

In continuing to work towards a vibrant and culturally rich community during
2020/21, Council will:

Design the Karralyka redevelopment, and Implement the new Arts and Cultural
undertake staged redevelopment works Development Strategy 2020-2025

Design has commenced for the $15 million The Maroondah Arts and Cultural Development
Karralyka redevelopment and work will continue Strategy 2020-2025 was endorsed by Council
over the next few years subject to funding. The in March 2020. The new strategy will guide and
proposed redevelopment will include a new inform a range of arts and cultural activities over
entrance foyer, an additional function room, the next five years.

outdoor plaza space and improved accessibility.

Karralyka
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Our core services

Council delivers a number of services aimed at promoting a vibrant and
culturally rich community. These services include:

Arts and Cultural Development
(Community Services)

Arts and Cultural Development work in partnership
with the community, artists and cultural
producers, and across Council to realise the
community’s vision for a creative and culturally
vibrant Maroondah. The team delivers a range of
facilities, programs and services, which attract
high levels of visitation from Maroondah and the
eastern region. These include ArtSpace at Realm
and other initiatives across the Ringwood arts
precinct; Wyreena Community Arts Centre in
Croydon; Maroondah Federation Estate Gallery
and the Maroondah City Council Art Collection,
as well as the Public Art Collection which is sited
across Maroondah. Local artists, creative industry
professionals, community and cultural groups
are supported through capacity building, skills
development and networking opportunities in
addition to financial support through the Arts
and Cultural Grants program. The team provides
cultural planning advice and expertise across
Council contributing to creative placemaking, the
appreciation of cultural heritage, and embedding
the value of the arts and creativity for wellbeing
and quality of life across social, environmental and
economic domains.

Karralyka, Maroondah Federation Estate and
Maroondah community halls (Leisure)

Karralyka opened in 1980 and is a premier theatre
and function centre in Melbourne’s eastern suburbs
and the only facility of this size in Maroondah.

The theatre has a seating capacity of 428 and
generates positive demand as a ‘venue for hire’

as well as presenting its own programs to bring
performing arts to the Maroondah community.
Karralyka is a flexible function venue with a total
capacity for 550 seated guests. The kitchen
facilities at Karralyka are also used to prepare food
for Council’s Delivered Meals service. The team

at Karralyka also oversee the management and
booking of Maroondah Federation Estate and eight
Maroondah community halls.

Maroondah Federation Estate
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A clean, green and
sustainable community

Our vision

In 2040, Maroondah will be a resilient community committed to sustainable
living, enhancing our natural environment, and providing leadership in
responding to climate change.

Our commitments

Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified four priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards a clean, green and sustainable community.

Finalise the Maroondah Vegetation Review and prepare
planning controls for inclusion in the Maroondah
Planning Scheme

Council progressed the Maroondah Vegetation Review during
2019/20 and adopted the Vegetation Strategy at its meeting on
16 March 2020. Implementation of the actions within the Strategy,
including a revision of planning controls within the Maroondah
Planning Scheme is now underway.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Tree and shrub foliage cover
across Maroondah in January

i i 2019 was estimated as being
Work in partnership to undertake s e o
renewal works on the Mullum Mullum computer-based learning
and Dandenong Creek shared trails methodology.

Renewal works for the Dandenong Creek shared trail, from
Colchester Road to Dorset Road, were completed in April 2020.
This included removal of the existing asphalt footpath, the
construction of a wider concrete footpath and minor alterations to
the alignment of the path to improve offset to vegetation. Project
planning for Mullum Mullum Creek shared trail renewal works
commenced in 2019/20. Construction has been deferred until
Status: In progress 2020/21 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Introduce an environmentally sustainable development policy
into the Maroondah Planning Scheme

Council commenced a new environmentally sustainable design
function to provide advice to the community, developers and
planning officers to incorporate sustainable design initiatives

into both residential and commercial developments. A draft

policy is currently under preparation with the intention to expand
requirements to all areas of the municipality, not just Ringwood
Metropolitan Activity Centre. It is anticipated that Council will seek

Status: In progress authorisation from the Minister for Planning for public exhibition
Responsibility: Strategy and in 2020.
Community

Tender and implement contracts for waste collection,
landfill and the receipt and sorting of recyclables to meet
community need and expectations across all waste streams
as identified in the Waste Management Strategy 2019-2029

] implemented in 2020. This Strategy will help direct and drive the
\(‘/ needs within each of its waste contracts. Additionally, specifications

ensure that Council is in the best possible position when looking
Status: In progress to implement its new contracts. Tenders have been postponed for

‘]'L ) Council is developing a new Waste Strategy, which aims to be
are being developed and advocacy work undertaken to help
Responsibility: Corporate Services twelve months due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Our strategic indicator results

Indicator/Measure Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2019/20 | 2019/20| 2018/19| 2017/18| 2016/17 | 2015/16

Annual tree planting within 15,000 23,000 17,500 25,000 24,500 23,000
Maroondah
Recycling diversion rate from landfill 54% 56.83% 54.56% 5414%  54.94% 53.96%
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A clean, green and
sustainable community

Our achievements

In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a clean, green and sustainable
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a clean community

Domestic Wastewater Management Strategy
Action Plan developed

An action plan has been developed to continue
to implement the Domestic Wastewater
Management Strategy over the next two years.
Some of the actions include developing a guide
to maintaining domestic waste water systems,
running a de-sludge maintenance reminder
program, developing a ‘New Owners Kit’ for
new owners of unsewered properties, and
updating mapping overlays with the Community
Sewerage Program.

Desilting completed

Major desilting and waterbody reinstatement
works were completed at Settlers Orchard
Reserve in Croydon Hills and in the Ringwood
Lake waterbody and pondage system. Additional
major desilting works were undertaken in pond
1and 2 at The Range estate wetlands. Desilting
and reinstalment works were completed in top
and middle sediment ponds at Yarrunga Reserve.
The major lower pond was partially desilted, and
a condition report collated on the lower pondage
assets (bridge and ramps). The Dell drainage
reserve was reconstructed and realigned including
rock beaching, creek widening along with new
drainage pits and related infrastructure.

Major desilting and waterbody reinstatement works at Settlers Orchard Reserve in Croydon Hills
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Working towards a green community

Council’s annual planting program

Maroondah’s streets, parks and bushland reserves
are benefiting from Council’s annual planting
program. Among the new plantings are 1200 street
trees including native gums, wattle, eucalypts,
acacia and bottlebrushes and a selection of exotic
species such as crepe myrtles, Chinese elms, and
flowering pear. Approximately 7500 seedlings,
understory plantings and grasses have been
planted at our parks and reserves, with around
25,000 indigenous plants and trees now at home
in bushland reserves. Thousands of trees, shrubs
and grasses are planted annually throughout
Maroondah, either in place of plants that have
reached the end of their lifecycle, or to build on
our leafy environment. Where possible, Council
plants indigenous species to ensure longevity of
existing plant and wildlife populations. Over the
past 12 months, Council has planted 1500 plants in
park areas, 1800 plants in neighbourhood shopping
centres, 800 plants at Ringwood Lake Park, and
3400 plants at Maroondah Nets in Heathmont.

Council’s Bushland team work to conserve bushland reserves

Council’s garden bed refurbishment program

During 2019/20, Council has undertaken a garden
bed refurbishment program to refresh garden beds
at Croydon Town Park, McAdam Square, McAlpin
Reserve, Merrindale Shopping Centre, in addition
to Maroondah’s gateway signage locations and a
range of neighbourhood shopping centres.

National Tree Day

Council celebrated National Tree Day in July 2019
with a number of planting activities with local
school groups. The canopy replacement program
continued to supplement exiting trees which are
declining in number. With fewer replacement
trees growing naturally, Council is committed to
planting trees in Maroondah’s bushland reserves
to maintain tree canopy.

Maintaining our bushland

Council, in partnership with volunteer groups,
undertook a continuous maintenance program
during 2019/20 that involved control of weed
species, planting of new trees to maintain tree
canopy and other works to both conserve the
bushland reserves and enhance their biodiversity.
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A clean, green and
sustainable community

Our achievements

Working towards a sustainable community

Environmental Upgrade Agreement

In October 2019, Council endorsed proceeding
with Environmental Upgrade Finance (EUF), a
financing mechanism enabling Maroondah building
owners to better access finance (lower rates

and longer terms) for environmental upgrades

to existing non-residential buildings. An EUF

is a three-party agreement between a building
owner (borrower), a financial institution (lender)
and a Local Government Authority (LGA). An
Environmental Upgrade Agreement (EUA) is

used to levy an Environmental Upgrade Charge

on the property which is payable back to the
lender through the rates system. Council is using
this approach, consistent with Maroondah 2040
and Council’s Sustainability Strategy, to support
industries and enterprises to prosper and develop
by facilitating low carbon businesses, stimulating a
green economy, and facilitating resource efficient
businesses.
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Sustainability Activities Report 2016 - 2020

Council’s Sustainability Activities Report describes
the progress of implementation of the 2016
Sustainability Strategy. Some of the highlights
identified within this review include: the reduction
in greenhouse gases by 26 percent compared

to 2010/11 levels; participating in the Local
Government Power Purchasing Agreement project
to procure renewable energy from 2021/22 for
some of Council’s large energy use sites; preparing
Council’s first Climate Change Risk and Adaptation
Strategy 2018/19 - 2021/22; and hosting the Living
Maroondah Symposium bringing together the
community and a range of expert speakers to
discuss the value of vegetation. The evaluation
provided within the report, and advice from the
Maroondah Environment Advisory Committee, will
now assist Council in commencing development of
a new Sustainability Strategy in late 2020.






Looking ahead

In continuing to work towards a clean, green and sustainable community during

2020/21, Council will:

Work in partnership to implement the
Reimagining Tarralla Creek project

Council is working in partnership with Melbourne
Water, Yarra Valley Water and the Department of
Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP)
on the project design and construction delivery

of the Tarralla Creek Connects project. Design
development in partnership with Melbourne Water
is progressing with the first stage of construction
expected to commence in 2020/21.

Complete the tender and implement contracts
for waste collection, landfill and the receipt and
sorting of recyclables

Council is developing a new Waste Strategy, which
aims to be implemented in 2020. This Strategy
will help direct and drive the needs within each of
its waste contracts. Additionally, in 2020/21 the
tender and contracts for waste collection, landfill
and the receipt and sorting of recyclables will be
completed.

Introduce the Maroondah Environmentally
Sustainable Design Policy into the Maroondah
Planning Scheme

Council commenced a new environmentally
sustainable design function to provide advice to
the community, developers and planning officers
to incorporate sustainable design initiatives into
both residential and commercial developments. A
draft policy is currently under preparation with the
intention to expand requirements to all areas of
the municipality, not just Ringwood Metropolitan
Activity Centre. It is anticipated that Council will
seek authorisation from the Minister for Planning
for public exhibition in 2020.

Undertake a review and update Council’s
Sustainability Strategy and Carbon Neutral
Strategy

Following the completion of the Sustainability
Activities Report for 2016-2020, project

planning will now commence on preparing a

new Sustainability Strategy that responds to the
evaluation of the past strategy and the advice of
the Maroondah Environment Advisory Committee.
A review of the Carbon Neutral Strategy will be
undertaken in 2021.

Implement an accelerated streetscape
enhancement program, including a significant
increase in tree planting

The streetscape enhancement program will
continue in 2020/21 with significant tree planting.
Council is also investigating the potential to
undertake planned fuel reduction burns in selected
bushland reserves in partnership with the Country
Fire Authority (CFA).

|
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The streetscape enhancement program will
continue in 2020/21 with significant tree planting
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Our core services

A clean, green and
sustainable community

Council delivers a range of services aimed at promoting a clean, green and sus-
tainable community. These services include:

Bushland and Waterways (Operations)

The team maintains 42 bushland reserves, which
involves proactively supporting, conserving

and enhancing biodiversity and maintaining
appropriate fire breaks. The team also maintains
water sensitive urban design elements and
waterways that are under Council management.

Park Maintenance (Operations)

The team maintains Council managed parks

and gardens including proactive and reactive
maintenance of landscaped areas, grass mowing,
and programmed tree planting in parks and
reserves. The team also maintains Council’s
playgrounds in accordance with Australian
Standards and Best Practice, Council’s reserve
fence line half cost fencing program, and Marveloo
hire bookings.

Tree Maintenance (Operations)

The team maintains Council’s tree assets including
all street trees and trees within parks and reserves.
They undertake proactive tree inspections;
remedial tree work and reactive inspections in
response to customer requests or storm events;
and Council’s street tree planting program.

Waste Management (Finance and Governance)

The team provides residential and commercial
waste services to the Maroondah community,
including public recycling bins, street litter bins,
parks and reserves bins and Council facility bins.
The team manages the contracts for kerbside
collection, receipt and sorting, green organics, and
land fill collection. Services also include on-call
hard waste collection, a schools and community
waste education program and strategic planning to
meet future waste management needs.

sl LA

Council maintains tree assets including all street trees and trees within parks and reserves
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Just over 26,521 tonnes of
garden organics and recyclables
were collected in 2019/20
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Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified four priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards an accessible and connected community

Council has continued its advocacy campaign to State and Federal
Members and Ministers for a range of key priority transportation
projects. Council’s comprehensive advocacy strategy resulted in
approximately $180 million in budget and election commitments
for the Maroondah community across both Victorian and Australian
levels of government. This included: $60 million from the Australian
Government for four multi-level car parks in Ringwood, Croydon,
Heathmont and at Heatherdale Station, with construction due

to commence from late 2020, and $2 million from the Victorian
Government for East Ringwood Station carpark improvement
Responsibility: Communications works; $80 million for road improvements including the intersection
2iE] g R of Wantirna Road and Reilly Street in Ringwood; an upgrade to
Plymouth Road in Croydon Hills; upgrades to Dorset Road north of
Hull Road; and an upgrade to Canterbury Road between Dorset and
Liverpool Roads.

Status: In progress
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A total of 2579 students from
local schools participated in
the Walk to School Program,

completing a total of
23,065 walks

Council has continued the
implementation of its footpath construction
program to provide improved pedestrian safety. The 2019/20
footpath construction program comprised: Armstrong Road in
Heathmont (shared path on west side of road); Barkly Street in
Ringwood (between New Street and Maidstone Street); Macey Grove
in Ringwood North (on both sides of the road); Rosebank Avenue
in Ringwood North (on both sides of the road from Warrandyte
Road to Through Street and Warrandyte Road to Macey Grove);
Terrigal Close in Ringwood North (on both sides from Oban Road
iﬁgﬁ?gbi“ty: Development and to Lockhart Road and Oban Road to end of court bowl); Marwarra

i Street in Ringwood East; and Windsor Road in Croydon (between
Hewish Road and Lacey Street).The total value of works completed
was $789,000, and the total length of footpath constructed was 3.49
kilometres.

Status: In progress

The review of the Ringwood and Croydon Parking Strategies has
been completed and an internal consultation is underway. It is
expected that both strategy reviews will be completed in late 2020
following external community consultation, however this may be
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Community consultation on the New Street renewal and flood
mitigation works has been completed. Design work has commenced
but has been delayed due to complex drainage challenges and a
substantial increase in the scope of required road renewal works.
Construction works have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic
and are now expected to commence in 2020/21.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Our strategic indicator results

Indicator/Measure Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2019/20 | 2019/20 | 2018/19| 2017/18| 2016/17 | 2015/16

Proportion of sealed roads below the 3% 2% 2.69% 2.75% 2.75% 0.7%
set intervention level
Square metres of sealed local roads 3500 17,352 3499 14,501 8498 1639

reconstructed

Our achievements
In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a

wide range of other activities in working towards an accessible and connected
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards an accessible community

80

Warrien Reserve Toilet Block

Construction of a new toilet block at Warrien
Reserve commenced in December 2019, bringing
improved amenities to the park. The facility

included three toilet cubicles, with two accessible
and one ambulant toilet with a bench/table for
assisting older people and a baby change table.

Working towards a connected community

Successful advocacy for carparking improvements
in Ringwood and Croydon

During 2019/20, Council successfully advocated to
the Australian Government for funding to develop
new carparks for the Ringwood Metropolitan
Activity Centre and the Croydon Major Activity
Centre. The new Croydon carpark will be located
on Council owned land in Devon Street and the
new Ringwood carpark will be located on Council
owned land in Bedford Road. Construction works
for both projects are scheduled to commence

in 2021.
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Local area traffic management improvements

Council has allocated funds to its Capital Works
Program to install traffic calming measures in
Tortice Drive, Ringwood North, including street
lighting upgrades, installation of eight new speed
cushions and a pedestrian refuge island. Traffic
signals will be installed at the Wonga Road and
Tortice Drive intersection to improve safety and
access. The Australian Government committed
$409,000 to fund an upgrade of the Dublin

Road and Knaith Road intersection through the
Blackspot Program. Blackspots are generally
identified by intersections that have a proven
history of accidents over the most recent five-year
period. The Australian Government’s Black Spot
Program considers these locations for further
funding and provides an opportunity to proactively
address critical road safety issues. Work
commenced in April 2020 and was scheduled for
completion in July 2020.





Council supported National Ride2Work Day

Council continued its support of National
Ride2Work Day to promote the inclusivity, access
and safety of cycling in all its forms and celebrate
the diversity of Maroondah’s cycling community.
The breakfast event at Ringwood and Croydon
Town Squares was enjoyed by 60 cyclists. In
addition, Council supported three businesses to
host their own events.

Road safety education programs delivered

Council offered a range of programs to promote
road safety and healthy and active lifestyles
through active commuting to school. Be Safe, Stay
Safe is a 40-minute road safety session aimed at
Prep and Grade 1 classes. In 2019/20, 531 students
across four primary schools received training

in being observant in local streets, identifying

safe road crossing locations and safe walking
skills. Council also delivered a successful public
transport program in partnership with Metro
Trains at Mullum Primary School. Forty Grade 6
students learned and practiced how to plan public
transport trips, use myki cards and travel safely on
public transport.

National Ride2Work Day

Asphalt resurfacing

As part of Council’s annual road rehabilitation
program, Dublin Road in Ringwood East (between
Tweed Street and Bedford Road); Bedford Road
in Ringwood East (between Dublin Road and
Canterbury Road); and Hewish Road in Croydon
were identified for asphalt road resurfacing works.
This type of road resurfacing consists of the
application of asphalt and is commonly utilised
throughout Maroondah and other municipalities to
enhance the longevity of the road pavement and to
provide a smoother surface.
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Complete the Lincoln Road upgrade, east of
Dorset Road in Croydon

The second stage of the Lincoln Road upgrade
works from Dornoch Court to Dorset Road
commenced in February 2020 and is expected to
be completed in August 2020. The works include
reconstruction and widening of the road, kerb

and channel, drainage upgrades, bicycle lanes,
installation of street lighting, pedestrian operated
signals at Mount View Parade and improvements to
the service roads.

Undertake the renewal of New Street in
Ringwood, including flood mitigation works,
between Maroondah Highway and Sylvia Grove

Design work has commenced but has been
delayed due to complex drainage challenges and a
substantial increase in the scope of required road
renewal works. Construction work is expected to
commence in 2020/21.

Advocate for public transport improvements in
the Bayswater Business Precinct

Advocacy for public transport improvements in
the Bayswater Business Precinct is dependent on
the outcome of the overall transformation strategy,
which is currently being developed.

Design and construct multi-level carparks in
Croydon, Ringwood, Heathmont; and
Heatherdale station

Schematic design has been completed for a
multi-level carpark in Devon Street, Croydon, and
construction is expected to commence in 2020/21.
Multi-level carparks in Ringwood (Bedford Road)
and Heathmont (Canterbury Road) are currently
being designed with construction expected to
commence in 2020/21. A feasibility study has been
undertaken for a suitable location for a new
multi-level carpark at Heatherdale Station.

Undertake improvement works at the carpark at
McAlpin Reserve, Ringwood North

Modifications will be carried out to the McAlpin
Reserve carpark to improve the functionality,
provide further accessible carparking and create
a new sealed pathway from Wonga Road to the
reserve’s internal pathways.

Advocate to the Australian and Victorian
Government for provision of new and upgraded
major transportation infrastructure in Maroondah;
including freeway connections, upgrade to
arterial roads and intersections and major public
transport enhancements

Council will continue its robust advocacy to
address the major transport needs of the
Maroondah community.

Deliver an expanded footpath
construction program

During 2020/21, Council will continue the
implementation of its footpath construction
program to provide improved pedestrian safety.
The footpath construction program for 2020/21
comprises works at: New Street (100 New Street
to Sylvia Grove); Towerhill Drive (Wonga Road to
Frederic Drive); Tunbury Avenue (Towerhill Drive
to Major Street); Major Street (Wonga Road to
Tunbury Avenue); Holyrood Crescent (Stonington
Place to Towerhill Drive); Patterson Street
(Eastfield Road to Fairview Avenue); Eastfield
Road (Bayswater Road to Railway Avenue);
Seares Drive (Maroondah Highway to Old Lilydale
Road); lan Avenue (Holland Road to Seares Drive);
Gardini Avenue (Greenwood Avenue to Thomas
Street); Ireland Street (City Road to Reilly Street);
and Bellbird Court (Wantirna Road to Clarke
Drive); Laurence Grove (1 Laurence Grove to
Knaith Road: and Balmoral Road (Melview Drive
to Lockhart Road).
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Undertake carpark improvement works at Work in partnership to implement intersection
Merrindale Shopping Centre in Croydon South, improvement works at the corner of Reilly Street
and Ainslie Park in Croydon and Wantirna Road, Ringwood; and Plymouth

Planned carpark improvement works at Merrindale Road and Kirtain Drive, Croydon

Shopping Centre Croydon South and Ainslie Park Council will continue to work in partnership
Croydon are expected to commence in 2020/21. with VicRoads on the development of design
and community consultation for improvement
works at the corner of Reilly Street and
Wantirna Road, Ringwood; and Plymouth Road
Council will continue to implement the Maroondah and Kirtain Drive, Croydon

carparking framework in 2020/21. The Framework

will provide a greater consistency to Council’s

approach to planning parking, resolving issues,

applying restrictions and the issuing of parking

permits throughout the municipality. Activities

in 2020/21 will include parking guidelines for

specific land use areas; enhancing traffic safety;

increasing the use of sustainable transport

modes; developing a Maroondah car share policy;

adopting a best practice approach to dealing

with parking complaints and safety concerns;

reviewing the Ringwood and Croydon Activity

Centre Parking Strategies; reviewing the parking

management strategy around Maroondah

Hospital; and addressing overflow parking issues

across the municipality.

Implement the Maroondah Carparking Framework
action plan

Council’s new parking guidelines will continue to increase the use of sustainable transport modes
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Our core services

Council delivers a number of services aimed at promoting an accessible and
connected community. These services include:

Built Environment (Operations) Engineering Services

The team provides proactive and reactive (Engineering and Building Services)

maintenance of Council’s infrastructure assets The team provides engineering technical expertise
including roads, footpaths and drains. Built in areas of traffic and transportation planning,
Environment provides proactive cleaning drainage investigation and strategy, engineering
of all drainage pits within road reserves and development approvals, and project management.
programmed street sweeping. The team also Council manages assets such as roads,

provides all logistical and fleet maintenance footpaths, drainage, and bicycle paths which
services for Council. provide important links to services and enhance

community wellbeing.

Council manages assets such as roads, footpaths, drainage, and bicycle paths which provide important
links to services and enhance community wellbeing
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3.5 kms of new footpaths were
constructed in the 2019/20 year
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Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified 12 priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards an attractive thriving and well-built
community.

- W Over the past 12 months, Council has undertaken a review of
neighbourhood character changes and a survey of potential
buildings of heritage significance. Community consultation on

the neighbourhood character recommendations has also been
completed. Heritage controls for the Jubilee Park Precinct
(Amendment C116) were considered by an independent Planning
Panel and adopted by Council in November 2019 and subsequently
sent to the Minister for Planning for final approval. A municipal wide

_ study of places of heritage significance will be completed in
Status: In progress mid-2020.

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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There are 146 places of
recognised heritage significance
that are afforded protection by
inclusion within the Maroondah

Planning Scheme.

Stage one works for the upgrade of

Lincoln Road in Croydon, between Hull Road and

Dornoch Court, have been completed. The works included
reconstruction and widening of the road, kerb and channel,
drainage upgrades, bicycle lanes, installation of street lighting

and improvements to the service roads. The second stage of the
Lincoln Road upgrade works, from Dornoch Court to Dorset Road,
commenced in February 2020 and are expected to be completed in
August 2020. The works include reconstruction and widening of the
road, kerb and channel, drainage upgrades, bicycle lanes, installation
Responsibility: Development and of street lighting, pedestrian operated signals at Mount View Parade
CIRCETE and improvements to the service roads.

Status: In progress

Greening the Greyfields is an Australian Government funded pilot
project aimed at improving the sustainability and community benefits
within development. The project aims to promote the creation of
collaborative redevelopment precincts where landowners work
together with Council to design more sustainable housing outcomes
for their land. The Minister for Planning has authorised exhibition of
two associated planning scheme amendments associated with the
project, and exhibition is anticipated to occur in early 2021,

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

A Flood Mapping Communications Plan is under development
however project timing has been impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. It is expected that the plan will be further developed
in 2020/21. Information on Council’s emergency response to
flood events is available on Council’s website under the Municipal
Emergency Management Plan and the Victorian SES website
(Maroondah / SES Local Flood Guide).

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity
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Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

During 2019/20, Council commenced the development of open
space enhancement plans for Eastfield Park, Dorset Recreation
Reserve and Ainslie Park Reserve. These open space enhancement
plans are being developed in accordance with actions identified in
Council’s Open Space Strategy. Extensive community consultation
regarding the proposed Eastfield Park Enhancement Plan resulted
in significant feedback from the community. After analysing the
feedback, Council identified five key elements and a revised draft
concept plan will be developed in 2019/20. An enhancement plan is
currently being developed for Dorset Recreation Reserve focusing
on the provision of enhanced soccer facilities and various open
space improvements as part of a Stage 1 redevelopment. The plan
has been endorsed by Council and is currently being distributed
to the community for their information. A draft enhancement plan
is being developed for Ainslie Park with a focus on the provision
of a new multipurpose facility to service the existing Ainslie Park
sportsground. Further discussions will occur with Melba College

in the coming months, to facilitate enhanced alignment with the
proposed Melba College Stage 3 redevelopment.

Council formally adopted the updated Ringwood Metropolitan
Activity Centre (MAC) Masterplan at its meeting on 26 November
2018. The Masterplan seeks to reinforce the Ringwood MAC as

the principal retail, commercial, community, entertainment and
employment focal point of the region. Work is now underway

to prepare a planning scheme amendment to incorporate the
Masterplan into the Maroondah Planning Scheme. Community
members were invited to provide input through a public exhibition
of the associated planning scheme amendment (C130) undertaken in
early 2020. A report on the submissions received and the next steps
in the process will be considered by Council in mid-2020.

Work has continued on the Scenic Avenue catchment area in
Ringwood East. This project has been undertaken in stages due
to the complexity of the works. The works involve the upgrade
of Council’'s easement drainage infrastructure through the rear
of properties to provide 100-year flood protection. Design of the
next stage of the Scenic Avenue was completed in 2019/20 with
construction rescheduled to 2021/22 due to budget implications
related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Council is continuing to develop flood mitigation solutions for

the central Croydon area. A flood mitigation works prioritisation
framework and 2020/21 works program is under development. The
timing of works will be subject to budget implications related to
the COVID-19 pandemic, with the majority of works proposed to be
rescheduled to 2021/22.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

During 2019/20, Council has continued the implementation of its
drainage improvement program, including waterway rectification
and bank stabilisation in Landau Drive, Warranwood; drainage
improvement works in Hender Street, Ringwood East; easement
drainage construction in Todd Court, Croydon; easement drainage
upgrades in Vine Street, Ringwood; Stage 1 flood mitigation
construction works in Acacia Court, Ringwood; flood mitigation
works design in New Street, Ringwood; and the implementation of a
drainage relining program.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

The Croydon Structure Plan was adopted by Council in 2006 and has
successfully influenced the function and form of this Major Activity
Centre. In 2019/20, Council commenced a series of background
studies on the issues facing Croydon, both now and over the next

10 years. The findings of these reports and associated community
engagement will inform development of a revised Croydon Structure
Plan in late 2021.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community
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Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

The Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct redevelopment

project is progressing with the Australian Government committing
$2 million towards the construction of the first community hub.

The transformation of the existing Civic Precinct into the Croydon
Community Wellbeing Precinct will focus on delivering enhanced
community spaces and functionality in relation to wellbeing facilities,
family and children facilities, sport and recreation facilities, and open
space. The establishment of new integrated community hubs will
enhance accessibility and connectivity for the community. Following
initial engagement with user groups, key stakeholders and the local
community, a draft masterplan for the precinct was released for
community input in June 2020.

Council is working in partnership with Melbourne Water, Yarra
Valley Water and the Department of Environment, Land, Water and
Planning (DELWP) on the project design and construction delivery
of the Tarralla Creek Connects project. The project aims to enhance
life and liveability by working with the community to transform a
two kilometre section of Tarralla Creek into a fun and friendly open
space and waterway. The section to be reimagined extends from
Dorset Road to Eastfield Road, Croydon. The area will be enhanced
by adopting contemporary urban design and landscaping ideas and
incorporating suggestions from the community. Design development
in partnership with Melbourne Water is progressing with the first
stage of construction to commence in 2020/21.
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Council’s infrastructure 99% 83% 97% 94% 109% 97%
renewal/maintenance ratio

Proportion of planning 82% 86% 81% 81% 80% 84%
applications assessed within
statutory timeframes

Total value of building $400,000 $518,406 $360,482 $437814 $300,000 $349,503
approvals - residential,

commercial and industrial -

$’000 from ABS 2019

Community satisfaction with 56 57 58 54 58 58
general town planning policy

Council surpassed its target for proportion of planning applications assessed within statutory timeframes
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Introduction of new Victorian Government
swimming pool and spa regulations

The Building Amendment (Swimming Pool and
Spa) Regulations 2019 commenced on 1 December
2019. This change introduced mandatory
requirements for owners of private swimming
pools or spas to register their pool or spa with
Council. In addition, owners are now required to
engage a registered building surveyor or building
inspector to inspect and certify the compliance of
their safety barrier every three years. The proposed
implementation period will span two financial years
and will require owners of existing swimming pools
and spas to take action and register by 14 April
2020, following which all registered pools and

spas must be inspected and certified in a staged
fashion between October 2020 and October 2021,
depending on when they were constructed.

Wiy
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Playspace renewal works

During 2019/20 playground improvement works
were undertaken at a number of parks and
reserves across Maroondah. Improvement works

at the Clyde Reserve playspace in Croydon South
included the installation of a double swing set and
landscaping. Melview Reserve playspace saw new
play equipment installed and a new basketball/
netball multi-sports area and seating. Improvement
works of the Nangathan Way Reserve included the
replacement of existing playground equipment
with a larger climbing structure, two swings, basket
swing, balance and scramble area, new picnic and
shelter area with seating, basketball and netball
multi-sports area and landscaping works will also
be constructed. The works commenced

in April 2020 were completed in

mid-June 2020.






Implement the Greening the Greyfields project
in partnership with stakeholders to facilitate a
sustainable approach to urban redevelopment in
identified residential precincts

During 2020/21, two planning scheme
amendments will be exhibited that will seek

to introduce and enable an alternative form of
precinct redevelopment to be developed within
Maroondah. Council has received authorisation
from the Minister for Planning to prepare and
exhibit a Planning Scheme Amendment for the two
Greening the Greyfields pilot precincts.

Develop a new Croydon Structure Plan (including
urban design guidelines) and commence
preparation of a planning scheme amendment

to incorporate the policy into the Maroondah
Planning Scheme

The Croydon Structure Plan was adopted by
Council in 2006 and has successfully influenced
the function and form of this Major Activity Centre.
In 2020/21, Council will complete its background
research into the issues facing Croydon. This work
will be summarised into an Issues and Options
Paper that will be made available for public
comment mid 2020 with feedback to be used to
inform a draft Croydon Structure Plan in late 2020.

Undertake the staged redevelopment of the
Croydon Community Wellbeing Precinct

The transformation of the existing Croydon Civic
Precinct into the Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct will focus on delivering enhanced
community spaces and functionality in relation to
wellbeing facilities, family and children facilities,
sport and recreation facilities, and open space.
These combined elements, proposed to become
integrated community hubs, will also enhance the
accessibility and connectivity for the community.
Following the development of a draft masterplan
in 2019/20, further community consultation, design
planning and early works will be undertaken in
2020/21.

Develop and implement the Flood Mapping
Communications Plan

A Flood Mapping Communications Plan is under
development and will be further developed in
2020/21.

Develop and commence implementation
of priority open space and public realm
enhancement plans

During 2020/21, work will continue on the Croydon
Community Wellbeing Precinct Masterplan,
completion of the Wyreena Heritage Masterplan
and commencement of the Jubilee Park
Enhancement Plan, along with the Eastfield Park
and Ainslie Park enhancement plans. These plans
are intended to ensure our community spaces
meet evolving community needs.

Implement the new Ringwood Metropolitan
Activity Centre Masterplan into the Maroondah
Planning Scheme

The Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC)
Masterplan was adopted by Council in late 2018.
The directions and objectives of the Masterplan,
that seek to reinforce Ringwood as the principal
retail, commercial, community, entertainment and
employment focal point of the region, are being
incorporated into a planning scheme amendment
during 2019/20. Parallel work is also underway to
develop a Developer Contributions Plan to help
fund the infrastructure needed to support the
increased number of residents, workers and visitors
to the centre.

Work in partnership to develop flood mitigation
solutions for the central Croydon area

Development of flood mitigation solutions for
the central Croydon area is continuing. A flood
mitigation works prioritisation framework and
2020/21 works program is under development.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

93





Implement the results of the Neighbourhood
Character and Vegetation Reviews

The Neighbourhood Character Study review report
will be considered by Council for in principle
adoption prior to adding the recommendations
into the Maroondah Planning Scheme.

Asset Management (Assets)

The team is responsible for the strategic long-
term planning and management of all of Council’s
community assets and provides specialist

advice and support to facilitate improved asset
management capabilities for the organisation. The
function provides advice on strategic direction,
policy development and capital works in relation to
all of Council’s community assets.

Assets Project and Facilities (Assets)

Responsible for the overall delivery and
management of Council’s community facility
assets and provides specialist advice and support
in relation to all building construction works and
reactive and proactive maintenance associated
with facilities.

Building Services
(Engineering and Building Services)

The team provides services that are dictated by
statutory and legislative requirements. Although
this limits the ability to introduce new initiatives,

it requires work practices and services/service
levels to be responsive to legislative changes and
community expectations. The team also ensures
the compliance of existing and proposed buildings
with the Building Act and regulations and provides
advice on variations to building regulations and
swimming pool/spa safety barriers.
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The Maroondah Vegetation Strategy 2020-

2030 was adopted by Council in March 2020

and the recommendations of the review will be
implemented across Council in 2020/21. A key
action will be the development of an ‘Opportunities
Map’ that will identify the best locations for adding
vegetation to the Maroondah landscape to improve
liveability and encourage more nature throughout
Maroondah

Statutory Planning (Planning)

Council has the responsibility for delivering town
planning land use and development advice and
assessments to a diverse community of over
117,000 residents and over 9000 businesses.
These residential and commercial land uses

are set in a unique urban environment with

high levels of amenity protected by various
landscape and environmental controls, as set out
in the Maroondah Planning Scheme. The role of
statutory planning is to manage and consult with
the community to ensure that land use changes
are to the social, environmental and economic
betterment of the City.

Strategic Planning and Sustainability
(Integrated Planning)

The team is responsible for the development of
land use and planning policies and strategies to
ensure the most sustainable land use patterns;

and administering and reviewing the Maroondah
Planning Scheme including amendments to the
scheme. The team also guides the integration of
sustainability into Council and community activities
and operations. Council takes a holistic and
strategic approach to sustainability focusing on
reducing its environmental footprint, helping the
community adapt to a changing climate, enhancing
the quality of the local environment and promoting
sustainable transport and active travel options.





DLo you R OW?

There are 526 Council buildings
and structures in Maroondah

v "
X e A \ ‘
A AR e C
Lty AOAOOOTOD o
r:%%{h s

i A &
[ CARAERERRERES -
0 !
e ; ,
g e o) ; . "%k





Annual Report 2019/20

96

An inclusive and diverse
community

Our vision

In 2040, Maroondah will be an inclusive and equitable community where all
people are valued, supported and socially connected, and diversity is embraced
and celebrated.

Our commitments

Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified five priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards an inclusive and diverse community

Continue implementation of the Corporate Volunteering
Program that recruits, promotes and manages volunteers
who support the provision of services and community
activities

Council’s corporate volunteering program has been implemented and
forms a component of Council’s broader volunteering program that

continues to deliver positive outcomes to the Maroondah community,
while simultaneously fostering community spirit and social cohesion.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Corporate Services
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Council’s oldest volunteer is
95 years whilst our youngest
volunteer is 18 years of age

Several development projects have been identified to provide
additional female changing facilities at sporting pavilions across
Maroondah. Construction has commenced at HE Parker Pavilion in
Heathmont and Quambee Pavilion in Warranwood. Further works at
Griff Hunt Pavilion in Croydon North have been delayed until

until the second half of 2020. Further works at Cheong Pavilion in
Croydon South; Ainslie Pavilion in Croydon; Proclamation Pavilion in
Ringwood; Springfield Pavilion in Croydon have commenced design
with construction to begin in 2020/21.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Council adopted a new Disability Policy and Action Plan

(2019-2021) in April 2019. The Policy and Action Plan incorporates

a range of initiatives across the breadth of Council operations to
remove barriers to discrimination and meet the legislative obligations
for people with disabilities, their families and carers. The Plan was
developed through examining data, considering relevant government
legislation, and engaging with the community to determine the issues
that are important to them. A range of actions were undertaken by
Council during 2019/20 including: supporting vulnerable persons in
emergency situations including the COVID-19 pandemic; initiatives
Responsibility: Strategy and to increase the participation of women with disabilities in regular
Gy exercise; scoping work with local businesses to consider volunteer
positions/work placement for people with disabilities to create
learning employment pathways; seeking targeted input from the
Disability Advisory Committee on key capital projects and service
delivery changes; implementing the Disability Discrimination

Act Improvement Program to resolve known accessibility issues;
partnering with Eastern Volunteers to strengthen the Eastern
Disability Action Group; advocating for funding for regional delivery
of the Pathways for Carers Program; continuing to implement

the Porn is not the Norm initiative to build awareness of the risks
associated with online pornography for people with disabilities; and
working in partnership to implement an Opening Doors community
leadership program in the Outer East.

Status: In progress
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Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Number of volunteers
engaged within the
organisation

Review of the Active and Health Ageing Initiative 2015-2020 has
commenced, with community consultation undertaken in a modified
form due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The draft strategy will be
completed towards the end of 2020 and will be included as part

of the development of Council’s new Maroondah Liveability and
Wellbeing Strategy.

Following completion of extensive community consultation with
children, young people, parents/carers and school staff, detailed
analysis was undertaken to inform Council’s new Children and
Families Strategy and Action Plan. Council’s draft Children and
Families Strategy was placed on public exhibition in June 2020 with
action plans for both the Children and Families Strategy and Youth
Strategy due for completion in the first half of 2020/21.

380 369 400 348 380 473
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148 young people were
nominated for a Maroondah
Youth Award in May 2020






International Women's Day breakfast celebrates
the contribution of women to our community

Council’s International Women’s Day breakfast
was held at Karralyka in March 2020 to celebrate
the contribution that women make to workplaces,
families and communities. The event provided an
opportunity for friends and family members to get
together in a positive, supportive and celebratory
environment. This year’s theme was #EachforEqual
and featured inspirational speaker, author, and
Love Your Sister campaigner Hilde Hinton. The
event was booked out with 320 guests included
neighbouring councils, community groups and
secondary college students.

Council celebrates IDAHOBIT Day

Council celebrated the International Day
Against Homophobia, Biphobia and Transphobia
(IDAHOBIT Day) by producing a virtual rainbow
flag raising video and placing messages of
support to the lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender
and intersex community (LGBTIQA+) on social
media and web platform. The rainbow flag was
also raised for one week at Council offices in
Ringwood and Croydon. In undertaking these
actions, Council sought to demonstrate its
support for, and commitment to, reducing the
barriers faced by the LGBTIQA+ community and
increase the inclusivity of all Council services to
LGBTI community members.

Stories Beyond Stereotypes

Council, in partnership with organisations such
as Eastern Regional Libraries, Knox City Council,
Yarra Ranges Council, Women’s Health East, EACH,
EDVOS, Inspiro, and Level Playground, developed
Stories Beyond Stereotypes, a list of books for
children aged 7 to 12 years featuring real and
imaginary characters who are unconstrained by
gender stereotypes. The booklist was launched
Realm in October 2019 with author Alex Lee
Miles as the guest speaker. Books are available
for community members to loan through Eastern
Regional Libraries.

Gender Equity in Victorian Sport and Recreation
Pilot Program

Council secured Victorian Government funding to
work with tenant clubs of the RO Spencer Pavilion
at Jubilee Park on a primary prevention project.
Council has since secured additional funding to
refine the project mode and extend the project to
additional clubs. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
timelines for stage two of this project have

been extended from September 2020 to
December 2020.
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Maroondah’s Community Grants Funding Program
supports 72 local community groups

A total of 72 Maroondah community organisations
benefitted from more than $128,000 in funding
from Council’s 2019/20 Community Grants Funding
Program. The annual grants are allocated to eligible
projects that increase community participation;
address a community need; or provide assistance
to a group in need. A diverse range of programs
were funded including emergency food relief

and support for vulnerable people, mental health
and life skills programs for local sporting clubs,
enhancement to programs at local kindergartens
and leadership development program for local
Burmese young people from the Karen community.

COVID-19 community grants to support
community recovery

The COVID-19 Community Grants Funding Program
was established to address the immediate needs
within the community arising from the COVID-19
pandemic. The funding was for eligible community
organisations and charities to continue to deliver,
expand and introduce new programs, initiatives
and services to the Maroondah community.
Community organisations had the opportunity

to share in $116,863 grant funding to assist in
community recovery and relief.

Recognition of volunteers from our Corporate
Volunteers Program

Council’s volunteers were formally thanked and
recognised at a Volunteer Recognition evening

in December 2019. This annual event officially
acknowledges volunteers who assist Council by
delivering important services and activities for
the community. At the event, Council publicly
recognised the significant contribution of our
long-serving volunteers who have achieved a
combined total of 670 years of volunteering with
Council. This event also saw the presentation of
the inaugural Bill Wilkins Volunteer Award. Named
in honour of community stalwart Bill Wilkins, the
award will be presented annually in honour of
those volunteers who inspire and embody the
spirit of volunteerism through their exemplary
contribution to the community. The 2019 winner
was Fay Lawn in recognition of her 49 years of
volunteering with Meals on Wheels and 39 years
with Maroondah Hospital and as a spiritual care
volunteer supporting people through rehabilitation.

Council continued to work with local sporting clubs to promote gender equity
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Implementation of the Maroondah Reconciliation
Action Plan

Council’s first Reconciliation Action Plan was
endorsed by Council in April 2019. Council has a
strong commitment to promote and work towards
greater reconciliation in the City of Maroondah.
The Plan was endorsed by Reconciliation Australia
and developed in conjunction with the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander community. The Plan
identifies practical actions and measures for
building relationships, promoting a respectful
culture and creating opportunities to celebrate
traditional and contemporary Indigenous cultures,
knowledge and customary practices. A range

of actions have been undertaken over the past

12 months and implementation of the Plan will
continue into 2020/21.

Celebration of National Reconciliation Week

National Reconciliation Week is a time for people
of all ages to come together and strengthen
relationships between Indigenous and non-
Indigenous people. Despite the week falling
during the COVID-19 pandemic, Council worked
in partnership with Mullum Mullum Indigenous
Gathering Place (MMIGP) and the Maroondah
Movement for Reconciliation (MMR), to deliver a
series of virtual Reconciliation Week events. These
events included a live-streamed performance by
singer/songwriter Kutcha Edwards, an interactive
online Q&A panel focused on addressing key
reconciliation issues, a video produced by
Council highlighting the importance of
reconciliation in Maroondah, and a live stream

of award-winning documentary In My Blood It
Runs hosted by MMIGP.
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Enhancements to Maternal and Child Health
partnerships

Several new Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
partnerships were introduced in 2019/20 offering
direct services to Maroondah parents with
children aged 0-5 years. These include a new
speech therapy service at Croydon MCH; access to
EACH family counselling services; joint home visits
to vulnerable families by MCH and Child, Youth
and Mental Health Services (CHYMS); and the
co-location of the Eastern Health Perinatal
Emotional Health Service at Croydon MCH.

Supported playgroups and parent education
sessions for culturally diverse groups

Supported playgroups encourage social
connections, embrace diversity and integration and
support parents to understand children’s emotional
and physical needs. In 2019/20, Council ran a
six-week parent program for Burmese families
with a specific purpose of encouraging social
connections, parent education, improving mental
health and wellbeing and reducing post-trauma
stress disorder symptoms. A second Mothers and
Babies six-week program for Burmese families
was also offered to provide support for mothers
in developing positive relationships with their
children. Council’s MCH service offers a variety of
parent education programs to refugee families,
with interpreters to support non-English speaking
families. The six week MCH facilitated parent
groups have continued throughout 2019/20 for
Burmese first time parents with these groups
following onto the supported playgroup program.
Both programs are now an ongoing part of the
MCH education program.





Australia Day celebrations and
citizenship ceremony

Maroondah residents of all ages and backgrounds
gathered at Ringwood Lake Park on 26 January

to participate in Australia Day celebrations.
Council officially welcomed some of our newest
Australian citizens and presented awards to the
2020 Citizen of the Year, Young Citizen of the Year
and Community Event of the Year. Averil Embury
was awarded Citizen of Year for her volunteer
work in supporting the Australian Red Cross
‘Trauma Teddies’ program and Olivet, where she
has assisted for 20 years. Ben Voogd was awarded
Young Citizen of the Year for his work in assisting
Ringwood Little Athletics, Little Athletics Victoria,
Little Athletics Junior Development Coaching
Squads. Winter Shelter, a Maroondah churches and
community response to local homelessness, was
named Community Event of the Year.

Seniors Week recognises the contribution
of older people in our community

Council provided a diverse and enjoyable
program of events to celebrate Seniors Week

in October 2019 to recognise the achievements
and contributions of older people within our
community. Held as part of the Victorian Seniors
Festival, a diverse program of events was held

in Maroondah in partnership with local senior’s
clubs, groups, services and programs. Maroondah
hosted a number of events including the Seniors
Wellbeing Expo; a sold-out Celebration Concert
by Michael Cormick; and a sold-out Maroondah
Seniors Festival Celebration Lunch, followed by
a performance by comedian Monica Dullard on
Ageing with Attitude.

Support for linguistically and culturally diverse
groups during the COVID-19 pandemic

Council’'s emergency relief and referral system
during the COVID-19 pandemic implemented
partnerships with local relief agencies as well

as culturally and linguistically diverse groups

to ensure services to vulnerable people despite
restrictions. Information on COVID-19 restrictions
was offered in Council’s website in a range of
different languages including Burmese, Chin,
Karen, Hindi, Tamil and Chinese in order to cater
for a diverse cross-section of language and
community groups.

Support for older people and vulnerable residents
during the COVID-19 pandemic

Council ensured the continuation of essential
support services for older and vulnerable residents
including Delivered Meals, the adaptation of the
Shopping Bus Service and additional welfare calls
to socially isolated clients through the Maroondah
Police Seniors Register regardless of their usual
contact schedule (increase from 106 clients to
365+). Council worked in partnership with support
providers, agencies and volunteers to provide food
relief to disadvantaged people as demand for food
increased, with free takeaway meals being available
six nights a week, across three different venues.
Council has also partnered with Winter Shelter

and Central Ringwood Community House to
provide bathroom and shower services to people
experiencing homelessness at a temporary location
until regular services are restored.

Youth Week celebrates local young people

Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, Youth Week 2020
activities in May 2020 were unable to proceed as
scheduled. The annual awards acknowledge the
exceptional commitment of local young people
who give their time to support the community and
help others, were held in an online format. This
year 181 young people were nominated for awards
across four categories of creativity, perseverance,
leadership and teamwork. The Pure Talent art
exhibition normally held at Wyreena Community
Arts Centre was also held online showcasing the
artistic talent of 24 young people from secondary
schools across Maroondah and included digital
media, painting, drawing, sculpture, and design.

Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, the
Pure Talent art exhibition was held online
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Monitor the National Disability Insurance Scheme
and My Aged Care reform agenda and implement
transitional arrangements for relevant areas of
Council service delivery

Transition arrangements for Commonwealth Home
Support Program (CHSP) and National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS) have commenced with
in-home services transferring direct to contractor
on 1 July 2019. Commonwealth extensions have
been announced for assessment and other
services including delivered meals, social support
and occupational therapy until 2022 with Council
accepting extension of contract to provide

these services.

Continue implementation of the Corporate
Volunteering Program that recruits, promotes and
manage volunteers who support the provision of
services and community activities

Council will continue to implement its volunteering
and student placement programs during 2020/21.
These programs provide opportunities for
volunteers and students to support the wider
community. Council’s volunteers assist with
programs such as Meals on Wheels, Maroondah’s
Disability Advisory Committee, maintaining our
bushland and reserves, arts and cultural programs,
community gardens and many more. Council’s
Work Experience Program is offered across all
areas of Council and provides an opportunity for
students to learn and give back to the community.

Finalise development of a Children and
Families Strategy

Following completion of extensive community
consultation with children, young people, parents,
carers and school staff, detailed analysis was
undertaken to inform Council’s new Children and
Families Strategy and Action Plan, and the new
Action Plan for Council’s existing Youth Strategy.
Council’s draft Children and Families Strategy was
placed on public exhibition in June 2020 with
action plans for both the Children and Families
Strategy and Youth Strategy due for completion
in 2020/21.

Continue implementation of Council’s Disability
Policy and Action Plan 2019-2021

Council adopted a new Disability Policy and Action
Plan 2079-2027 in April 2019. The Policy and Action
Plan incorporates a range of initiatives across the
breadth of Council operations to remove barriers to
discrimination and meet the legislative obligations
for people with disabilities, their families and
carers. A range of actions will be undertaken by
Council during 2020/21 across themes of social
and economic inclusion, services and information,
design, infrastructure and transport, and advocacy
and leadership.

Children and Families Strategy

Raising the wellbeing of Marcondah’

‘y-u:r-.uh

&

ehildren and their famibes
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Aged and Disability Services
(Community Services)

Council provides both Commonwealth Home
Support Program (CHSP) Services and Home and
Community Care Program for Younger People

(HACC PYP) which includes intake, assessment and

care coordination, domestic assistance, personal
care and individual social support, respite care,
occupational therapy and allied health, vulnerable
persons support, food services (Delivered Meals),
Supported Residential Services (SRS) social
support program, social support groups and
home maintenance services to eligible residents.
The CHSP aims to support frail older people and
their carers to maximise their independence by
supporting them to remain safely living at home
and stay connected to their community. HACC
PYP assists people with disability during the
transition to National Disability Insurance Scheme
(NDIS) and supports those people under the age
of 65 who may not be eligible for NDIS. Aged and
Disability Services also provide active and healthy
ageing activities, facilitate carer support groups
and provide support to senior citizens and older
persons groups.

Volunteer Workforce Services
(Workplace People and Culture)

This function oversees the development,
implementation and review of Council’s Volunteer
Strategy which includes a centralised and
coordinated approach to recruiting, rewarding,
promoting and managing Council’s volunteers to

ensure the provision of sustainable Council services

for the community. The function also coordinates

Council’s student placement, disability employment

and indigenous employment programs.

Youth and Children’s Services
(Community Services)

Youth and Children’s Services works to raise the
wellbeing of Maroondah’s children and young
people. The mission of Youth & Children’s Services
is to build a future where all children and young
people can achieve their potential. The team works
towards this through:

* Service delivery, including programs, services,
and events for young people; vacation
care, family day care, and occasional care
services for children; and information
and education sessions for parents.

e Providing information and resources
to community members and
professionals in Maroondah.

* Providing support and coordination to the local
child and youth sectors through provision of
professional learning, networking opportunities,
capacity building initiatives, sector coordination
projects, supporting local kindergartens
and schools, and facility management.

* Planning and strategy - including
consultation and engagement work, service
and sector planning and strategy to meet
local needs and leverage strengths.
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A well governed and
empowered community

Our vision

In 2040, Maroondah will be an empowered community actively engaged in
local decision making, led by an innovative community inspired Council that
collaborates regionally and proactively champions local needs.

Our commitments

Through the Council Plan 2017-2021 (Year 3: 2019/20), Council identified nine priority actions to be
delivered during the 2019/20 financial year to work towards a well governed and empowered community.

Progress Council’s digital transformation
that enables innovation and improved
Customer Service delivery models
including access to information,
engagement and online payments

Status: In progress Council continues to focus on providing more effective services
Responsibility: Corporate Services through the utilisation of new and improved technologies. These
improvements have been driven by the redevelopment of Council’s
administration offices, and the mobilisation of the workforce as well
as enabling Council to deliver more timely and efficient services
to our community whilst also providing increased resilience and
preparedness for emergency response.
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DL You Rnow?

There are nearly 1000
food and health premises
Update Council’s administrative facilities e[l TP I
all are inspected by Council’s

. environmental health officers.
The upgrade of Council’s

administrative facilities is well

underway. The Operations Centre

administrative building was completed

in December 2019. The extension at Realm has started construction
and it is anticipated that this will be completed in August 2020.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Operations, Assets
and Leisure

Engage the community in undertaking an interim review of
Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’

Council has finalised a refresh of the Maroondah 2040 Community
Vision following background research and extensive community
engagement undertaken over the past 18 months. The Vision
highlights future outcome areas along with key policy directions for
Council and community to focus on. The refreshed vision provides
a catalyst for Council and partners to work together in meeting the
needs and aspirations of the Maroondah community looking ahead
to the year 2040.

p— o . r1
Status: Complete

Responsibility: Strategy and
Community

Participate in an Electoral Representation Review in the
leadup to the 2020 Local Government elections

The Victorian Electoral Commission review of electoral representation
across all municipalities has been completed, including a review of
Maroondah’s electoral representation which concluded in October
2019. The purpose of the review was to ensure that the electoral
structure of Maroondah provides fair and equitable representation for
all voters.

Following the next Council Election on 24 October 2020, the Minister
for Local Government has determined that Maroondah’s electoral
structure will change to have nine wards. Each of these nine Wards
will be represented by a single Councillor.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Corporate Services

Undertake a review of Council’s Community Engagement Policy

Council will continue to review of the Community Engagement
Framework and Policy to ensure it reflects best practice,

outcomes of the new Local Government Act 2020 and community
expectations. Initial community consultation was undertaken in
2019, including at the Maroondah Festival and internal consultation
will be undertaken in late 2020. The new Policy will be finalised in
2020/21 in accordance with statutory implementation timeframes
for the new Local Government Act 2020.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Communications
and Engagement
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Develop a new Customer Service Strategy that will continue
to advance Council’s commitment to be highly responsive
and customer focused

Council will commence development of a new Customer Service
Strategy in late 2020 ahead of the commencement of the next
Council term. Some of the practices that have been adopted in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic may be incorporated into the
new Strategy to reflect ongoing enhancements to service provision.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Corporate Services

Review the current use of CCTV for its effectiveness in
controlling waste dumping

Council has undertaken a review of the effectiveness of current
CCTV technology, which has informed the purchase of new
cameras. New policies and procedures have been developed to
guide their use in monitoring the dumping of waste.

Status: Complete

Responsibility: Development and
Amenity

Develop and implement the Workforce People and Culture
Plan 2021-2025

-_ Council’s current human resources strategy identifies the key

k themes and priorities to ensure the retention and development
of a skilled, competent and motivated workforce that is best able
to meet current and future service delivery requirements in a
sustainable manner. Council has commenced developing a new
Strategy for the 2021-2025 period by considering the strategic
alignment of workplace people and culture strategies with
Council objectives.

Status: In progress

Responsibility: Corporate Services
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Advocate for Maroondah to become a ‘Smart City’

The term ‘smart cities’ has emerged in recent years to describe

the transformative effect modern technology is having on the

way urban infrastructure is used, operated and managed. For
Maroondah, public lighting has the potential to be both directly
enhanced by smart city technology as well as playing a central role
in a broader Smart City network. Council commenced a 12-month
Smart City pilot project in June 2020. The pilot includes the
installation of two gateways and three types of LoRaWAN Internet
of Things (loT) smart sensors fitted to a range of community assets
to capture real time data about capacity and usage. The sensors
Responsibility: Development and include: a bin sensor to monitor usage and capacity; a carpark
A0S sensor to monitor the usage; and people counters to monitor visits
and duration of visit. It is anticipated that the pilot will demonstrate
how Council can better: collect real time data about asset capacity
and use; identify usage patterns and trends for improved asset
efficiency and service provision; advocate for community needs
and interests based on data findings and community feedback; and
promote evidence-based, transparent decision making.

Status: In progress

Our strategic indicator results

Indicator/Measure Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16

Community satisfaction with overall
performance of Council

Community satisfaction with overall 57 56 59 58 53 59
direction of Council

Community satisfaction with 75 74 80 73 70 77
customer service provided by

Council

Community satisfaction with Council 56 56 58 56 55 58
engagement

Community satisfaction with Council 58 56 61 57 57 54
lobbying/advocacy

Average liabilities per assessment $903 $1785 $1034 $1010 $986 $990
Operating result per assessment $97 $202 $509 $253 $481 $87
Average rates and charges per $1758 $1736 $1718 $1614 $1465 $1468

residential assessment
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Our achievements

A well governed and
empowered community

In addition to the Council Plan priority actions, Council has also undertaken a
wide range of other activities in working towards a well governed and empowered
community. Some of the highlights from the year are detailed below.

Working towards a well governed community

Implementation of the Local Government Act
(2020)

The new Local Government Act 2020 received
Royal Assent on 24 March 2020, and is being
implemented in four transitional stages, during
which time it will co-exist with many provisions
within the former Local Government Act 71989, until
1 July 2021. The new Act aims to improve local
government democracy, accountability and Council
operations by introducing a set of overarching
guiding principles which include; community
engagement, public transparency; strategic
planning; good practice guidelines; service
performance; and expanded financial management
principles. The first phase of reforms took effect on
6 April 2020, which put in place these governance
principles that provide the foundational framework
for the new Act. The new act requires Council to
adopt specific policies within set timeframes.

COVID-19 relief and recovery response framework

The COVID-19 pandemic significantly impacted
the Maroondah community in 2020 resulting in
a broad range of social, health and economic
challenges. In response to the pandemic,
Council has put in place a temporary change
to the organisational structure to implement

a coordinated relief and recovery framework.
The framework aims to ensure a community-
led recovery through: the provision of up-to-
date community information and engagement;
coordination of personal support; referrals for
emergency shelter, food, material aid relief and
counselling; recovery initiatives that build on
community strengths and needs; monitoring of
the social and economic impacts of COVID-19;
support for local business and economic activity;
and ensuring the continuation of Council
service delivery.
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COVID-19 community emergency relief
referral system

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Council’s
coordinated the establishment of a community
emergency relief referral system in partnership
with Hope City Mission Inc (HCM) and Adventist
Development and Relief Agency Ltd (ADRA). The
system provides a centralised referral system for
requests related to emergency food relief, material
aid as well as referrals for psychosocial and
complex needs.

Expansion of e-services for Statutory Planning

Additional e-services have been introduced

in 2019/20 to provide a more efficient and
transparent planning process for our customers
and community. New services include the
capability to lodge more application types, delivery
of documents and electronic communication
between parties.

High level of service delivery in Statutory
Planning maintained

Council has continued to deliver a high percentage
of Statutory Planning decisions within specified
timeframes. During 2019/20, just nine percent

of Council decisions have been set aside by

the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal.
Council’s consistent decision making in accordance
with the planning scheme continues to be
supported by the Tribunal.





Implementation of Domestic Animal
Management Plan

Council has developed a new Domestic Animal
Management Plan to prioritise animal management
projects over the next three years. Highlights
include further cleansing of Council’s animal
registration database; continued partnership with
Animal Aid to address state-wide concerns on
animal abandonment; activities aimed at reducing
the number of stray and lost animals being
impounded; and increasing the number of animals
being reunited with families.

v

Redesign of Council’s corporate information
technology networks

Council has commenced an information technology
network review and redesign to support the
migration of Council core infrastructure to external
data centres. This has included a process to ensure
minimal impact on the production environment
during migration of core infrastructure. The

design incorporates the appropriate storage and
computer architecture to facilitate the migration
of core infrastructure to the cloud including the
mobilisation of Council’'s workforce, increasing
agility and resilience to disasters, and enhanced
business continuity capabilities.

5y " u \... 4

L L .

Council’s Domestic Animal Management Plan prioritises animal managment over the next three years
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A well governed and
empowered community

Working towards an empowered community

Connecting through social media

Councils 25 social media channels continue to
connect exceptionally well with our community,
with more than 35,000 people following our
Facebook, Twitter and Instagram messaging, and
anaverage weekly reach of more than 71,000
people (up from 48,000 a year ago).

Connecting through new eNewsletter

Council launched a fortnightly eNewsletter in
January 2020, providing news on Councils services,
activities and events, delivered to the email
addresses of our subscribers. During COVID-19 this
eNewsletter provided important health and support
information to our community.

Multimedia activity expanded

Council expanded its multimedia content to
promote services to the community across our
digital channels. During COVID-19 this service
responded to provide adapted access to
information and services, including for Maternal
and Child Health, Karralyka, Aged and Disability
Services, Leisure and Youth.

We undertook community engagement to inform
a range of projects

Council’s commitment to community engagement
is reflected in our Community Engagement Policy

and toolkit, which was endorsed by Council in 2015.

The policy adheres to the International Association
of Public Participation (IAP2) principles which is
the bench mark for the engagement sector. Over
the past twelve months there have been more
than 45 projects out for community consultation
ranging from enhancement plans, infrastructure
projects, and strategy and policy development.
Some of these projects include: Maroondah

2040 ‘Our future together’; Children and Families
Strategy; Liveability and Wellbeing Strategy
(2021-2031); Croydon Community Wellbeing
Precinct Masterplan; Amendment C130 - Ringwood
Metropolitan Activity Centre Masterplan; and the
Maroondah Reconciliation Action Plan 2018-2020.

Online customer engagement channels trial

New customer contact centre technology has
been installed enabling Council to trial live chat,
short message service (SMS), email and outbound
contact campaigns. The online web chat facility
has been enhanced to include the use of artificial
intelligence in lieu of providing direct contact with
a live human agent for the provision of services
with standard or predictable responses. These
improved multi-channel capabilities for customer
service have assisted with the increased customer
service demand following the closure of the
Customer Service centres due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Customer engagement and support
during COVID-19

Maroondah residents were able to access
up-to-date emergency information during the
COVID-19 pandemic, which was promptly made
available on Council’s website. This included
information provided by the Victorian Government,
along with local information regarding Council
facility closures, event cancellations, service
adaptations and available support services.

These webpages also included links to relevant
information relating to public health guidelines and
current restrictions on the Department of Health
and Human Services website.

Management of Customer Service
Knowledge system

Council has continued to improve customer service
by increasing internal knowledge and emphasising
first point of contact resolution. This has improved
the ability to resolve customer problems, questions
or needs the first time they call with no follow-up
required. Council aims to provide a seamless ‘one
stop shop’ experience for all our customers with
customer service employees having the knowledge
and information needed to manage and direct all
Council enquiries efficiently and effectively.

1n2

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20





Looking ahead

In continuing to work towards a well governed and empowered community

during 2020/21, Council will:

Develop a new Customer Service Strategy that
will continue to advance Council’s commitment to
be highly responsive and customer focused

Council will develop a new Customer Service
Strategy in late 2020 ahead of the commencement
of the next Council term.

Develop and implement a COVID-19 community
emergency relief referral process

As part of Council’'s emergency response to the
COVID-19 pandemic, a local relief and referral
system has been implemented to solidify
partnerships with local relief agencies to ensure
services to vulnerable people and groups continue
despite restrictions. This work will continue in
2020/21 in response to needs of the community

Develop and implement a COVID-19 Recovery
Plan (including social and economic recovery
initiatives), following community consultation and
engagement

Council’s emergency relief and recovery framework
includes strategic community recovery planning
which will include the coordinated delivery of
recovery initiatives to meet the social, health and
wellbeing and economic needs of the community.
Over the next twelve months, Council will continue
to identify community needs and impacts through
consultation, data analysis and development

of partnerships with key stakeholder agencies.
Council will seek to support emerging social, health
and wellbeing issues through recovery planning
and agency collaboration.

Advocate on key local issues in the lead up to the
State and Federal elections in 2022

Council will continue to advocate to both levels of
Government to seek support and funding to enable
the delivery of key infrastructure projects and
services for the Maroondah community.

Implement the new Local Government Act
following its enactment

The new Local Government Act 2020 is being
implemented in four transitional stages, during
which time it will co-exist with many the provisions
within the former Local Government Act 1989, up
until 1 July 2021. The first phase of reforms took
effect on 6 April 2020, which put in place these
governance principles that provide the foundation
framework for the new Act. The new Act requires
Council to adopt specific policies within set
timeframes within 2020/21 and beyond.

Following the Council election prepare a new
Council Plan 2021-2025

During 2020/21, Council will work with the
Maroondah community and elected representatives
to prepare a new Council Plan for the 2021-2025
period. This document will form Council’s medium
term plan in responding to the aspirations and
outcomes arising from the community vision
identified in the revised Maroondah 2040 ‘Our
future together’ adopted in June 2020.

Progress Council’s digital transformation that
enables innovation and improved Customer
Service delivery models including access to
information, engagement and online payments

Council will continue its focus on providing more
effective services through the utilisation of new
and improved technologies and industry best
practice processes. These improvements will
include the mobilisation of Council’s workforce,
targeted improvement of key digital processes,
and a considered focus on security. The wider
access to mobile technologies will enable Council
to deliver more timely and efficient services to
our community whilst also providing increased
resilience and preparedness for emergency
response.
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Identify and implement additional ways of
providing digital services associated with
planning permits that will improve the overall
customer experience

Additional services to be considered include

the ability for customers to lodge plans and
documents for endorsement via Council’s online
portal, method of mail delivery to the community
and lodgement of Further Information online. New
processes to improve the existing digital planning
process will allow staff and the community

to benefit from improved efficiencies with

the processes.

Develop and implement the Workforce People
and Culture Plan 2021-2025 that provides a road
map for the development, implementation, review
and measurement of services, activities and
systems that enable the organisation to deliver
exceptional results

In 2020/21, Council will continue the development
a new Workforce People and Culture Plan Strategy
for the 2021-2025 period. Key areas of focus will
include the strategic alignment of workplace
people and culture strategies with Council
objectives; strategic workforce planning; investing
in workforce skills and competencies; improving
organisational efficiency and effectiveness;

and effectively managing a diverse and muilti-
generational workforce.

Advocate for Maroondah to become a
“Smart City”

Council has included ‘Smart City’ technology
within the Public Lighting Policy and Action Plan to
enable improved monitoring, control and broader
network linkages for public lighting. Council will
continue with the 12-month Smart City pilot project
which commenced in June 2020.

Work in partnership with the Victorian Electoral
Commission to coordinate a Council Election in
October 2020 for the 2020-2024 period

Council has entered into a new contract with the
Victorian Electoral Commission (VEC) in order

to conduct the elections for Council in October
2020 in order to ensure compliance with the Loca/
Government Act 2020 and Regulations.

Implement the Council Caretaker Policy for the
Council election in October 2020 and transition
to the new Council following the election

In the lead up to Local Government elections, the
Victorian Local Government sector adopts an
election period mode (or caretaker mode) to avoid
actions and decisions that may be interpreted as
influencing voters or binding an incoming Council.
Specific provisions have been incorporated into the
Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government
Act 2020 that prohibit Council making major policy
decisions or publishing or distributing electoral
matter during the election period. Maroondah City
Council is committed to the principle of fair and
democratic elections and adopted the Election
Period (Caretaker) Policy 2020 at the Council
Meeting held on Monday 17 February 2020. This
policy will be implemented ahead of the Council
Elections scheduled for 24 October 2020. The
election (caretaker) period commences 12.01am,
Tuesday 22 September 2020 and continues for a
period of 32 days through until 6pm, Saturday 24
October 2020.

Review and update Council’s Business Continuity
Plan to enable Council to continue to provide key
services to the community in the event of

a disaster

As part of its risk management program, Council
will conduct a test of the Business Continuity
Plan to ensure its risk mitigation strategies are
effective and that Council will be able to continue
to provide key services to the community in the
event of a disaster.

Package Council’s wide range of integrity
policies, action plans and processes into a
comprehensive Integrity Framework to deliver
high ethical standards organisation-wide

Council will be implementing its integrity
framework to ensure fraud and corruption controls
are as effective as possible.
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Core services

A well governed and
empowered community

Our core services Council delivers a broad range of services aimed at promoting
a well governed and empowered community. These services include:

Communications and Engagement

The role of the Communications and Engagement
team is to promote the work and achievements
of Council and to keep the community informed
and engaged. The team is responsible for the
management of communication and engagement
strategy and planning; organisation branding;
community engagement activity; online, digital
and social communications; media and public
relations; advocacy; internal communications;
and the promotion, branding and marketing of
Maroondah City Council’s services, activities

and events. The team also provide support to

the Mayor and Councillors; management of civic
and corporate events; activities related to the
Mayor, Councillors and Council Meetings; and
coordination of policies, processes and reporting
related to the Mayor and Councillors.

Council and Community Planning
(Integrated Planning)

This team oversees the integrated planning

of Council activities and seeks to proactively
strengthen community wellbeing. The team
consists of three functions: Council Planning,
Community Planning, and Community
Development. The Council Planning function
coordinates the preparation of the Council Plan,
the Annual Report, corporate strategy and
policy development, and the cyclical service
delivery planning process. The Community
Planning function oversees social research and
policy development, along with the Maroondah
2040 Community Vision and the Maroondah
Health and Wellbeing Plan. The Community
Development function builds partnerships aimed
at strengthening community wellbeing and
advocating for community needs. This includes
work in the following areas: disability, culturally
and linguistically diverse communities,
marginalised communities, gender equity,
life-long learning, reconciliation, and
community safety.

Customer Service
(Revenue, Property and Customer Service)

The Customer Service team manages and operates
Council’s 1300 Contact Centre and three service
centres: in Braeside Avenue, Croydon Civic Square,
and Realm. The team provides information and
referral on Council services, supporting the customer
interface for key Council services such as Waste,
Local Laws, operations and Maroondah Leisure,
referral and triage of customer requests, and cash
receipting for payment of all accounts and fees.

Financial Services (Finance and Governance)

This team provides sound financial management
that complies with legislative requirements,

and also ensures that planning and budgeting
activities meet Maroondah’s vision and the
long-term financial sustainability of Council. The
core services include: accounts payable, financial
accounting (including reconciliations, financial
accounts and statutory returns), management
accounting (including long term financial strategy,
annual budget, monitoring and reporting)
strategic project analysis and coordination of
Council’s internal audit projects for the Audit and
Risk Advisory Committee.

Governance Administration
(Finance and Governance)

This team provides administrative support and
advice on a range of matters, including
statutory compliance; Council Meetings; and
conduct of Australian Citizenship Ceremonies.

Human Resources Advisory Services
(Workplace People and Culture)

This team provides a range of generalist human
resources advice and support on matters including
recruitment and selection, induction, job design
and analysis, remuneration and benchmarking,
policies and procedures, equal opportunity,
performance management and conditions of
employment.
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Information Technology (Information Technology)

The Information Technology team provides a
diverse range of services, supporting the delivery
of high quality, convenient, and cost-effective
services. This is achieved primarily through the
enablement of Council staff, and by increasing
organisational efficiency through the adoption and
use of technology to underpin service delivery to
the Maroondah community. And, by focusing on
our citizens needs and expectations, increasing the
convenience of interacting with Council by securely
providing more services online, delivering increased
accessibility beyond traditional business hours.

Learning and Development
(Workplace People and Culture)

This function oversees the development,
implementation and review of Council’s learning
and development activities and career development
which cover a range of internal services including
management of all learning and development programs
(including eLearning), targeted skills acquisition;
digital literacy, employee performance reviews,
employee and leadership development programs,
employee engagement and the management of
learning and development related policies.

Local Laws
(Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management)

The Local Laws team provides a broad range of
services to ensure the amenity, function and safety
of the City is maintained to a high standard. The
activities include the registration and management
of domestic animals; ensuring the management

of safe and accessible car parking; protection of
resident and business amenity and safety; fire
preparedness and prevention; and managing the
City’s school crossings.

Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S)
(Workplace People and Culture)

This function oversees the development,
implementation and review of Council’s safety
management systems which includes reviewing
and updating OH&S policies, OH&S training, hazard
identification, inspections and reporting and OH&S
consultative processes. A strong focus is placed

on hazard identification, risk assessment and the
identification and implementation of effective control
measures. Where incidents occur, the focus is on
minimising adverse consequences and making sure
appropriate counter measures are put in place with
the aim of preventing future accidents and incidents.

Payroll (Finance and Governance)

This team is responsible for the delivery of
the fortnightly payroll (end-to-end), system
administration of the payroll system and
time and attendance system, process and
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system improvements, legislative compliance,
remuneration services, reporting and policy
development and review.

Procurement (Finance and Governance)

This function assists Council’s service areas in the
purchasing of goods and services through the
strategic development and coordination of the
purchasing, tendering and contract management
processes.

Property and Valuations
(Revenue, Property and Customer Service)

This team provides, develops and implements
Council’s revenue policy and strategy, the annual
rating strategy, statutory declarations and notices,
and rates and charges generation. The team

issues rate notices, develops revenue projections,
manages concessions, sundry debtor invoicing,
leads Council’s debt recovery, Electoral Roll
production, manages the property database
recording ownership changes, new property
creations, street numbering and road naming.

The team also manages the Name and Address
register and ePathway registration requests for
the organisation, along with Council’s geographic
information system (mapping) database. The team
also collect the Fire Services Property Levy (FSPL)
on behalf of the Victorian Government.

The property component has carriage of
Council’s land portfolio including, buying, selling,
encroachments, and statutory requirements in
relation to its land holdings.

Risk, Information and Integrity
(Finance and Governance)

This team oversees the development,
implementation and review of the risk management
framework across Council which includes the
development and maintenance of strategic and
operational risks including risk treatment plans

and administration of the risk register. The function
also provides risk management advice and training
to Council service areas. Mitigation of Council’s
liability is achieved through effective claims
management and maintains appropriate insurance
cover for insurable assets and liabilities. This team
also helps ensure compliance in regard to statutory
registers, freedom of information and privacy as
well as the organisation’s information management
component, which relates to the accurate and
compliant storage of corporate documents.

WorkCover and Injury Management
(Workplace People and Culture)

This function involves management of rehabilitation,
fitness for work and the return to work program,
management of the employee assistance program
and development of associated policies.





DL You RINOW?

Since the introduction of online
lodgements for Asset Protection
Permits were made available of
the 181 permits applied for,
83% have applied online.

The Local Laws team provides a range of services including registration and management of domestic animals
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Corporate Governance

Maroondah City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1989 and the new Loca/
Government Act 2020 to provide democratic local government for the Maroondah community. The
purposes and objectives of Council as well as the functions and powers of a local government are also

defined in both Acts.

The new Local Government Act 2020 received Royal Assent on 24 March 2020 and marks the first
comprehensive overhaul of local government in Victoria for over 30 years and replaces the Loca/
Government Act 1989. The new Act is being implemented in four transitional stages, during which time it
will co-exist with a large number of the provisions within the former 1989 Act, up until 1 July 2021

Democratic governance in Maroondah is supported by policies and protocols associated with both the

functions of Council and of Council employees.

Transparency in
decision-making

There are a number of underlying processes

that contribute to Council’s decision-making;
some of which are formal and structured, while
others less formal. Formal decisions are made by
Council at Council Meetings, by Council Officers
or under formal powers of delegation. In this way
Council’s decision-making remains transparent and
accountable to the community.

Council meetings

Council determines policy and makes other
decisions at Council Meetings on an ongoing
basis. Policies and budgets endorsed by Council
provide the framework for the provision of
services and programs and for day-to-day
operational decision-making.

Council Officers provide advice and expertise to
assist Council decision-making. At formal Council
meetings, the CEO and Directors present written
reports on matters requiring a Council decision.
These reports make up the Council Meeting
Agenda and provide background to, details of
and recommendations about each matter being
considered.
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Councillor Briefing
Sessions/workshops

Before making decisions at a Council meeting,

it is important that Councillors first satisfy
themselves about the detail of the issues. As a
means of providing this information, Council holds
briefings or workshops called Councillor Briefings.
Councillors do not make legally binding decisions
in these informal forums.

These briefing sessions are an important forum for
advice and discussion, on what are often complex
issues facing the municipality in the lead up to
formal decisions being made by Councillors at
Council Meetings. At Councillor Briefings or outside
them, Councillors also have the opportunity of
requesting additional information to assist in the
decision-making process, in line with the Loca/
Government Act 1989. These briefing sessions,
which are not open to the public, are also attended
by Council Officers and sometimes consultants, to
provide Councillors with detailed knowledge and
an understanding of issues under consideration.
The level of details discussed would inhibit timely
decision-making if provided in an open Council
meeting, where debate is governed by strict
meeting procedures and time limits.

Councillor Briefings include a planned or scheduled
meeting, comprising of at least five Councillors

and one member of Council staff. They consider
matters that are intended or likely to be:

¢ the subject of a decision of the Council

¢ subject to the exercise of a delegated
function, duty, or power of Council.





Live streaming of
Council meetings

Live streaming of Council Meetings commenced
on 20 February 2017 to enhance processes and
provide ratepayers with a greater opportunity to
observe Council’s decision-making.

Community consultation

Council also has an ongoing commitment to
community consultation and ensuring that
residents within the municipality are empowered to
participate in the decision-making processes which
ultimately affect them.

Council recognises that engaging its residents is
essential in achieving effective decision-making
and has adopted a Community Engagement Policy
2015, which can be viewed on the Maroondah
website. This policy is a formal expression of
Council’'s commitment to engaging the Maroondah
community in decision-making processes through
the use of appropriate, effective and inclusive
practices. The policy applies to activities initiated
by Council, including statutory processes, service
provision, projects, strategic planning and policy
development, and other key activities that will have
appreciable impacts on the Maroondah community.
This occurs through a range of measures including
surveys, public forums, focus groups and targeted
consultations.

Council’s Local Law No.12 (Meetings Procedure
and Use of Common Seal) also makes provision
for public participation at Ordinary Meetings of
Council via Public Question Time.

Statutory planning process

Council also conducts public consultation
meetings, as are an integral part the process when
considering Planning Applications in accord with
the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

Ward Councillors determine whether or not a
consultation meeting is required, which is largely
dependent upon the number of objections received
to an application. These meetings, which are not
decision-making forums, provide opportunities for:

* The applicant to explain the proposed
development and respond to objections

¢ Residents to express their views and ask
questions of the applicant and Councillors

Councillor Code of Conduct

Council’s Code of Conduct is intended to ensure
all Councillors agree to the standards of conduct
and behaviour documented within this Code.
This Code of Conduct incorporates the statutory
requirements specified for a Code of Conduct

in accordance with section 76C of the Loca/
Government Act 1989 which has provided the
statutory direction for the 2019/20 financial year.
Many of the standards of conduct and behaviour
are prescribed within the Act. From the October
2016 Council elections, a candidate elected to

be a Councillor is not capable of acting as a
Councillor until they have read the Councillor
Code of Conduct and made a declaration stating
that they will abide by the Code. It is the personal
responsibility of individual Councillors to ensure
that they will understand, accept and comply with,
the provisions of this Code.

Councillors completed a review of the Code which
was adopted at a Special Meeting of Council held
on 20 February 2017.

The code requires that all Councillors:
e act with integrity

* impartially exercise their responsibilities
in the interests of the local community

* not improperly seek to confer an advantage
or disadvantage on any person

» avoid conflicts between their public
duties as a Councillor and their
personal interests and obligations

e act honestly and avoid statements (oral
or in writing) or actions that will or are
likely to mislead or deceive a person

* treat all persons with respect and have
due regard to the opinions, beliefs, rights
and responsibilities of other Councillors,
Council employees and other persons

e exercise reasonable care and diligence and
submit themselves to the lawful scrutiny
that is appropriate to their office

* endeavour to ensure that public resources are
used prudently and solely in the public interest

« act lawfully and in accordance with the trust
placed in them as an elected representative

e support and promote these principles
by leadership and example and act in a
way that secures and preserves public
confidence in the office of Councillor.

The Councillor Code of Conduct will be updated
during 2020/21 following the Council Elections
scheduled for October 2020.
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Delegations

Council has delegated specific functions to
nominated employees, which enables routine
decisions to be made more speedily and ensures
that Council meetings are not engaged with
procedural and operational administrative
decisions. It also enables Council to utilise the
technical knowledge, training and experience of its
employees to provide the best possible service to
the community.

Delegations are made by resolution of Council at a
formal Council meeting and specify the degree of
decision making and action for which employees
are empowered. In exercising their delegated
powers, employees must observe the strategies,
policies and guidelines that have been adopted by
Council. Through the CEOQO, Directors and Managers,
Council monitors the actions of its employees to
ensure that they exercise their delegated authority
within the general framework it has determined.
Employees to whom delegated authority

has been given include the CEO, Directors,
Managers, planning employees, environmental
health employees, local laws employees, the and

Municipal Building Surveyor and building surveyors.

Many routine decisions of Council are made by
these employees.

Council must also keep a register of all delegations,
which is available for public inspection.

Councillor representation

Council appoints Council delegates at the
commencement of a new mayoral term on an
annual basis. It provides clear communication

and delegate identification for Councillors, the
community and the organisations or bodies/
advisory groups to which a Councillor is a delegate.

There are two types of bodies requiring formal
Council representation, either internal or external.
Internal bodies/advisory groups have been initiated
by Council and are serviced administratively.

They typically consider in-depth issues that

are related to Council policy or activities. Their
primary purpose is to advise Council on issues.

An extension of these committees has been the
development of internal committees with a large
degree of community representation.

External bodies are those outside the control of
Council as they operate under their own charter
and determine their own procedures, policies and
practices. In these instances, Council involvement
is to participate and influence the activities of
those external groups where those activities are in
the interests of Maroondah residents. Committee
representation is reviewed on an annual basis and
aligns with the election of Mayor.

Convention indicates that where the Mayor is a
member of an internal Committee of Council, he/
she would automatically act as the Chair, unless
he/she relinquishes that role. Additionally, in
accordance with good governance practice where
the Mayor is not a specific member of a Committee
- he/she may exercise the option to attend any
committee in an ex-officio capacity.
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Council involvement on internal advisory committees

These committees provide Council advice from key stakeholders on a range of issues.

Representation on Council Advisory Committees

Council Advisory Committee Council Representative/s

Audit and Risk Advisory
Committee

Arts Advisory Committee

Disability Advisory Committee

Maroondah Community Safety
Committee

Maroondah Business Advisory
Committee

Maroondah Partners in
Community Wellbeing
Committee

Maroondah Environment
Advisory Committee

Maroondah Age-Friendly Cities
& Communities Network

July to October 2019: Mayor of the Day and Cr Symon
November to June 2020: Mayor of the Day and Cr Spears

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Spears, Cr Graham and Cr Symon

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Spears and Cr Dib
Substitute representative/s

July 2019 to June 2020: Program Manager Community Planning &
Development

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Lamont, Cr Steane and Cr Macdonald
Substitute representative

July 2019 to June 2020: Community Safety Officer

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Spears, Cr Steane and Cr Damante

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli and Cr Damante
Substitute representatives

July 2019 to June 2020: Social Planning and Development Officer
and Program Manager Community Planning & Development

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli, Cr Graham and Cr Macdonald

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Dib, Cr Lamont and Cr Graham
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Council involvement on external committees

These regional committees provide Council with the opportunity to represent local residents on a broad
range of issues.

Representation on External Committees

External Committee Council Representative/s

Maroondah - Communities of June to October 2019: Cr Mazzuchelli and Cr Graham

alloeing siesrng Cemmiiiss November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli and Cr Damante

Substitute representatives

Manager Integrated Planning

Victorian Local Government July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Mazzuchelli, Cr Graham, Cr Spears,
Women’s Charter Cr Lamont, Cr Damante and the Director of Corporate Services
as Council’s representatives/Charter Champions
Eastern Affordable Housing July to October 2019: Cr Macdonald
Alliance / Committee November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Dib
Substitute representatives

November 2019 to June 2020: Program Manager Community
Planning & Development and/or Manager Integrated Planning

Eastern Regional Group - July to October 2019: The Mayor of the Day, Deputy Mayor of the Day
Mayors and CEQO’s and the Chief Executive Officer

November 2019 to June 2020: The Mayor of the Day, Deputy Mayor
of the Day and the Chief Executive Officer

Substitute representatives
July to October 2019: Cr Symon
November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Spears

Eastern Regional Libraries July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Spears and Cr Damante
ClgelEien Substitute representatives

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Macdonald and Director Corporate
Services (or nominee) and Manager Revenue, Property and
Customer Service

Eastern Alliance for July to October 2019: Cr Graham
Cireenineuse ~Eten November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Graham
Substitute representatives

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Paul Macdonald, and Director Planning
and Community and/or Manager Integrated Planning
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Representation on External Committees

External Committee Council Representative/s

Eastern Transport Coalition July to October 2019: Cr Graham
November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Damante

Substitute representatives

July to October 2019: Cr Damante and the Transport and
Sustainability Planner and/or Team Leader Strategic Planning
and Sustainability

November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Graham and the Transport and
Sustainability Planner and/or Team Leader Strategic Planning
and Sustainability

Metropolitan Local July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Symon

Governments’ Waste Forum . .

Substitute representatives

July 2018 to June 2019: Director Corporate Services, Manager Finance
and Governance and Waste Management Coordinator

Local Government Safe Cities July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Steane

Nt Substitute representatives
July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Lamont
Municipal Association of July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Symon

Hlelerle Sizie Counell Substitute representatives

July 2019 to June 2020: Cr Spears

Metec (Metropolitan Training November 2019 to June 2020: Cr Lamont

Selueziten Carre Jne.) Substitute representatives

Cr Mazzuchelli
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Council meeting attendance

From July 2019 to June 2020, 12 ordinary Council meetings and one Special Council meeting were held.
Councillor attendance at the meetings in 2019/20 was as follows:

Councillor attendance at Council Meetings - July 2019 to June 2020

Councillors Meetings Attendance Leave of
eligible absence

to attend | Ordinary Special granted
Council Council | attendance | (# of mtgs)
Meetings | Meetings

Cr Tony Dib OAM JP 13 1l 1 12 0]

Cr Paul Macdonald 13 9 (0] 9 (0]

Cr Kylie Spears
13 12 1 13 0

Deputy Mayor: July to November 2019

Cr Nora Lamont 13 8 1 9 1

Cr Samantha Mazzuchelli 13 10 1 M 0

Cr Mike Symon
Mayor: November 2019 to June 2020

13 il 1 12 1

Cr Tasa Damante 13 n 1 12 (0]

Cr Marijke Graham 13 12 1 13 (0]

Deputy Mayor:
November 2019 to June 2020

Cr Rob Steane
13 10 1 1 1
Mayor: July to November 2019

*Notes:

Cr Nora Lamont was granted Leave of Absence from the Ordinary Council Meeting held 20 April 2020
Cr Rob Steane was granted Leave of Absence from the Ordinary Council Meeting held 20 April 2020
Cr Mike Symon was granted Leave of Absence from the Ordinary Council Meeting held 16 September 2019
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Conflict of interest

Conflict of Interest provisions as defined in the
Local Government Act 1989, will continue to
operate until 24 October 2020, at which time
provisions within the new Local Government Act
2020 will apply.

The Local Government Act 1989 defines the
circumstances that give rise to a Conflict of
Interest for Councillors, Council employees and
members of Council special committees. It also
specifies the actions that should be taken to
resolve a Conflict of Interest.

Councillors are elected by the residents and
ratepayers of their municipality to act in the best
interests of the community. This is a position of
trust and it needs to be clear that Councillors

are acting in the public interest. When a Council
delegates its powers to a Council officer or a
Committee, the officer or the Committee Members
also need to act in the public interest.

A person in public office has a Conflict of Interest
when they have a personal or private interest
that might compromise their ability to act in the
public interest. A Conflict of Interest exists even if
no improper act results from it. In general terms,
a person has a conflict of interest if they have a
direct interest in a matter, including where they are
likely to directly gain or lose financially. Under the
Local Government Act 1989, a Conflict of Interest
also exists where a person has one or more of the
following six types of indirect interest:

¢ An indirect interest because of a close
association with a family member, relative
or housemate who has a defined interest.

¢ An indirect financial interest, including
holding shares above a certain value in
a company with a direct interest.

¢ A conflict of duty arising from having
particular responsibilities to a person or
organisation with a direct interest.

¢« Having received an applicable gift or gifts
totalling $500 in value over a five-year period.

¢ Being a party to the matter by having
become a party to civil proceedings
in relation to the matter.

Where there is a reasonable likelihood of the
person’s residential amenity being altered.
Declaration of a Conflict of Interest is a standard
agenda item for all Ordinary Council, Special
Council, Assembly of Councillor briefings, and
Committee meetings.

While the procedures may vary depending on the
circumstances, in general they involve disclosing
the relevant interests in a specific way and then
stepping aside from the relevant decision-making
process or from the exercise of their public duty.

During 2019/2020, one conflict of interest
disclosure was made at Special and Ordinary
Meetings of Council.

Conflict of Interest Disclosures at Ordinary and
Special Meetings of Council

_m

Direct interest
(section 77B)

Indirect interest by
close association
(section 78)

Indirect financial
interest
(section 78A)

Indirect interest
because of
conflicting duties
(section 78B)

Indirect interest due
to receipt of a gift,
being of $200 value
or more

(section 78C)

Indirect interest as
a consequence of
becoming party to
civil proceedings
(section 78D)

Indirect interest
because of impact
on residential
amenity

(section 78E)

Conflicting personal
interest
(section 79B)

Note: Conflict of Interest is expressed differently under the
new Local Government Act 2020, which has introduced the
new concepts of General Conflict of Interest and Material
Conflict of Interest - (refer Part 6, Division 2, Sections 126 to
131, which will be enacted on 24 October 2020).
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Councillor allowances

In accordance with Section 74 of the Local Government Act 1989, Councillors are entitled to receive
an allowance while performing their duty as a Councillor. The Mayor is also entitled to receive a higher
allowance.

The Victorian Government sets the upper and lower limits for all allowances paid to Councillors and
Mayors. Councils are divided into three categories based on the income and population of each Council.
Maroondah City Council is recognised as a Category Two Council.

The following table contains a summary of the Councillor Allowance paid to each Councillor during the
2019/20 financial year.

Councillors Allowance

Cr Tony Dib OAM JP $28,503.32
Cr Paul Macdonald $28,503.32
Cr Kylie Spears - Deputy Mayor July 2019 to November 2019 $28,503.32
Cr Nora Lamont $28,503.32
Cr Samantha Mazzuchelli $28,503.32
Cr Mike Symon - Mayor November 2019 to June 2020 $66,394.55
Cr Marijke Graham - Deputy Mayor November 2019 to June 2020 $28,503.32
Cr Tasa Damante $28,503.32
Cr Rob Steane - Mayor July 2019 to November 2019 $50,300.86
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Councillor expenses

In accordance with Section 75 of the Local Government Act 1989 which has provided the statutory
direction for the 2019/20 financial year, Council is required to reimburse a Councillor for expenses
incurred whilst performing his or her duties as a Councillor. Council is also required to adopt and maintain
a Policy in relation to the reimbursement of expenses for Councillors. The Policy provides guidance for
the payment of reimbursements of expenses and the provision of resources, facilities and other support
to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors to enable them to discharge their duties. A budget of
$102,000 in the 2019/20 financial year was allocated for the expenses and reimbursement of Councillors.

Council also publishes in its Annual Report the details of the expenses, including reimbursement of
expenses for each Councillor and member of a Council Committee paid by the council. The details of the
expenses for the 2019/20 financial year are set out in the table below.

Councillor TR CcM CcC IC YTD
(€] (€)) (€)) (€)) July 2019

to June

2020 (%)

Tony Dib OAM JP ¢} 163.09 O 1180.37 ¢} 187.27 1530.73
Paul Macdonald 688.50 0 O 960.46 1013.29 2124.90 478715
Kylie Spears 139.07 0 0 n7in 2006.19 1022.67  4339.04
Nora Lamont 2379.48 0 (0] 983.22 2400.96 90.86 5854.52
Samantha Mazzuchelli (0] 0 O 1084.23 7727 336.68 1498.18
Mike Symon 1435.36 7882.71# (0] 990.45 4850.50 413.94 15572.96#
Marijke Graham 148.38 O  438.79 902.52 2880.36 1318.72 5688.77
Tasa Damante 289.89 0 2006.97 922.66 322.73 68818  4230.43
Rob Steane 3078.62 4629.89# 0 970.74 2751.93 509.64 11940.82#
TOTAL 8159.30 12675.69 2445.76 9165.76 16303.23 6692.86 55442.60

Legend: TR-Travel, CM-Car Mileage (# a budget allocation of $12,000 is allocated to the Office of the Mayor for the provision
of a vehicle during the Mayoral term), CC-Child Care, IC-Information and Communication expenses, CT- Conferences and
Training expenses, CCA-Civic and Community Attendance.

Note: No expenses were paid by Council including reimbursements to members of Council Committees during the year.
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Accountability

Audit and Risk Advisory Committee

The Audit and Risk Advisory Committee is established pursuant to Section 139 of the Local Government
Act 1989 which has provided the statutory direction for the 2019/20 financial year. The Committee

assists Council in the discharge of its responsibility for financial reporting, maintaining internal controls,
protecting the integrity of Council assets and facilitating good corporate governance. The Committee has
an independent monitoring role and reports directly to Council.

Role Membership

The role of the Audit and Risk Advisory Membership consists of five members, three
Committee is to oversee, monitor and report external members (one of which is the chair), the
upon the effectiveness of Council in carrying Mayor and one additional Councillor. Councillor
out its responsibilities for accountable financial representatives are appointed annually. External
management, good corporate governance, member positions are advertised, and successful
maintaining a system of internal control and risk candidates are appointed for a three year term

management, and fostering an ethical environment. with a maximum of six years. The Chief Executive
Officer, Director Corporate Services, Manager
Finance and Governance attend for advice

The responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Advisory and administrative support while the internal
Committee include providing assurance that: auditor and the external auditor attend meetings
by invitation, to assist the committee with
information requests.

Responsibilities

< financial and management reporting is reliable

* high standards of corporate
governance are maintained

Audit and Risk Advisory Committee membership

* accounting policies are appropriate

. | intai i ith all Period July 2019 to November 2019
councl malp a|r.15 compliance V.VI a November 2019 to June 2020
relevant legislation and regulations

External Mr John Watson Mr John Watson
Members (Chair) (Chair)

e risk management frameworks are effective

* internal and external audit functions Mr B p . Mr B p .
are effective and efficient r Bruce Potgieter Mr Bruce Potgieter
e business continuity and disaster recovery e el el Jhar vileles) ek

lanning is appropriate and effective . .
P 9 pbrop Councillor Cr. Rob Steane Cr. Mike Symon

e council maintains and fosters Members (Mayor) (Mayor)

an ethical environment. . .
I Vi Cr. Mike Symon Cr. Kylie Spears

Key activities

The Committee met on a quarterly basis during

2019/20 and its activities included a External aud It
* a detailed review of quarterly and
annual financial statements Council is externally audited by the Victorian

Auditor-General. In 2019/20, the Office of the
Auditor-General appointed RSM Australia as their
representative. An external audit is undertaken
* assessing the content and priorities each year on Council’s Financial and Standard

of the internal audit program Statements, and Performance Statement.

* reviewing results from the
conduct of internal audits.

* identification and assessment of strategic,
organisational, and operational level risks
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Risk Management

Maroondah City Council continues its commitment to proactive risk management as an integral part of
its corporate governance system and operational service delivery performance. The fundamental aim is
to support and enable Council to achieve its objectives through the identification and management of

risks and the maximisation of opportunities.

Enterprise Risk Management

A risk management framework is defined as a

set of components that provide the foundations
and organisational arrangements for designing,
implementing, monitoring, reviewing and
continually improving risk management
throughout the organisation. Council has adopted
a comprehensive Risk Management Framework
which includes strategic, organisational and
operational level risks.

The purpose of the Risk Management Framework
is to align effective risk management practices
across Council within a common framework, based
on the Australian standard. The effectiveness of
embedding such a framework is measured by its
state of maturity of the management of Councils
risk which includes benchmarking across the local
government throughout Australia. Council has
developed a risk aware culture and has increased
risk knowledge and used its application to
facilitate decision making processes, leadership
commitment, reporting and evaluation. The Risk
Management Framework reflects the current risk
activity within Council.

Risk Register

The Risk Register includes strategic organisational
and operational risks and is reviewed in its entirety
every quarter. The fundamental risk assessment
process is used in the identification, treatment and
rating of risks. This review includes evaluation of
the existing risks and addition of new or emerging
risks. Treatment plans are also formulated for any
high or extreme level risks, to lower the level of
risk to a more acceptable medium/low risk target.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Advisory Group’s key
function is to monitor the risk management
framework across Council. The group has broad
management representation across operational
service areas. Activities of this group are
routinely reported to the Audit and Risk
Advisory Committee
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Freedom of Information requests

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 (the Act) provides the right for individuals to access information
held by Council, subject to the exemptions contained within the Act.

The Act has four basic principles:

1. Local governments are required to publish 3. People may appeal against a decision not to
information about the documents they hold, give access to information or not to amend a
particularly those which affect members of the personal record.

public in their dealings with Council. 4. People may request inaccurate, incomplete,

2. Each person has a legally enforceable right to out of date or misleading information in their
access information, limited only by exemptions personal records be amended.
e e e e Protectn o ursuant toth Act sactions G5AA et
P P by Council’, and section 64(3) the following

affairs of persons from whom information is . o . )
collected by Council) information is supplied relating to Freedom of
y ) Information applications for the period 1 July 2019
to 30 June 2020.

Total number of new requests

Access granted in full (0] 6 7 6
Access granted in part 7 2 1 1
Other = = = 3
Access denied in full (0] = 1 1
Requests still under consideration (0} 1 1 1
Number of reviews by FOI Commissioner sought (0] 1 - -
(Internal Reviews prior to 2012/13)

Appeals lodged with VCAT ¢} = = =
Notices served pursuant to section 12(1) of the Act 0 - - -
Occasions where disciplinary action was taken against (0] - - -
any officer regarding the administration of this Act

Application fees collected $177.60 $173.40 $170.40 $279.00
Charges collected 0 $36.20 $0 $85.00

No other facts are relevant pursuant to section 64(3)(a) to (j) of the Act. Freedom of information
requests must be made in writing and be accompanied by a $29.60 application fee. Applicants should
also indicate how they would like to receive the information. Under legislation, Council must decide if the
information will be provided within 30 days.

All enquiries relating to accessing documents under freedom of information should be directed to
Council’s Risk, Information and Integrity Team. The Freedom of Information Officer made all decisions on
requests.

Information regarding Freedom of Information including an outline of the process, initial application fee
and application form is published on Council’s website at www.maroondah.vic.gov.au
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Privacy Risk

Maroondah City Council has adopted a Privacy
Policy to regulate the use and access by Council
to the personal information and health information
that it collects from both its residents and clients.

To provide services all Councils are required to
collect and use personal, confidential and sensitive
information of individuals. Council is required to
balance the rights of individuals to have controls
over the use of their personal information to ensure
that the right information is available for services
to operate and function.

Both the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2074
(the Act) and the Health Records Act 20017
require all Victorian Councils to comply with

a series of privacy principles that are tailored
for either the collection and use of personal
information or the collection and use of health
information. Maroondah is fully committed to its
privacy obligations.

Council has adopted a Privacy Policy to regulate
the use and access by Council to the personal and
health information that it collects from both its
residents and clients.

Maroondah City Council has always regarded
privacy as very important and has appointed a
Privacy Officer to assist in the handling of

any enquiries.

The privacy officer can be contacted on
1300 88 22 33 or via email
privacy@maroondah.vic.gov.au

Procurement

Council’s Procurement Policy aims to provide

a framework that ensures Maroondah City
Council’s purchasing procedures and processes

are undertaken in a manner conversant with
occupational health and safety, risk management
practices, relevant legislation, purchasing principles
and Council’s corporate objectives.

This Policy establishes the framework within which
Council employees undertake the purchasing of
goods and services for the efficient and effective
functioning of their service area.

In accordance with this policy, Council did not
enter into any contracts valued at $150,000 or
greater for services or $200,000 or greater for
works of a kind specified in section 186(5)(a) and
(c) of the Act. It also did not enter into any other
contracts valued at $150,000 or more for goods or
services or $200,000 or more for works without
first engaging in a competitive process.

Public Interest Disclosures

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act)
commenced operation in February 2013 and was
amended in 2019 which includes new protections
for anyone making a public interest disclosure and
included changing the name of this legislation to
the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2072 (PID Act).
The amendments came into effect on 1 January
2020. The purpose of the PID Act is to encourage
and facilitate the disclosure of any improper
conduct. Any person who has reasonable grounds
to believe that improper or corrupt conduct

has occurred may make a disclosure. For Local
Government, disclosures can be made about
Councillors and any Council employees directly

to the Independent broad-based anti-corruption
commission (IBAC). Protection is provided by the
PID Act to those persons within an organisation
disclosing corrupt behaviour.

Maroondah City Council recognises the value

of transparency and accountability in its
administrative and management practices. Council
is committed to the aims and objectives of the
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012. A policy
handling public interests’ disclosures have been
adopted to comply with the provisions of the PID
Act. Copies of this Policy are available on Council’s
website at www.maroondah.vic.gov.au

During 2019/20, Council did not receive any
disclosures.
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Legislation

Council delivers a wide range of services and operates within a highly regulated environment.

These Acts and regulations can either:

have a direct impact on Council and require significant compliance

contain specific provisions relevant to Council

have indirect influence and require knowledge by employees carrying out their duties.

Legislation that impacts upon Council activities (but is not limited to) is identified below:

Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

Aged Care Act 1997 (Commonwealth)
Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012
Australian Accounting Standards

Building Act 1993

Building Regulations 2006

Carers Recognition Act 2012

Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994

Charter of Human Rights and
Responsibilities Act 2006

Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005
Children Youth and Families Act 2005
Children’s Services Act 1996

Climate Change Act 2070

Conservation, Forests and Land Act 1987
Country Fire Authority Act 1958

Country Fire Authority Regulations 2014
Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978

Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963
Dangerous Goods (Explosives) Regulations 207171
Dangerous Goods Act 1985

Disability Act 2006

Domestic Animals Act 1994

Drugs, Poisons and Controlled
Substances Regulations 2017

Education and Care Services
National Law Act 2070

Education and Care Services
National Law Regulations 2011

Education and Training Reform Act 2006
Electricity Safety Act 1998

Emergency Management Act 2013

Environment Protection Act 1970

Estate Agents Act 1980

Fences Act 1968

Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012

Flora and Fauna Guarantee Act 1988

Food Act 1984

Freedom of Information Act 1982

Gambling Regulation Act 2003

Geographical Place Names Act 1998

Geothermal Energy Resources Regulations 2006
Graffiti Prevention Act 2007

Health (Immunisation) Regulations 1999

Health Records Act 2001

Heavy Vehicle National Law Application Act 2013
Heritage Act 1995

Housing Act 1983

Impounding of Livestock Act 1994

Independent Broad-Based Anti-
Corruption Commission Act 20171

Infringements Regulations 2016
Infringements Act 2006
Land Acquisition and Compensation Act 1986

Land Acquisition and Compensation
Regulations 2070

Land Act 1958

Liquor Control Reform Act 1998

Local Government Act 2020

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government (Electoral) Regulations 2016

Local Government (General) Regulations 2015
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Local Government (Long Service e Second Hand Dealers and Pawnbrokers Act 1989
Leave) Regulations 2012 . Sex Work Act 1994

» Sheriff Act 2009

* Sport and Recreation Act 1972

e Subdivision (Fees) Regulations 2016

Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014

Magistrates’ Court Act 1989
Major Transport Projects Facilitation Act 2009

Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act 1958 e Subdivision (Procedures) Regulations 2071

e Subdivision (Registrar’s
Requirements) Regulations 2011

e Subdivision Act 1988

Mineral Resources (Sustainable
Development) Act 1990

Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004

Occupational Health and Safety * Summary Offences Act 1966

Regulations 2007 e Tobacco Act 1987
Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 » Transfer of Land Act 1958
Planning and Environment Act 1987 e Transport (Safety Schemes Compliance

. . . Enf Act 2074
Planning and Environment Regulation 2015 and Enforcement) Act 20

Planning and Environment (Fees) * Transport Integration Act 2010
Further Interim Regulations 2016 * Urban Renewal Authority Victoria Act 2003

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 (formerly *  Valuation of Land Act 1960
the Protected Disclosure Act 2072)

Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008
Public Health and Wellbeing Regulations 2009
Public Records Act 1973

e Victoria Grants Commission Act 1976
* Victoria State Emergency Service Act 2005
e Victorian Inspectorate Act 2071

*  Water Act 1989
Residential Tenancies Act 1997
Road Management Act 2004 The full text of Victorian Acts and Regulations is
Road Management (General) Regulations 2016 online at: www.austlii.edu.au/au/vic/

Road Management (Works & Full text of Commonwealth legislation is online at:
Infrastructure) Regulations 2015 www.austlii.edu.au/au/

Road Safety (General) Regulations 2009

Road Safety (Traffic Management)
Regulations 2009

Road Safety (Vehicles) Regulations 2009
Road Safety Act 1986
Road Safety Road Rules 2017
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Occupational Health and Safety

Maroondah City Council has continued to
actively work with its employees, contractors
and volunteers in order to maintain and improve
positive safety performance and minimise
potentially adverse consequences.

Council continues to focus on incorporating
safety considerations into all aspects of service
delivery and operational activities, via a positive
safety culture. The ongoing maintenance of
effective consultative processes such as Council’s
OHS committee structures continue to assist
with fostering a positive and action orientated
organisational safety culture. Other aspects

of Council’s Occupational Health and Safety
(OHS) systems such as policies, procedures and
processes have been further developed and
improved, with a particular focus on lone workers;
contractor management; and plant safety.

The outcomes of audit and review processes
continue to guide and inform potential
opportunities for further improvements to
Council’s safety management system elements.

Workplace incidents continue to be actively
reported and investigated in order to facilitate

the implementation of effective countermeasures
and corrective actions. Council’s proactive injury
management processes continue to assist with
the effective management of an ageing workforce,
and with minimising the impacts of work related
injuries or illnesses

Equal opportunity, harassment and bullying prevention

Maroondah City Council is committed to providing a workplace free of all forms of unlawful
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, bullying and vilification and aims for equality of opportunity for
all employees, Councillors, consultants, contractors, and volunteers.

Discrimination, harassment, victimisation, bullying and vilification are not only unacceptable at Council,
they are unlawful and Council will ensure that all employees, Councillors, consultants, contractors, and
volunteers are educated in the prevention of unlawful equal opportunity (EO) acts.

Maroondah City Council is committed to:

e creating a working environment which
is free from discrimination, harassment,
victimisation, bullying and vilification, where
all Employees, Councillors, Consultants,
contractors, and volunteers are treated
with dignity, courtesy and respect

¢ implementing training and awareness
raising strategies to ensure that all parties
know their rights and responsibilities,
as far as is reasonably practicable

* providing an effective procedure for
complaints raising and resolution, based
on the principles of natural justice

« treating all complaints in a sensitive,
fair, timely, and confidential manner

e protection from any victimisation or reprisals

e encouraging the reporting of
inappropriate behaviour

e promoting appropriate standards
of conduct at all times.
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Maroondah City Council convenes an Equal
Opportunity Consultative Committee (EOCC) that
meets several times a year. The purpose of the
EOCC is to:

» stand for the awareness of a fair
and equitable workplace;

* raise awareness on issues and concerns
around EO within the workplace;

* identify opportunities and issues
that relate to our workplace and
facilitate actions to drive change;

* raise prevailing issues that exist
within the organisation;

* provide direction to the broader
organisation on diversity and inclusion.





Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: governance and management checklist

The following statement provides the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against
the governance and management checklist as part of the Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework.

1 Community Engagement Policy (policy Policy |
outlining Council’s commitment to
engaging with the community on matters
of public interest)

Date of operation of current policy:
24 August 2015

2 Community engagement guidelines Toolkit |
(guidelines to assist staff to determine
when and how to engage with the
community)

Date of operation of current guidelines:
21 June 2016

3 Strategic Resource Plan (plan under Adopted in accordance with section 126 of |
section 126 of the Act outlining the financial the Local Government Act 1989
and non-flnanma! resqurces required for at Date of adoption: 27 July 2020
least the next 4 financial years)

4 Annual Budget (plan under section 130 Adopted in accordance with section 130 of %}
of the Act setting out the services to be the Local Government Act 1989
provided and initiatives to be undertaken .
over the next 12 months and the funding DRI ©F Sxelofitient 27/ Julh 020
and other resources required)

5 Asset management plans (plans that set Plans |

out the asset r_nalntenance and renewal Date of adoption: 16 October 2015

needs for key infrastructure asset classes

for at least the next 10 years) The Asset Management Plan is a single
document with sections for each asset
class: roads, car parks, laneways and
rights-of-way, kerb and channel, traffic
management devices, pathways, bridges
and walkways, park inventory, trees and
stormwater drainage.

6 Rating strategy (strategy setting out the Strategy |
ra:w:g structure of Council to levy rates and Bife 6f G oaEfen of CUER: SIEiEeay:
charges 20 May 2019

7 Risk policy (policy outlining Council’s Policy |

commitment and approach to minimising

s e (o CovineTis CreEriens) Date of operation of current policy:

28 June 2016

8 Fraud policy (policy outlining Council’s Policy |
commitment and approach to minimising

A (el o frrae) Date of operation of current policy:

19 March 2018

9 Municipal Emergency Management Plan Prepared and maintained in accordance |
(plan under section 20 of the Emergency with section 20 of the Emergency
Management Act 1986 for emergency Management Act 1986

prevention, response and recovery) Date of adoption: 17 Feb 2020
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Procurement policy (policy under section
186A of the Local Government Act 1989
outlining the matters, practices and
procedures that will apply to all purchases
of goods, services and works)

Business continuity plan (plan setting
out the actions that will be undertaken
to ensure that key services continue to
operate in the event of a disaster)

Disaster recovery plan (plan setting out the
actions that will be undertaken to recover
and restore business capability in the event
of a disaster)

Risk Management Framework (framework
outlining Council’s approach to managing
risks to the Council’s operations)

Audit committee (advisory committee of
Council under section 139 of the Act whose
role is to oversee the integrity of a Council’s
financial reporting, processes to manage
risks to the Council’s operations and for
compliance with applicable legal, ethical,
and regulatory requirements)

Internal audit

(independent accounting professionals
engaged by Council to provide analysis
and recommendations aimed at
improving Council’s governance, risk and
management controls)

Performance reporting framework (a
set of indicators measuring financial and
non-financial performance, including the
performance indicators referred to in
section 131 of the Act)

Council Plan reporting (report reviewing
the performance of the Council against the
Council Plan, including the results in relation
to the strategic indicators, for the first six
months of the financial year)

Financial reporting (quarterly statements
to Council under section 138 of the

Act comparing budgeted revenue and
expenditure with actual revenue and
expenditure)

Prepared and approved in accordance with
section 186 A of the Local Government Act
1989

Date of approval: 29 July 2019

Policy
Date of approval: 2 August 2018

Plan

Date of approval: 13 December 2018

Framework

Date of operation of current framework:
28 June 2016

Established in accordance with section 139
of the Local Government Act 1989

Date of establishment: 1 October 1994

At Maroondah, this Committee is known as
the Audit and Risk Advisory Committee

Engaged

Date of engagement of current provider:
1 September 2016

Framework

Date of operation of current framework:
26 April 2017

Report

Date of report for the first six months of
financial year 19 August 2019

Date of report for the second six months of
financial year: 17 February 2020

Quarterly statements presented to Council
in accordance with section 138(1) of the
Local Government Act 1989

Date quarterly statements presented:
19 August 2019

18 November 2019

17 February 2020

18 May 2020
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19

20

21

22

23

24

Risk Reporting (six-monthly reports of
strategic risks to Council’s operations, their
likelihood and consequences of occurring
and risk minimisation strategies)

Performance reporting (six-monthly
reports of indicators measuring the
results against financial and non-financial
performance, including performance
indicators referred to in section 131 of
the Act)

Annual Report (annual report under
sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act to
the community containing a report of
operations and audited financial and
performance statements)

Councillor Code of Conduct (Code
under section 76C of the Act setting out
the conduct principles and the dispute
resolution processes to be followed by
Councillors)

Delegations (a document setting out the
powers, duties and functions of Council and
the Chief Executive Officer that have been
delegated to members of staff)

Meeting procedures (a local law governing
the conduct of meetings of Council and
special committees)

Report 1|

Date of report for the last six months of last
financial year 18 November 2019

Date of report for the first six months of
financial year: 17 February 2020

Report ™

Date of report for the first six months of
financial year: 19 August 2019

Date of report for the second six months of
financial year: 17 February 2020

Considered at a meeting of Council in 1|
accordance with section 134 of the Loca/
Government Act 1989

Date presented: 21 October 2019

Reviewed in accordance with section 76C of ™
the Local Government Act 1989

Date reviewed: 20 February 2017

Reviewed in accordance with section 98(6) |
of the Local Government Act 1989

Date of review: 15 May 2017

Meeting procedures local law made in 1|
accordance with section 91(1) of the Local
Government Act 1989

Date local law made: 1 October 2016

| certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management
arrangements.

Steve KozlowskKi
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 7 September 2020

Cr. Mike Symon
Mayor
Dated: 7 September 2020
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Statutory information

The information in this section is provided in accordance with legislative and other requirements applying
to Council. Topics within this section and the applicable legislation/regulations are listed below:

Relevant legislation/regulation (if applicable)

Best Value Reporting

Carers Recognition

Disability Policy and Action Plan

Documents to be made available for public
inspection

Domestic Animal Management

Food Act Ministerial Directions

Freedom of Information requests

Infrastructure and development contributions

Local Laws

National Competition Policy

Privacy

Procurement

Protected Disclosure

Road Management

Victorian Local Government Indicators

Victorian Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework: Service Performance
Indicators
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Local Government (Best Value Principles) Act
1999 amending Local Government Act 1989

Carers Recognition Act 2012

Disability Act 2006

Local Government Act 1989 and Local
Government (General) Regulations 2015

Domestic Animals Act 1994

Food Act 1984

Freedom of Information Act 1982

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government Act 1989

Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and the
Health Records Act 2001

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government Act 1989

Road management Act 2004

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 amending Local Government
Act 1989





Best Value reporting

In December 1999, the Victorian Government Our community vision is for Maroondah to be
passed the Local Government (Best Value a center of economic activity and opportunity
Principles) Bill 1999 which incorporated a statutory  within the eastern region. With Ringwood and
requirement into the Local Government Act 1989 Croydon both Victorian Government designated
(the Act), which required Councils to review all Activity Centres, Council supports a broad range
their services against six Best Value principles. of facilities and services to meet the community
The Best Value principles aim to ensure that local needs and where the sustainability and growth of
government services are the best available and local businesses is supported.

meet the needs of the community. . L . .
y Commercial, civic and recreational areas will

The Best Value principles as set out in Section incorporate infrastructure and services that meet
208B of the Local Government Act 1989 are: the needs and aspirations of all ages and abilities.
These projects aim to deliver key strategic civic
infrastructure in these two Activity Centres and
enhanced services to the entire community over
2) All services provided by a Council must be the next four years and beyond.

responsive to the needs of the community.

1 All services provided by a Council must meet
quality and cost standards.

3) Each service provided by a Council must be .
accessible to those members of the community PI’OC@SS Im provements
for whom the service is intended.

Council initiated the following process

4) A Council must achieve continuous improvement . .
) P improvements during 2019/20:

in the provision of services for its community.

* Improvement of the Building Activity
Management System which has been
adapted to the introduction of the State
Government Building Activity Management

5) A Council must develop a program of regular
consultation with its community in relation to
the services it provides.

6) A Council must report regularly to its System including the creation of reports
community on its achievements in relation to to provide and receive information
Best Value. from the Victorian Building Authority in

At Maroondah City Council, an integrated planning accordance with regulatory requirements.

framework ensures that Council strategies and * Implemented improved processes for
financial resources are aligned to deliver the infrastructure compliance related matters,
objectives outlined in the Maroondah 2040 ‘Our including Asset Protection permits and
future together’ and the Maroondah City Council building site related inspections and

Plan 2017-21. Within this planning framework, associated enforcement. The improvements
an annual service delivery planning process undertaken have included the implementation
incorporates reference to Best Value principles to of on-line information and new IT based
ensure that Council services continue to meet the systems to support the infrastructure
changing needs of the community. compliance related activities.

To ensure a continuous improvement approach « Launch of Asset Protection application

to the provision of Council services, a wide range process along with a new website

of continuous improvement initiatives have been and online lodgements.

implemented during 2019/20. Some of these

initiatives are highlighted below. * Streamlined planning compliance has been

implemented to effectively resolve disputes
and complaints, improve communication
with the community and review the Planning

SerV|Ce |mprovement5 Infringements process and payments.

« Additional options have been identified
and investigated for the implementation of
stormwater management for new development
as required by the planning scheme.

During 2019/20, Council focused on several
exciting projects that will see some new facilities
built improving services and connections to

our community. These include the Karralyka
redevelopment and the Croydon Community
Wellbeing Precinct.
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Commencement of a new environmentally
sustainable design function to provide
advice to the community, developers and
planning officers to incorporate sustainable
design initiatives into both residential

and commercial developments.

Updating of swept path vehicle templates
for assessment of private development
applications, ensuring waste collection
vehicles are able to provide services.

Improvement of street cleansing services
by varying the times that commercial and
high-profile areas are serviced, maximising
productivity and sustainability of the street
cleansing function, as well as a high profile
seven-day-a-week service to maintain
highly visited areas within Maroondah;

Review of emergency management and
business continuity plans related to a natural
disaster following recent bushfires including a
secondment to East Gippsland Shire Council.

New online booking system for the
immunisation service for babies, children
and adults, based on the National
Immunisation Program (NIP), with regular
public immunisation sessions held at
various locations across Maroondah.

Improvements to the immunisation service
including: email consents for school
immunisation being sent directly to the
parent/guardian, significantly increasing the
return rate and immunisation rate; and a
feedback form added to the immunisation
webpage to better understand client
concerns and inform improvements.

Body cameras have been rolled out and
deployed into the field where Local Laws
and Animal Management Officers have found
the devices useful for statement taking

and field interviews as well as collection

of evidence and there has been less
threatening behaviour towards officers.

Structural improvements

Council initiated the following structural
improvement during 2019/20:

Realm Operations shifted from Business
and Activity Centre development to
Revenue, Property and Customer Service.
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Information systems
Improvements

Council initiated the following information system
improvements during 2019/20:

Upgrade of Council’s Asset Management
System, IPS to Version 11.2 to provide users with
enhanced functionality within existing modules.

Improvements to the Statutory Planning
page on Council’s website which has
provided easy and more direct access to
online services for users as well as improving
the synergies between other service areas
where application types may overlap.

Implementation of an electronic permit
process which includes the development

of enhanced permits with enforceable
conditions, resulting in improved levels

of compliance while assisting with the
enforcement of permit conditions as required.

Road Opening/Vehicle Crossing Permit
process introduced to Pathway to enable
electronic permits and payments.

Development of Geographical Information
system (GIS) layer in Pathway that depicts
vulnerable facilities using relevant land
use codes, which removes the need to
manually update the information.

Improved management of new, transferring
and closing food and health premises via
workflows in Pathway to provide consistency,
standard documentation templates and
monitoring progress through dashboards,

to allow self-sufficient processing of
applications and a clear, streamlined process
in-line with documented procedures.

Improved administration processes in
Pathway for Local Laws officers, with
increased training and process reviews
following the introduction of tablets and
mobile technology for use out in the field.

Online seasonal and casual booking
system for sports fields and pavilions with
integration to the payment/debit system.

Mobilisation of Council’s workforce during the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, ensuring
the continuation of core services, including
customer service and the rapid deployment
of IT infrastructure and connectivity.





Carers recognition

Maroondah City Council has taken all practicable
measures to comply with its responsibilities
outlined in the Carers Recognition Act 2012 (the
Act). Council has promoted the principles of the
Act to people in care relationships who receive
Council services, to people in care relationships,
and to the wider community by:

¢ distributing printed material through
relevant Council services

¢ providing information regarding the Act
to Maroondah Healthy Ageing Network,
Maroondah Seniors Register, Senior Citizens
Clubs, older people’s groups, and clients of
Council’'s Aged and Disability Services

¢ providing links to resource materials
on Council’s website

* providing Information regarding the Act in
the Active and Healthy Ageing Newsletter,
Maroondah Healthy Ageing Network Chatterbox
newsletter and Commonwealth Home Support
Program Client Information booklet

¢ providing written information regarding
the Act within Client Information Packs

¢ distributing printed material to all Aged
and Disability employees and volunteers.

Council has taken all practicable measures to
ensure employees, Council agents and volunteers
working for Council are informed about the
principles and obligations of the Act by including
information on the care relationship in:

* Council induction and training programs
for employees working in front-line
positions with the general community

e internal information sessions for all of
Council’s Aged and Disability employees
and volunteers at team meetings.

Council has taken all practicable measures to
review and modify policies, procedures and
supports to include recognition of the carer
relationship and has provided the following
additional activities and resources to recognise the
care relationship:

» facilitation of the Maroondah
Carer Support Group

« facilitation of a Dementia Carers Support Group

« facilitation of the Dementia-specific
Social Support Group program to support
carers of people with dementia

« shared training/professional
development opportunities with other
local services responding to people
with dementia and their carers

e ongoing staff professional development

* Council’'s Occupational Therapist will work
with carers to solve and improve safety
issues in the home and community.
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Disability Policy and Action Plan

In accordance with section 38 of the Disability Act 2008, Council must report on the implementation
of the Disability Policy and Action Plan in its Annual Report. During 2019/20 Council undertook a wide
range of activities in delivering on this Plan. These included:

Risk management plans were implemented for
the Realm and Eastland Activation program
to include consideration of disability.

Council developed an enhanced social outing
program encouraging active participation
which is adaptable for people with different
capabilities and supports vulnerable people
to reconnect with our community.

Council actively promoted positive
imagery/stories regarding people with a
disability across all our publications and
through our social media channels.

Council participated in the This Girl Can
campaign encouraging participation

of women in regular exercise

including those with disabilities.

Mental Health First Aid training was
provided to representatives from a broad
range of Maroondah organisations.

Council continued to include Disability
Discrimination Act (DDA) initiatives
into development approvals.

Maroondah’s Disability Advisory Committee
continues to be an integral part of Council
planning, development and implementation
of Council policies, programs, and events.
The committee provides people with
disabilities and their carers with the
opportunity to provide feedback on Council
projects, strategies, activities and events.

Council continued to support people
transitioning onto the National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS) and My Aged
Care and commenced investigating

a resource for community members

not eligible for either package.

Council supported the Maroondah Positive
Education Network which aims to increase
the wellbeing and educational outcomes
of young people in Maroondah.

Council’s online resources were reviewed and
updated with the inclusion of an autism specific
directory as well as an Access Key directory.

Council’s 2019/20 community facilities
improvement program was delivered
consisting of more than 250 individual
projects, many of which facilitate enhanced
accessibility and inclusive design elements.

An introduction to mental health training
was provided to Council employees.

Council’'s website was updated to
include full mapping of footpaths in
Maroondah and a list of footpaths to be
constructed within the next five years.

Council continued to support the Pathway
for Carers program which provides support
and information to carers of people with
disabilities or mental health concerns.

Eastern Disability Action Group was
supported to ensure its long-term
sustainability with the group now being
facilitated by Eastern Volunteers.

Support was provided to several disability
groups through the Arts and Cultural
Development Grants and Community
Development Grants programs.

Several community workshops were held
for Council’s Porn is not the Norm project
designed to increase awareness of the risks
associated with online pornography for
people with disabilities, specifically autism
and a report has been presented to State
Government with a request for funding.

Council worked with Carers Victoria to
consult with the community regarding
a possible Carers Hub in the East.

A free community forum, StressLess and look
after your mental wellbeing, was held during
Mental Health Awareness week in October 2019.

The Pop Culture Conversation Club continued
to flourish with new friendships being
developed. The group aims to help build
social connections and self-confidence for
young people with and without disabilities.

Council actively promoted the accessibility
features of Council’s new facilities and
open spaces during 2019/20, including
features at Maroondah Nets, Croydon
Pavilion and Croydon Town Square.

The Outer East Opening Doors Leadership
program commenced this year providing
community leaders in inclusion and wellbeing
with an opportunity to enhance their skills
and networks. In 2019/20 Council provided
planning, promotion and implementation
support to this Program in partnership

with Knox and Yarra Ranges Councils.
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Documents to be made available for public inspection

Council is committed to open and transparent governance. Section 222 of the Local Government Act 1989
(the Act) entitles any person to inspect and take copies where appropriate (subject to applicable fees,

if any) of prescribed documents and records. Pursuant to the Local/ Government (General) Regulations
20175, which was proclaimed and commenced on 23 October 2015, the following prescribed documents
and records were available for inspection during the 2019/20 financial year.

For the purposes of section 222 of the Local Government Act 1989, which has provided the statutory
direction for the 2019/20 financial year, the following are prescribed documents:

a) A document containing details of overseas f) aregister maintained under section 224(1A) of
or interstate travel (other than interstate travel the Act of authorised officers appointed under
by land for less than 3 days) undertaken in that section

an official capacity by any Councillor or
member of Council staff in the previous
12 months, including

9) a list of donations and grants made by the
Council in the previous 12 months, including
the names of persons or bodies which, have

i. the name of the Councillors or member of received a donation or grant and the amount of
Council staff each donation or grant
ii. the date on which the travel began h) Written Public Record of an Assembly of
and ended Councillors, in accordance with s80A of the Act
iii. the destination of the travel i) Annual Report - available online
iv. the purpose of the travel j) Budget for current financial year - available
online

v. the total cost to the Council of the travel,
including accommodation costs k) Council agenda and minutes for the last 12

b) the agendas for, and minutes of, ordinary and months - available online

special meetings held in the previous 12 months ) Councillors’ Code of Conduct - available online
which are kept under section 93 of the Act,
other than those agendas and minutes relating
to a part of a meeting which was closed to n) Councillor Expenses, Support and
members of the public under section 89 of the Reimbursement Policy - available online
Act and are confidential information within the
meaning of section 77(2) of the Act

m) Council Plan - available online

0) Local Laws operative within Maroondah
- available online

c) the minutes of meetings of special committees
established under section 86 of the Act and
held in the previous 12 months, other than a) Public Notices - available online
those minutes relating to a part of a meetings
which was closed to members of the public
under section 89 of the Act and are confidential ) Register of Interests of Councillors,
information within the meaning of section 77(2) Management Group, Senior Officers, Nominated
of the Act Officers and independent members of the Audit

and Risk Advisory Committee

p) Procurement Policy - available online

r) Register of election campaign donation returns

d) a register of delegations kept under sections

87(1) - delegations to special committees - In accordance with Section 222 of the Loca/
and 98(4) - delegations to staff - of the Act, Government Act 1989 inspection of these
including the dates on which the last reviews documents can be arranged by contacting
took place under sections 86(6) and 98(6) Council’s Governance Team on 1300 88 22 33.
respectively, of the Act took place These documents are available for inspection at

the City Offices, Braeside Avenue, Ringwood. The
documents may be viewed, but not removed, and
some are also available online.

e) a document containing details of all leases
involving land which were entered into by the
Council as the lessor, including the lessee and
the terms and the value of the lease
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Domestic animal
management

The Domestic Animals Act 1994 (The Act)
requires Council’s across Victoria to prepare and
implement a Domestic Animal Management Plan
(DAMP) every four years. Section 68A of the Act
requires Councils to periodically evaluate any
program, service strategy or review outlined in
the DAMP and publish the evaluation in Council’s
Annual Report.

Council has reviewed the Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2017-2021 and continues to
promote and support responsible pet ownership
within Maroondah. Further details of Council’s
consolidated plan outing the proactive program
can be viewed in the DAMP on Council’s website.

Responsible pet ownership programs and
activities continue to ensure that the community
is aware of all aspects of responsible pet
ownership and the importance of effective animal
management. These include:

e education programs to inform the community
of the responsibilities of pet ownership

« school visits to educate students
on responsible pet ownership

* demonstrations and information on responsible
pet ownership at the Maroondah Festival

* programmed and random patrols
of parks and reserves

e property inspections of the
owners of dog at large

e annual inspections for declared
menacing and dangerous dogs

* inspections of properties for
extra animal permits

* inspections of domestic animal businesses

* promotion of new and renewal
registration for dogs and cats

« training of animal management officers in
best practice responsible pet ownership

e promotion of de-sexing with vets
including vouchers for reduced cost

e Participation and support in community
events such as Adventure Dog

« Analysis of trends and statistics on
registration rates, reunification of lost
animals to ensure best practise principles
and seek opportunities for improvement.

Food Act Ministerial
directions

In accordance with section 7E of the Food Act
1984, Council is required to publish a summary
of any Ministerial Directions received during
the financial year in its annual report. No such
Ministerial Directions were received by Council
during the 2019/20 financial year.

Infrastructure and
development contributions

In accordance with section 46GM and 46QD

of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, any
Council that is a collecting or development agency
must prepare and give a report to the Minister

for Planning on infrastructure and development
contributions including levies and works in kind.
The report must be published in Council’s

annual report.

For the 2019/20 financial year the following
information about infrastructure and development
contributions is disclosed:

Council has no Infrastructure Contribution Plans.
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Development contributions

Total DCP levies received in 2019/20

DCP name (Year approved) Levies received in 2019/20 financial year

Ringwood District Centre Development Contributions Plan, $0
July 1997 (2006)

Total $0

No DCP land, works, services or facilities were accepted in kind in 2019/20

Total DCP contributions received and expended to date

DCP name (Year approved) Total levies Total levies Total works-in- Total DCP contributions
received $ expended $ kind accepted $ received (levies and

works-in-kind)

Ringwood District Centre $0 $54, 250 $0 $0

Development Contributions
Plan, July 1997 (2006)

Total $0 $54,250 (o] $0

Land, works, services or facilities delivered in 2019/20 from DCP levies collected

Project Project DCP name DCP fund Works- Council’s Other Total Percentage

description ID (Year expended in-kind contribution contributions project of item
approved) $ accepted $ $ expenditure delivered

$ $

Pedestrian Ringwood

refuge - District Centre

New Street,

Ringwood | 72420 2SVEIOPMENt g5y 250 0 0 0 $54250  100%
Plan, July 1997
(2006)

Total $54,250 (o} (o) 0 $54,250
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Local Laws

There are a number of Council rules designed to make the community a safe and pleasant place to

live in. Local laws are reviewed regularly and altered if necessary to meet the needs of the community.
Sometimes new laws are required to control a particular problem. Maroondah City Council is responsible
for the management and enforcement of various matters covered by local laws.

Local Law No. 11 - General
Local Law

Local Law No. 12 - Meetings
Procedure and Use of Common Seal

Local Law No. 13 - General
(Amendment) Local Law

Local Law No. 14 - General
(Amendment) Local Law

Local Law No. 7T aims to assure equitable, orderly and enjoyable
use by people of community facilities, including roads.

The objectives of Local Law No 11 - General Local Law are to:

e revoke Local Laws 8 and 10 made by Council

* provide for and assure equitable, orderly and enjoyable
use by people of community facilities, including roads

e protect Council Property and other community assets
from loss or unnecessary or avoidable damage

e support provision by Council of a safe, clean and healthy
environment in areas under its control and management

e provide generally for the peace, order and good
government of the Municipal District.

Local Law No. 71 was adopted by Council on 14 December 2015
and came into effect on Friday 1 January 2016.

Local Law No. 71 was also amended incorporating Local Law
No. 13 and came into effect on 1 September 2016.

The objectives of Local Law No. 12 - Meetings Procedure & Use
of Common Seal are to regulate the:

e proceedings of Ordinary and Special Meetings
of the Maroondah City Council
e election of the Mayor and Acting Chairman
* use of the Common Seal of the Maroondah City Council and
* proceedings of special committees.

Local Law No 12 was adopted by Council on 18 April 2016 and
came into operation on 1 October 2016.

Local Law 13 amends Local Law No.T1 by clarifying when fires
can be lit or remain alight in the open air or an incinerator, and in
particular allows for fires in the open air for heating purposes by:
e Amending the existing General Local Law 11

¢ Inserting a new Clause 30.1 - Incinerators and Burning

Local Law No. 13 was adopted by Council on 22 August 2016
and came into effect on 1 September 2016.

Local Law 14 amends Local Law No.71 by prohibiting smoking of
tobacco products in Ringwood and Croydon Town Squares by:
e Amending the existing General Local Law 11

« Amending the exisiting clause 6.1 by adding relevant
new definitions

e Inserting a new Clause 39 A - Smoke Free Areas

Local Law No. 14 was adopted by Council on 26 November 2018
and came into effect on 1 January 2019.
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Road management

The Road Management Act 2004 provides that Council has a statutory obligation to inspect, maintain
and repair a public road, and that a Road Management Plan may be developed to set reasonable
standards in relation to the performance of road management functions for the maintenance of its public
roads and associated road related assets.

Maroondah City Council has adopted the Road Management Plan 2017-2021 to set reasonable standards
in relation to the performance of road management functions, including the inspection, maintenance and
repair of all Council’s roads as listed in its Register of Public Roads.

In accordance with section 22 of the Road Management Act 2004 (the Act), Council must publish a copy
or summary of any Ministerial direction in its Annual Report. No such Ministerial Directions were received
by Council during the financial year.

e e e

EEaae

s

n to inspect, maintain and repair public roads
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Victorian Local Government Indicators

The Minister for Local Government, under the authority of the Local Government Act 1989, requires every
Council to report on the following indicators.

Actual Results
2019/20|2019/20| 2018/19| 2017-18| 2016-17
Affordability/cost of Governance

Average rates and charges per assessment $1,841 $1,816  $1,795 $1,707 $1,660

The average revenue derived by Council out of general
rates and garbage services for each property in the
municipality.

Average rates and charges per residential assessment $1,758 $1,736 $1,718 $1,614  $1,458

The average revenue derived by Council out of
general rates and garbage services for each residential
property in the municipality (i.e. excluding all
commercial and industrial properties)

Sustainability

Average liabilities per assessment $903 $1,785 $1,034  $1,010 $948

The average value for each property in the
municipality of monies owed by Council at financial
year-end in respect of the supply of goods and
services, the provision of loans and the accrued costs
of employee salaries and entitlements.

Operating result per assessment? $97 $202 $509 $253 $285

The difference between the average operating
revenue and average operating expenditure for each
property in the municipality. Council rates and charges
comprise the major part of its operating revenue.

The operating result has been adjusted by excluding
the revenue from property, infrastructure, plant

and equipment not previously recognised and the
expenditure in relation to disposal, obsolescence and
adjustments in relation to property and infrastructure.
This allows for a better basis of comparison.

Services

Community satisfaction rating for overall 64 65 69 67 63
performance generally of Council

Overall satisfaction with Council performance

as rated by Maroondah City residents who

were surveyed as part of Victorian Government
commissioned independent state-wide community
satisfaction survey.

Average operating expenditure per assessment $2,662 $2,583 $2,654 $2,562 $2,450

The average cost of operating and maintaining all
Council services to the community for each property in
the municipality. This cost excludes the cost of acquiring
or expanding its asset base used in the delivery of those
services but includes the costs of all administrative and
governance services supporting that delivery.
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Actual Results
2019/20|2019/20| 2018/19| 2017-18| 2016-17
Infrastructure

Average Capital expenditure per assessment $574 $893 $951 $513 $723

The average cost for each property in the municipality
of acquiring new assets and expanding, upgrading or
renewing existing assets used in the delivery of all its
services to the community.

Renewal gap 99% 78% 96% 92% 118%

The sum of all capital expenditure on renewal

of existing infrastructure assets expressed as a
percentage of the total depreciation charge on all
Council infrastructure assets. Such annual depreciation
charge is Council’s best estimate of the value of those
assets ‘consumed’ during the year’s operations.

Renewal and maintenance gap 99% 83% 97% 94% 14%

The sum of all capital expenditure on renewal of
existing infrastructure assets together with the annual
costs of maintenance of all Council infrastructure
assets expressed as a percentage of the total
depreciation and maintenance charges on all such
infrastructure assets.

Governance

Community satisfaction rating for Council’s 58 56 61 57 57
Advocacy and Community Representation on key
local issues

Overall satisfaction with Council performance in
advocacy and community representation as rated by
Maroondah City residents who were surveyed as part
of Victorian Government commissioned independent
state-wide community satisfaction survey.

Community satisfaction rating for Council’s 56 56 58 56 55
Engagement in decision making on key local issues

Overall satisfaction with Council performance in
engaging the community in decision making on key
local issues as rated by Maroondah City residents
who were surveyed as part of Victorian Government
commissioned independent state-wide community
satisfaction survey.
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework service performance indicators and measures, including explanation of any material
variations. Please note that a change of less than +/- 10% compared with the previous year is not
considered significant, and therefore not a material variation.

Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Aquatic Facilities
Service standard
User satisfaction with
aquatic facilities

User satisfaction with how
Council has performed on
the provision of aquatic
facilities

Expected range: N/A

Service standard
Health inspections of
aquatic facilities

Number of health
inspections per Council
aquatic facility

Expected range:
1to 4 inspections
Service Standard

Reportable safety incidents
at aquatic facilities

Number of WorkSafe
reportable aquatic safety
incidents

Expected range:

O to 20 incidents

Service Cost

Cost of indoor aquatic
facilities

$ direct cost less any income

received of providing indoor
aquatic facilities per visit

Expected range: -$3 to $10

Service Cost

Cost of outdoor aquatic
facilities

$ direct cost less any income

received of providing outdoor
aquatic facilities per visit

Expected range: $3 to $20

$0.36

$14.12

-$0.88

$14.50
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-$1.16

$15.05

-$0.63

$11.68

Optional measure only.
Not measured

Inspections are carried out
by Council’s Community
Health team on each aquatic
facility twice a year and is
tracking on schedule.

Work has been undertaken
to raise awareness of
incidents classified as
notifiable, this education
may reflect the increase in
incidents in 2018/19.

This result is less favourable
than 2017/18, but indoor
aquatic facilities are still
operating at a profit per visit.

The cost to Council per
outdoor aquatic visits
declined in 2018/19, this due
to an increase in visitation
to Croydon Memorial Pool
during the past summer
season.





Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Utilisation

Utilisation of aquatic
facilities

Numlber of visits to aguatic

facilities per head of
municipal population

Expected range: 1 to 10 visits

Service cost

Cost of aquatic facilities
The direct cost less

any income received of
providing aquatic facilities
per visit

Expected range:

$0 to $30

Animal Management

Timeliness

Time taken to action animal
requests

Numlber of days taken to
action animal requests

Expected range: 1to 10 days

Service standard
Animals reclaimed

% of collected animals
reclaimed

Expected range: 30% to 90%

Service cost

Cost of animal management
service

$ direct cost of the animal
management service per
registered animal

Expected range: $3 to $40

8.33 8.75 10.11 7.57 The municipality has
three Council-owned and
operated aquatic facilities.
The 2019/20 period faced
a number of challenges
including; challenging
weather, frequent closure
over the summer period
due to smoke haze, faecal
incidents and sludge rain.
Following the summer
period venues were forced
to shut down due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The
combined impacts have led
to a decrease in utilisation of
aquatic facilities.

$0.81 New measure for 2019/20

Due to the significant
impacts on utilisation of
aquatic facilities, the cost
per visit also increased.

1.7 1.08 1.02 1.02 No material variation

54.7% 67.74% 76.87% 62.55% There has been a slight
decrease in animals
reclaimed compared to the
previous financial year. This
is attributed to an increase in
animals being surrendered or
rehomed. The methodology
for this measure now

excluded ‘feral animals’.

$4.83 $4.94 $5.49 $4.03 The decrease in cost is

mostly attributed to staff
vacancies in Council.
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance

Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19| 2019/20

Health and safety

Animal management
prosecutions

Number of prosecutions
Expected range: 50% to 200%

Service standards
Animals rehomed

% of collected registrable
animals under the Domestic
Animal Act 1994 that are
rehomed.

Expected range:
30% to 90%

Food Safety
Timeliness

Time taken to action food
complaints

Number of days taken to
action food complaints

Expected range: 1to 10 days

Service standard

Food safety assessments
% of registered class 1
food premises and class 2
food premises that receive
an annual food safety
assessment

Expected range: 50% to 100%

Service cost
Cost of food safety service

$ direct cost of the food
safety service per registered
food premises

Expected range:

$300 to $1,200

1.9 1.88

98.5% 98.0%

$639.70 $738.76
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1.24

2018
Calendar
year

100%

2018
Calendar
year

$689.36

100%

51.90%

2.01

2019
Calendar
year

100%

2019
Calendar
year

$690.11

This measure has changed
to a percentage value
instead of a numeric value.

New measure for 2019/20

Data shown is for the 2019
calendar year to align with
reporting to DHHS. The
time taken to action food
complaints has increased
this calendar year, this is
because most complaints
were either classed as
lower risk or complainant
could not be contacted.
Council have put in place a
number of steps to ensure
that wherever possible,
the customer request is
addressed within a day.

Data shown is for the 2019
calendar year to align with
reporting to DHHS.

No material variation





Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Health and safety

Critical and major 95.1% 100% 99.06% 100% Data shown is for the 2019
non-compliance calendar year to align with
notifications Caleiglﬁ Caleigz Eperiing ko Pk,

% of critical and major

non-compliance outcome year year
notifications that are
followed up by Council

Expected range: 60% to 100%

Governance
Transparency 11.9% 13.74% 8.52% 6.59% The decrease in decisions
Council resolutions at made closed to the public

meetings closed to the highlights an increase in
public transparency compared to

% of Council resolutions YTD 2018/19. this can be

made at meetings closed to attributed to the reduction

the public in confidential ‘in-camera’

Expected range: 0% to 30% decisions made at Council
meetings.

Consultation and 55 56 58 56 No material variation

engagement

Satisfaction with community
consultation & engagement

Satisfaction rating out of 100
Expected range: 40 to 70

Attendance 91.5% 86.32% 88.89% 85.47% No material variation

Council attendance at
Council meetings

% of Council attendance at
ordinary and special Council
meetings

Expected range: 80% to 100%

Service cost $49,530 $45,744 $48,959 $47,451 No material variation
Cost of governance

$ direct cost of the
governance service per
Councillor

Expected range:
$30,000 to $80,000
Decision making 58 59 62 59 No material variation

Satisfaction with Council
decisions

Satisfaction rating out of 100
Expected range: 40 to 70
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Framework: Statement of service performance

Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19| 2019/20

Libraries

Utilisation

Physical library
collection usage

Number of physical library
collection item loans

per physical library
collection item

Expected range: 1to 9 items

Resource standard

Recently purchased library
collection

% of the library collection
that has been purchased in
the last 5 years

Expected range: 40% to 90%

Service cost

Cost of library service per
population

$ direct cost of the library
service per population

Expected range: $10 to $90

Participation

Active library borrowers in
municipality

% of the municipal

population that are active
library borrowers

Expected range: 7% to 40%

10.0

77.4%

$18.26

14.9%

10.58

75.47%

$18.20

16.18%
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10.47

72.39%

$18.26

16.26%

9.15

69.81%

$18.59

15.88%

Maroondah is a member

of the Eastern Regional
Libraries Corporation, which
is a co-operative venture
serving three outer eastern
metropolitan councils. These
results relate to libraries in
the Maroondah municipality,
which are located in
Croydon and Ringwood
(Realm). The decrease in
physical library collection
usage could be attributed to
the recent social distancing
restrictions and library
closures due to COVID-19.
Realm was closed from

4 May 2020.

No material variation

No material variation

No material variation





Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Maternal and Child Health

Satisfaction 9817% New measure for 2019/20

Participation in 4-week

L This measure considers
key Age and Stage visit

) ) the percentage of infants
% of infants enrolled in enrolled in the MCH service
the MCH service who who participated in 4-week

participated in 4-week ..
Key Age and Stage visit Key Age and Stage visit.

Expected range: 90% to 110%

Service standard 100.1% 101.06% 101.06% 101.99% No material variation

Infant enrolments in the
MCH service

% of infants enrolled in the
MCH service

Expected range: 90% to 110%

Service cost $86.04 $71.22 $87.20 $82.83 No material variation
Cost of the MCH service

$ cost of the MCH service
per hour of service delivered

Expected range: $50 to $200

Participation 78.1% 73.88% 7811% 76.18% No material variation
Participation in MCH service

% of children enrolled who
participate in the MCH
services

Expected range: 70% to 100%

Participation 74.4%  69.90% 72.63% 76.24% No material variation

Participation in MCH service
by Aboriginal children

% of Aboriginal children
enrolled who participate in
the MCH service

Expected range: 60% to 100%

Roads

Satisfaction of use 96.3 98.35 108.04% 115.87 No material variation
Sealed local road requests

Number of sealed local road
requests per 100 kilometres
of sealed local road

Expected range:
10 to 120 requests

Condition 97.3% 97.25% 97.31% 99.06 No material variation

Sealed local roads below the
intervention level

% of sealed local roads
that are below the renewal
intervention level

Expected range: 80% to 100%
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance

Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Service cost

Cost of sealed local road
reconstruction

$ direct reconstruction cost
per square metre of sealed
local roads reconstructed

Expected range: $20 to $200

Service cost

Cost of sealed local road
resealing

$ direct resealing cost per
square metre of sealed local
roads resealed

Expected range: $4 to $30

Satisfaction

Satisfaction with sealed local

roads

Satisfaction rating out of 100

Expected range: 50 to 100

$209.37

$33.68

66

$87.98

$26.60

68
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$221.08

$19.99

70

$114.19

$34.24

64

The total project cost
associated with the
reconstruction of a sealed
local road is taken into
account. The project cost may
include but are not limited to
traffic control, road base, road
surface, kerb, stormwater
drain and traffic management
device costs.

Reconstructions for a full
road block as defined in
Council’s asset register has
been included in this figure.
Isolated reconstructions are
not included but may have
occurred throughout the
financial year.

The difference is cost can
be attributed to project
complexities from

year to year.

Council only uses asphalt
products for resealing due

to community expectations.
Generally where advanced
pavement deterioration

is present (i.e. crocodile
cracking) Council undertakes
deep lift patching prior to
resealing.

Only reseals for a full road
block as defined in Council’s
asset register has been
included in this figure.
Reseals that does not cover
an entire road block is
considered as a patch and is
not included.

The difference is cost can
be attributed to project
complexities from

year to year.

No material variation





Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Statutory Planning
Timeliness

Time taken to decide
planning applications
Days between receipt of a

planning application and a
decision on the application

Expected range:
30 to 110 days

39 days 35 days

Service standard 80.0% 82.45%

Planning applications
decided within 60 days

% of planning application

decisions made within
60 days

Expected range: 40% to 100%

Service cost $1,617 $1,860.81

Cost of statutory planning
service

$ direct cost of the statutory
planning service per
planning application
Expected range:

$500 to $4,000

Decision making 48.9% 90.41%

Planning decisions upheld
at VCAT

% of decisions subject to
review by VCAT that were
not set aside

Expected range: 30% to 100%

Waste Collection
Satisfaction

Kerbside bin collection
requests

Number of kerbside bin
collection requests per
1000 kerbside bin collection
households

Expected range:
10 to 300 requests

61.3 72.05

This measure looks at the
median number of days
taken between receipt

of a planning application
and a decision on the
application. In addition

to Councils dedication to
provide timely decisions,
Councils electronic planning
application processes
allowed for more efficient
processing time.

34 days 28 days

81.63% 88.60% No material variation

$1,869.80 $1,851.06 No material variation

90.24% 92.59% No material variation

71.93 68.93 No material variation
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Victorian Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: Statement of service performance

Service/indicator/ measure Result Result Result Result | Material variation comment
2016/17 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20

Service standard 3.38

Kerbside collection bins
missed

Number of kerbside
collection bins missed per
10,000 scheduled kerbside
collection bin lifts

Expected range: 1to 20 bins

Service cost $101.64 $103.19

Cost of kerbside garbage
collection service

$ direct cost of the kerbside
garbage bin collection
service per kerbside
garbage collection bin

Expected range: $40 to $150

Service cost $30.14 $43.36

Cost of kerbside recyclables
collection service

$ direct cost of the kerbside
recyclables collection
service (including the
contract cost of collection)
per kerbside recyclables
collection bin

Expected range: $10 to $80

Waste diversion 54.9% 5414%

Kerbside collection waste
diverted from landfill

% of garbage, recyclables
and green organics collected
from kerbside bins that is
diverted from landfill

Expected range: 20% to 60%

Please note:

3.49 4.06 The increased in missed
bins could be attributed
to the ‘stay at home’
restrictions from the
COVID-19 lockdown where
residents are more attentive
to their bin collections. It
is suspected that during
regular events, these reports
would not have taken place
as bins would have been

emptied during work hours.

$106.11 107.56 No material variation

$62.59 $71.43 The increased experienced
in 2019/20 is due to the
significant increase in

the processing costs of
recyclables due to the
decrease in the export

market of recyclables

53.66% 56.83% No material variation

« The threshold for providing a ‘material variation” comment for this table is +/-10% variance compared with 2019 data

¢ More detailed Council comments on 2019 LGPRF service performance indicator results will be available once data is
released by the Victorian Government at www.knowyourcouncilvic.gov.au
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Understanding the Financial Report

Introduction

The Financial Report shows how Council
performed financially during the 2019/20 financial
year and shows it’s overall financial position at the
end (30 June 2020) of the financial year.

Council presents its financial report in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards.

Particular terms required by the Standards may
not be familiar to some readers. Further, Council
is a government organisation and some of the
generally recognised terms used in private sector
company reports are not appropriate for
Council’s reports.

Council is committed to accountability and
transparency. It is in this context that the plain
English guide has been developed to assist readers
to understand and analyse the financial report.

What is contained in the
Annual Financial Report?

Council’s financial report has two sets of
Statements:

1. Financial Statements
2. Performance Statement

Each of these Statements is prepared by Council
employees, examined by Council’s Audit and Risk
Advisory Committee and by the members of
Council, and are audited by the Victorian
Auditor-General.

Financial Statements

The Financial Statements report on how Council
performed financially during the year and shows
it’s overall financial position as at the end of

the year.

The face of the Financial Statements include a
Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of
Cash Flows and Statement of Capital Works. The
Financial Statements also contain Notes, which
set out Council’s accounting policies and details
of the line item amounts contained in the face

of the statements.
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Comprehensive Income
Statement

The Comprehensive Income Statement is
sometimes referred to as a ‘Profit and Loss
Statement’ in the private sector and shows the:

¢ Sources of Council’s revenue under
various income headings

¢ Expenses incurred in running the Council
during the year. These expenses relate
only to the ‘Operations’ of Council, and do
not include the costs associated with the
purchase or building of assets. While asset
purchase costs are not included in Expenses,
asset depreciation costs are included.

The surplus or deficit for the year is the

key figure to look at on the Comprehensive
Income Statement to assess Council’s financial
performance. It is calculated by deducting the total
expenses for the year from total revenues.

The comprehensive result on the Comprehensive
Income Statement includes items that will not be
reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods.
The main item affecting the comprehensive
income/expense of Council relates to the
revaluation of its assets.

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet is a summary of Council’s
financial position as at 30 June. It shows what
Council owns as assets and what it owes as
liabilities. The bottom line of this Statement is Net
Assets. This is the equity or net worth of Council,
which has been built up over the life of the Council.

The assets and liabilities are separated into Current
and Non-Current. Current generally means those
assets which will be received or liabilities which will
be paid within the next 12 months. Non-Current are
all those assets and liabilities which are held for a
longer term.

The net current assets or working capital as it

is sometimes called is an important measure of
Council’s ability to meet its debts as and when they
fall due.





Balance Sheet

The components of the Balance Sheet are:
Current and Non-Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalent assets include cash and
investments i.e. cash held in the bank and in petty
cash and the market value of Council’s investments
with a maturity of less than 90 days.

Trade and other receivables are monies owed to
Council by ratepayers and others.

Financial assets are the market value of
investments held with a maturity of greater than
90 days.

Inventories are stocks held for sale or consumption
in Council’s services.

Other assets include prepayments of expenses that
Council has paid for in advance and assets held for
resale which are in a position of being marketed
and sold.

Investments in associates represent Council’s
investment in Eastern Regional Libraries
Corporation and Narre Warren User Group.

Intangibles represent non-current assets held by
Council that are not tangible.

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment is
the largest component of Council’s worth and
represents the value of all the land, buildings,
roads, drains, vehicles, equipment etc. which has
been built up by Council over many years.

Right-of-use assets represent Council’s right to use
an underlying asset as agreed to under the terms
of a lease agreement.

Current and Non-Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables are those to whom
Council owes money as at 30 June.

Trust fund and deposits represent monies held in
trust by Council i.e. security deposits.

Provisions represent estimates of future obligations
and include accrued Long Service and Annual
Leave owed to employees.

Interest-bearing liabilities are borrowings of
Council.

Unearned income represents amounts received by
Council in exchange for the provision of services
or products that are yet to be delivered or fully
completed.

Lease liabilities represent Council’s obligations as a
result of entering into lease agreements.

Net Assets

This term is used to describe the difference
between the value of Total Assets and the value
of Total Liabilities. It represents the net worth of
Council as at 30 June.

Total Equity

This always equals Net Assets. It is made up of the
following components:

* Assets revaluation reserve, which reflects
the net change in the value of Council’s
revalued assets given their current valuation.
This component of equity is impacted
by Other Comprehensive Income in the
Comprehensive Income Statement.

e Accumulated surplus, which is reflective
of the cumulative surplus’/deficits
Council has achieved over its lifetime,
as stated in the Comprehensive Income
Statement for each financial year.
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Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows summarises Council’s
cash payments and cash receipts for the year. This
Statement is presented according to a very specific
Accounting Standard and needs some care in
analysis. The values may differ from those shown in
the Comprehensive Income Statement because the
Comprehensive Income Statement is prepared on
an accrual accounting basis.

Cash in this Statement refers to bank deposits and
other forms of highly liquid investments that can
be readily converted to cash.

Council’s cash arises from, and is used in, three
main areas.

1. Cash flows from operating activities:

* Receipts - all cash received into Council’s
bank account from ratepayers and others
who owe money to Council. Receipts also
include the interest earnings from Council’s
cash investments. It does not include the
costs associated with the sale of assets.

* Payments - all cash paid by Council from its
bank account to employees, creditors and
other persons. It does not include the costs
associated with the creation of assets.

2. Cash flows from investing activities:

e This section shows the cash invested in
the creation or purchase of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment
assets and the cash received from the
sale of these assets. This section also
shows Council’s activity from investing in
term deposits throughout the period.

3. Cash flows from financing activities:

e This is where the receipt and repayment
of borrowed funds are recorded.

The bottom line of the Cash Flows Statement is the
cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year.
This shows the capacity of Council to meet its cash
debts and other liabilities.
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Statement of Changes
In Equity

During the course of the year the value of Total
Equity as set out in the Balance Sheet changes.
This Statement shows the values of such changes
and how these changes arose.

The main reasons for a change in equity stem from:

¢ the ‘surplus or deficit’ from operations,
described in the Comprehensive Income
Statement as Comprehensive Result for the year

¢ a revaluation of assets which takes place
on a regular basis to ensure the most
up-to-date value is included in Council’s books.

Notes to the Financial
Statements

The Notes are a very important and informative
section of the Financial Statements. The Australian
Accounting Standards are not prescriptive
regarding a lot of issues. Therefore, to enable

the reader to understand the basis on which the
values shown in the face of the Statements are
established, it is necessary to provide details of
Council’s significant accounting policies.

Apart from the accounting policies, the Notes
also give details and context behind many of the
summary figures contained in the face of the
Statements. The Note numbers are shown beside
the relevant items in the Comprehensive Income
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows, and
should be read in conjunction with these items to
give a clearer picture of the accounts.

The Notes also include information that

Council wishes to disclose but which cannot be
incorporated into the face of the Statements. Other
notes include:

*« The breakdown of expenses, revenues,
reserves and other assets

¢ Contingent liabilities

¢ Transactions with persons related to Council.





Certification by the Principal
Accounting Officer, Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and
Councillors

The Certification of the Principal Accounting
Officer is made by the person responsible for the
financial management of Council that, in her/his
opinion, the Financial Statements have met all the
statutory and professional reporting requirements.

The Certification of the CEO and Councillors is
made by two Councillors and the CEO on behalf
of Council that, in their opinion, the Financial
Statements are fair and not misleading or
inaccurate.

Performance Statement

The Performance Statement reflects the Council
performance on indicators included in the Local
Government Performance Reporting Framework.
Please note that the source for some of the data
included in this framework is derived from external
sources such as the Local Government Satisfaction
Survey, the Australian Bureau of Statistics and the
Department of Health and Human Services.

Auditor General’s Report

The Independent Audit Report provides the reader
with an external and independent opinion on the
Financial Statements. It confirms that the Financial
Report has been prepared in accordance with
relevant legislation and professional standards

and that it represents a fair picture of the financial
affairs of the Council.

A separate Independent Audit Report is also
provided with respect to the information contained
within Council’s Performance Statement.
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Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1985 the Local Government
{Planning and Reporting] Reguiations 2014 | the Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

e

r

Anfomio Rocea, CA

Principal Accounting Officer

Date: Monday, 17 August 2020
Malbaume

In our opinion the actompanying financkal statements present faidy the financial transactions of Maroondah City Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 and
the financial positon of the Council as at that date.

As al the date of signing, we ane not @ware of any circumstanses that would render any particulars i the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate

We have been authodsed by the Councd and by the Local Government (Planning and Reparting) Regulations 2044 10 certify the financial stalements in fheir
final form.

M. Symon
Mayor

Date: Monday, 17 Awgust 2020

K. Spears
Councillor

Date: . 17 August 2020

5. Kozlowski
Chief Executive Officer

Date: Monday, 17 August 2020
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Victorian Auditor General’s Report
Financial Statements

VAGO

. I
Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor-Generals Office
To the Councillors of Maroondah City Council
Opinion | have audited the financial report of Maroondah City Council (the council) which comprises
the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2020

. comprehensive income statement for the year then ended

. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

. statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
. certification of the financial statements.

In my apinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2020 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the

Opinion Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Councillors's The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
responsibilities  the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local

for the Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is
financial necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
report from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.
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Auditor's
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial

report

MELBOURNE
26 August 2020

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that | identify during my audit.

Sanchu l’.‘hhmmar
os delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive Income Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note 2020 2019
$000 $000

Income
Rates and charges a1 92,769 90,054
Satulory fees and fines 3.2 4,606 4,703
User fees 33 20,441 26,320
Grants - operating 34 B.921 12602
Grants - capital 34 8,539 16,108
Contributions - monetary a5 5142 7187
Contributions - non monetary 35 s 5
Ket gain / (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 36 289 64
Share of net profits / (loss) of associates and joint ventures 6.2 13 125
Other inoome 3T 1,423 1,520
Tolal income 142,339 158,744
Expenses
Ernployee cosls 41 55,453 S4.0M
Materials and senices 4.2 49,378 51,820
Depreciation 43 21992 213
Amortisation - intangible assets 44 243 337
Amortisation - right of use assels 45 324 -
Bad and doubthul debils 46 - 13
Bormowing costs 47 902 oET
Finance costs - leases 4.8 35 -
Othear expenses 48 3867 25859
Total expenses 132,004 133,198
Surplus [ (deficit) for the year 10,335 25,546
Other comprehensive income
lems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment | (decrameant) 6.1 (32 288) (8.518)
Total comprehensive result {21,953) 17,028

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2020

MNote 2020 ikl

§'000 $000

MAssets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 5.1 47,256 16,049
Trade and other recereablos 51 21 441 11,680
Otther financial assets 5.1 20,508 36,995
Inventones 5.2 404 393
Oihar assels 5.2 024 L]
Non-current assets dassified as held for salke 63 6,799 =
Total current assets 97,422 65,587
Nen-curment assels
Trade and other recefvablas 51 T 155
ther financal assats 5.1 1,057 1,273
Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidianes 6.2 3578 3447
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 1,788 458 1,642,087
Right-of-use assels 88 1.287 -
Intangible assets 52 T84 782
Total non-current assets 1,795,441 1,847,750
Total assets 1,892,863 1,913,337
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5.3 8,963 14,502
Trust funds-and deposits 53 5576 4,823
Uneamed income 53 J0ETE -
Provisions 55 13428 12217
Interesi-baaring kabilibes 54 2618 1,398
Lease liabilites 5.8 513 -
Total current liabilities 61975 32840
MNon-current Habilities
Trust funds and deposits 53 & B
Uneamed income 53 10,780 -
Provisions 55 1.863 1,632
Interesi-bearing kabilibes b4 15.817 17,286
Leasa liahilities 5B TES -
Total non-current liabifities 29,255 16,924
Total liabilities 91,230 51,864
Net assets 1,801,633 1,861,473
Equity
Accumulated surplus 793,386 820,938
Reserves 9.1 1,008,247 1,040,535
Total Equity 1,801,633 1,661,473

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Nots Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2020 000 000 $'000 $000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 1.861.473 B20.938 1.0628,535 11,000
Impact of change in acoounting policy - A458 10
15 Revenue from Confracts with Custfomers (BD) (B0)
Imgpact of change in accounting policy - AASE 10
1058 Income of Nol-for-Profit Enfitiss 12.550) 12.550)
Adwstmeant for prior penods - propesty
infrastructure, plant and eguipmant ik {35.257) {35,257} - -
Adjusted Opening batance 1,823 586 783,051 1,029,535 11,000
Surplus | (deficit) for the year 10,335 10,335 - -
MNet ass revaluation increment | (decremant) B.1 132.258) - (32,288) -
Balance at end of the financial year 1,801,633 793,186 997,247 11,000
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2018 000 §000 £'000 §000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 1,838.411 791,358 1,038,053 200
Adjustment for prior penods - property,
mfrastructure, plant and equipment 6,034 034
Surplus / {deficil) for the year 25 546 25546 .
Net asset revaluation ncrement ! (decremant) (B.518) . 18.,518) -
Transfers to other reserves 91 . (2,00 . 2,000
Balance at end of the financial year 1,661,473 E20,938 1,029,535 11,000

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note FLiF ] 2019
Inflows! Inflows!
{Cutflows) {Outflows)
$000 §000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 6T 89,938
Statutory fees and fines 4,621 4723
User fees 23675 24425
Granls - operaling 20,003 12729
Grants - capital 28317 16,108
Contributions - monetary 5238 T.3%5
Inberest raceived 54 1,482
Trust funds and deposits taken 18,583 17.784
Net GST refund | {payment} 7,245 7.041
Employse costs {53,810) {54,333}
Matarials and senaces (B2.012) (62,354
Shon-term, low value and vaniable lzase payments (114} -
Trust funds and deposits repaid {17 830) (17 438)
Het cash provided by | {used in) operating activities 92 64,593 47,350
Cash flows from investing activities
Paymenis for propery, infrastructure. plam and equipment (49,438} (45629}
Proceeds from sake of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 928 2082
Paymeants for mvestiments (T3.268) (83,601}
Procesds from sabe of mvestments BO AR1 93,151
Net cash provided by | {used in) investing activities {31,891} (43,887)
Cash flows from financing activities
Fnance costs (480 (96T)
Repayment of bomowings {691} (1.332)
Interest paid - lease |iabilty {35} .
Repayment of leass Eabiliies {309) -
Net cash provided by | {used in) financing activities (1,485) 12,299)
Net increase | (decreasa) in cash and cash equvalents N7 1,104
Cash and cash egquivalents at the beginning of the financial year 16,049 14,945
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 47,256 16,048
Financing arangements 56
Resfrictions on cash assels 21

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note 2020 2018
§'000 §000

Property
Land 4,196 B0
Total land 4,196 E00
Buikdings 23832 27 845
Total buildings 23,832 27,845
Total property 8,028 28,445
Plant and equipment
Plant, machineny and equipment 2 365 1929
Fixtures, fitlings and furniture . 203
Computers and telecommunications a7 130
Total plant and equipment 2,402 2,262
Infrastructure
Roads 3,298 B.B4T7
Footpaths and cycleways 3436 596
Drainage 2504 2977
Wasle manageman! 7 28
Parks, open space and streelscapes 4610 2880
Off street car parks 489 138
Onher infrastructune 7T 1822
Total infrastructure 15,181 16,958
Total capital works expenditure 45611 47,705
Represented by:
MNew assel expenditure 16,6596 22 524
Assat ranewal mependiture 15.48% 18,987
Asset upgrade expendiure 13435 5524
Total capital works expenditure 1.2,6.1 45611 47,705

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

OVERVIEW

Introduction
The Maroondah City Council ("The Council’) was established by an Order of the Governat in Council on 15 Decembar 1394 and is a body corporate. The
Council's main offica is located al Braeside Avenue Ringwood, VIC 3134,

Statemaent of compliance

Thesa financial statements are a general purpose financial repod that consists of a Comgrehensive Income Staternent, Balance Sheel, Siatement of Changes
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Noles accompanying these financial staternents. The genaral purpose financial report
complies with the Austraiian Accounting Standards (AAS), other suthontative pronouncements of the Austratian Accounting Standards Board. the Local
Govemment Act 1285, and the Local Govemnment (Planning and Reporting) Requlations 2014

Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The accrusl basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial slatements, whereby assets, liabilities, equiy, Income and expenses ane
recognised in the reparting pariod to which they relate, regardiess of when cash s received or paid.

Judgemenis, esimates and assumgphions are required by be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily appanen? from other
sources, The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgemen derived from hislorical expenence and vanoos other factors that are
befeved 1o be reasonabla under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from fhese estimates.

Revisions 10 accountng estimates an recognised in the penod in which the esbmata s revised and also in future penods that are affected by the revision.
Aﬂgammmdmmﬁ:m by management in the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financal slalements and estimates relate

-ﬂmrarmulmnﬁ busdings, infrastructune, plant and equspmant (raber to Note 6.1)

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastruciure, plant and equipment (refer 1o Nole 6.1)

- the determination of employes provisions (refer to Nole 5.5)

- the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific 50 a8 1o determine whether an amangement is within the scope of AASE 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASE 1058 Income of Not-dor-Profit Entifies (refler to Nate 3)

- the: datermination, in accordance with AASE 16 Leases, of the lease term, the estimation of the discount rate when not implicit in the lease and whether an
arrangement is m substance short-term or low value (refer to Mote 5.8

- other areas requining judgemsanis

Unless otherwise stated, all acoounting policies ane consishent with those appled in the prior year, Where appropriate, comparative figures have been
amended to accord wilh current presentation (except where ransitional requirements of AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, A458 16 Leases
and AASE 1055 Income of Not-for-Profil Entiies do not requite restatement of comparatives under the modsfied retrospective approach adopled by the
Council), and discicsure has baen made of any matenal changes to comparatives.

Disclosure of COVID-19 impacts on the current reporting period
On 11 March 2020, the novel cormnavirus (COVID-15) was declared a global pandamic by fhe Wordd Health Organisation,

COVID-19 had a significant impact on the operatians of Courcil in the current reporting penod ending 30 June 2020, The financial implications of the pandemic
have been conssdered in the peeparation of thase financial statements.

The significant effects on the financia! statements and estmates, as a result of the pandemiz, have been reflected and can be observed in the following
compenents of these fingncial stalements:

- Perlormance against budget (refer 1o Nota 1)

- User fees {refer to Note 3.3

- Emphoyee costs (refer to Note 4.1)

= Property, infrastrecture, plant and equipment, in refafion Io the independent valyation underiaken of Councll owned Land and Buildings (refer o Note &)
- Reserves, in relation to the decision making of reserve allocations for the year (refer to Nofe 5.1)
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Note 1 Performance against budget

The performance against budget notes compane Council's fmancial plan, expressad through iis annual budged, with actual performance. The
Local Govemmen {Planning and Reporting) Reguiabons 2074 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopled a
materiality threshold of the ower of 10 percent or $1 milion where further explanation is wamanted. Explanations have not been provided for
vanations below the materality threshold undess the variance is considesed o be material because of s nature

The budge! figures detalled below are those adopled by Council on 20 May 2019, The Budget was based on assumpbons that were relevant at
the tim of adoption of the Budget. Councll sets guidelines and parameters for income and expense tarets i this budget in order 1o mee
Council's planning and fnancial pedormance targets for both the shon and leng-lerm. The budget did not reflect any changes 1o equity resulting
from asset revaluations, as thew impacts were nol considared predictable.

These noles are prepared 1o meet the raquiements of the Local Government Act 1889 and the Local Governmen! (Panning and Reparting)
Regquiations 2014 .

1.1 Income and expenditure

Budget Bctual Variance Variance

w020 020 2020 W

§000 §000 §000 % Rel
Income
Rates and charges 52,344 92,769 425 P
Statuiory fees and fines 4834 4 606 (228) (5%
User fees 2H.7 20441 {6.476) [24%) 1
Granis - operatmg Bat? B8 509 6%
Grants - capatal 352 8539 BATT 2259% 2
Contributions - monetary 4,204 5142 941 % 3
Contributions - non monetary - KH e L
et gain | (loss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment (93) 289 382 [411%) 4
Share of net profits | (lessas) of associales and joint
venilures e 131 13 HA 5
Otiver income 1,206 1,123 {173) (13%) 6
Total income 138,273 142,339 4,066 3%
Expenses
Employee cosls 58,430 55,463 2967 % 7
Materials and services 50,196 49,378 818 Fa
Depeaciation 23 096 21,8482 1,104 % 8
Amortisation - inlangible assels - 243 (243) HA
Amaorfisation - nght of use assats - 324 {324) HA 8
Bormowing costs 801 802 (il (0%}
Finance costs - leasas - 35 (35) HA 10
Oiher expenses 77y 3 66T (2 BBE) (3% N
Total expenses 133,402 132,004 1,398 1%
Surplus [ {deficit) for the year 4,871 10,335 5464 118%
(i) Explanation of material variations
Variance Mem Explanation

Raf
1 Liger fees The impact of the COVD-18 pandemis on Council has been profound. During the vanious

stages of the pandemic, the required closure of leisure faciities including Karratyka,
Aquanation, Aquahub, Ringwood Golf, Dorsat Golf, The Rings and Maroandah Nets
resulted in a loss of anticipated user fee meome of $6.3m.
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1.1 Income and expenditure (cont'd)

Variance fem Explanation
Ref
2 Grants - capital The favourable variance refates mainly fo car park developmen! (Heathmant $4.1m,

Croydon $523k and Ringwood §178k), HE Parker multisport complex $1.3m, pavilion
redevelopment (Sdcock Sports $157k, Springfield Sports 534k, Alnsie Park 562k and
Jubilee Park Spors $70k) and road signalisation works $350k (Car Wonga Road &
Tortice Drive North Fingwood). all of which had not been budgeted for.

3 Conbibubions - monelary Thi improved posttion in Contributions - monetary was langely due o Public Open Space
funds $617k and confributions for capital projects $211k recalved greater than budgel.
Public Opan Space funds have requiremeants on the manner in which they can be spent.

4 Netgainloss) on disposal of property, The net gain relates mainly o the sale of plant and flee Aems, with rasults fluctuating

infrastructure, plant and equipment based on the level of replacemnent activity during the period and the condition/natura of

Hems sold.
§  Share of ned profitsilossas) of associaies  The shane of el surplus in @ssociates has improved due to confributions received from
and joint ventures Eastern Regionad Library Corporation and the Marre Warren Usar Group. The
confributions ane non cash related and are not budgeted for.
] Othear incomsa The unfavourable varance |s due o lower than anbclpated intenest rates for investments
held $188%.
T Employes costs The impact of the COVD-19 pandemic on Council has been profound. Duning the vanous

stages of the pandemic, the required closure of leisure faciibes including Karralyka,
Agquanation, Agquahub, Ringwood Go¥, Dorsel Goll, The Rings and Maroondah MNels
resufted in a redguction of anticipated employes costs of $2.4m.

E Depreciation The favourable variance in dapreciation in the current pericd relates to an adustment of
prior panod accumalatied depreciation balances upwards, as part of pror period
adjustment related to Property, Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment. Refer fo Nole 6.1,

9 Amortisation - right of use assets AASE 16 Leases requires nght of use assels and related liabilities for all lease
agresments to be recoghised on fhe balance sheet, The Stalement of Comprehensive
Income i to separatedy recognise the amortisation of the right of vse asset, and the
finance costs relating to the lease, both of which had not been budgeted for.

10 Finance costis - leases Refer above Variance Rel 9,

11 Oiher expenses Oiher expenses ane as expected however this calegory also mclutes axpenses related to
assals written off during the peniod of $2.34m, which iz subject to variation. Refer 1o Note
4.9,
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HNote 1 Performance against budget {cont'd)

1.2 Capital works
Budget Actual Variance Variance
L] 00 2020 2020
$000 $000 $000 %  Ref
Property
Land - 4,196 {4,196) HA 1
Total land . 4,196 {4,196) NA
Buikfings 9,725 23832 [14,107) (145%) 2
Total buildings 9,725 23,832 {14,107} [145%)
Total property 9,725 28,028 {18,303} [188%)
Plant and equipment
Plan1, machinery and eguipment 34n 2,365 1,057 %3
Fixtures, fitfings and fumniture 80 - 80 100% 4
Compulers and telecommunications 950 7 93 9% 5
Total plant and equipment 4,452 2,402 2,050 46%
Infrastructure
Roads 3562 3.298 264 %
Foolpaths and cycleways 3540 343 104 %
Drainage 2685 2554 3] %
Wasle management 50 2 ) 6% 6
Parks, open space and streelscapes 3525 4810 {1,085} M%) 7
Off street car parks 480 489 9) [2%)
Cither infrastructure 745 727 18 2%
Total infrastructure 14,587 15,181 (584) [4%)
Total capital works expenditure 26,764 45,611 [16,847) {59%)
Represented by:
MNew asset expenditure 4,940 16,696 {11,756} (238%) &
Assel renewal expenditure 20,000 15,481 4,519 2% 9
Asset upgrade expendiure 3824 13435 9,611) (251%) 10
Tatal capital works expenditure 26,764 45,611 (16,847} (59%)
(i} Explanation of material variations
Variance ftem Explanation
Ref

1 Land Land purchase for the Heathmant Mulli Level Car Park funded through a federal
govermment grant budgeted in 2020721,

2 Buildings Funding for the Ringwood, Croydon and Heathmont multi level carparks progects have
been oblained in this financial year but budgeted in 2020/21. These projects are forward
funded as works have starled ahead of schedule. The Realm extansion is progressing
ahead of schedule . The HE Parker Sports Pavilion, the Ringweod golf shed and several
sportshield lighting prosects are funded from funds camied forward from 201819, Building
Renewal works such as the Operations Centre upgrade and the Aguahub pool renewsal
are being forward funded from 2020/21.

3 Plant, machinery and equipment The leisure facilities equipment replacement delivery was delayed and funds to be carmied
forward to 202021, The plant and fleat vehicles replacement program is not to the
estimated volume. The underspend is offsel against income volume reduction.

4 Fitures, fitings and fumiture Expenditure for the Signal Box art is reclassified under Parks, Open Space. and
Streetscapes. Balance of Arts in Public Flaces funds to be camed forward fo 2020021

5 Compulers and telecommunications Change in computer replacement policy from purchase outight to lease option has saen
funds transfemed to operating cost, Cloud migration praject has been delayed due o the
pandemic crisis. Funds o be carried forward 1o 2020021,

[ Waste management Leved of work undertaken nof to the estimated volume. Funds 1o be camied forward into

2020721,
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1.2 Capital works (cont'd)

Variance Hem Explanation
Ref

7 Parks, open space and streetecapes Cuambee Sports Oval and Surtace Renovation works are progressing ahead of schedula
and will continue into 2020421, This project is forward funded.

8 Mew asset expendiure HE Parker Spons Pavilion development had $1.8m of expenditure this yaar Sal was
budgeted for in 18/19. Expenditures on Realm Extension $4.6m and Operations Centra
§1.6m wera onginally budgeted for in 20021 but were brought fonward to the curnent
penod,

9 Aszed renewal expendilure $2.3m of expenditure cnginally classified as renewal was reclassified to the assat
upgrade category upon review of facility requirements. Leisure faciifies equipment
delivery, Silcock Sports Paviion redevelopment and plant and fleet renewals weare either
partiafly delayed to future periods or did not occur at the anticipated rate.

10 Asset upgrade expendiure §6.7m of works on the Ringwood, Croydon and Heathmont multilevel car park projects
was brought forward from their oniginal budget peniod of 20721 due to the receipt of grant
funding in the 19720 penod, $2.3m of expenditure onginally classified as renewal was
reclassified to the assel upgrade category upon review of facility requirements,

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 177





Annual Report 2019/20

Mote 2 Analysis of Council results by program
Counci delreers its functions and actvities firough the following programsidineciorates.

(a} Chief Executive Office
Thi Chief Executive Cfficer is the principal advisor to Councd and the key liaison betwesn the elected Council and Council administration. The
responsdbility of the office is to ensure fal Counclf's vision is realised through the organisation's activities and thal polickes and programs of
Counc are effectively managed,

Corporate Services

The directorate is nesponsible for the provision of corporate services io oparational aneas of Council, and includes:
- Finance and Governance, including Wast: Management and Risk Management

- Workplace Peogle and Culture

= Information Technology

- Rervenve, Property and Customer Senice including hbrary serices.

Developmant and Amenity

The direciorate is responsible for

= Enginsrarring and Building Services, which defivers the angineering related companent of Council's Capital Works program ncluding traffic
managemenl, stormwater drainage and flood management, and advice on private subdivisions and developments, Building Servces isue
building permits and camy oul inspections, essential sendces, swimming pool awdils and comglaint resolution

- Statutory Planning manages Council's statutory and compsance activites, including the prosvisions of the Planning and Emironmantal Act and
the Maroondah Planning Scheme

- Health, Local Laws and Emergency Management, manages a range of Council’s statutory and compliance activities: inclading the Public
Health and Wellbeing Act, Food Act Emengency Managament Act and Council's Local Laws. It includes Environmental Health, Immunisation,
Emargancy Managemen! and Local Laws teams,

Operations, Assets and Lelsure

The directorate ks responsibie for

- Assels, which include sirategic asset management, open space strategic directon and policy development, capitad works renewal program
development for roads, car parks, community facliies and public open spaces, and the delivery of community facility and cpen space capital
works projects

- Leisure, which provides opporfunities, actities and events to encourage increased community imvolvement and physical acthaty, In addition, it
manages Kafralyka, Maroondah Federation Estale and Council's Maroondah Leisure facilties, including Aquanation, Aquahub, Ringwood and
Dorsat Goll, The Rings and Croydon Memonal Pool. If is also responsible for overall occupancy of Councils sporting facilibes and pavilions
including seasonal alocations, leases. Rcances and casual use

- Operations maintains Maroondah's community assets, including parks, gardens, bushiand, roads and footpath, as well as flaet management
and mainienance.

Strategy and Community

The direclorate s responsible for

- Busingss and Development, which coondinales Council's efforts in major projects such as the Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre, including
Realm. The team also tacilfates and suppars the sustainable growth of the local economy and business networks

= Community Services, which provides rmatermal & child health, children’s, youth, and aged and disability senvices to meet the needs of a diverse
commumity, &5 well as Ars and Cultural Development

- Integraied Planning which locks after strategic land use, emvironmental sustainability, Maroondah Planning Scheme amendments, and
community and policy development.
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Mote 2 Analysis of Council results by program
(b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

income Expenses  Surplus | (Deficit) ““i':; :::':” Total assets
2020 §000 $000 £000 $1000 000
Chief Executive Offics 81 2377 [2.196) = 5
Corporate Services 99,850 33,207 66,743 5416 a7 357
Development and Amenity 8,529 10,604 (1.275) 16 -
Ciperations, Assets and Leisure 27 495 71,108 (43.613) 8596 1,785,508
Strategy and Community 5184 14,508 (8,324) 330 :
142,338 132,004 10,335 17 460 1,892,863
Income Expenses  Surplus | (Defick) G“:?ﬂ:“:ﬂ":'"' Total assets
2018 5000 §'000 $000 £000 $000
Chiaf Executive Office 176 2331 [2.155) - F
Corporate Senices a7 08t 31,180 65,901 4746 71219
Development and Amenity 11213 10,986 27 118 .
Operations, Assets and Leisure 40774 70,385 (29.611) 16,519 1,842,118
Strategy and Community 9,500 18,316 (B.816) T3 -
158,744 133,186 25,545 8,110 1,813,337

Commentary on allocations

Amaounts included in the above categories that Councll does nol aliocate for intemal reporting purposes inchude:
Corporate Services: rates revenus including sepplementary, Viclonan grants commission, insurances
Oparations. Assets and Leisure: capital granis, depreciation
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1 Rates and charges

2020
¥000

2019
$o00

Council uses capial improved valee ["CIVT) s the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV of a property is the

marked value of land and impeovements.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2019720 was $35.64 bilion (2018/1% §38,10 billion).

Genaral rates

Waste managemant charge

Special rates end charges

Supplamentary rates and rate adusiments
Interast on rates and chares

Cultural and recreational

Total rates and charges

76,868 74546
14770 14,743
153 a2
785 390
175 256
18 19
52,768 90,054

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating punposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2020, and the valuation will be

first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 20@0

Annual rates and charges are recogrised as revenwes when Councl issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are recognised when a

valuation and reassessment is compleled and a supplementary rates nofice issued.

3.2 Statutory fees and fines

Infringements and costs

Cour recoveries

Town panning faas

Land information certficates
Permits

Onther

Total statutory fees and fines

Statulory fees and fines (including parking Jees and fines) are recognised as revenus when the service has been provided, the payment is

received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs,
3.3 User fees

Active leisune cantres

Aged and health senvices

Child cane and children's programs
Community facilities recreation
Community health

Local laws

Performing arts, functions and conferences
Waste management senices
Youth programs

Other fees and charges

Total user fees

User fees by timing of revenue recognition
User fees recognised & a point in time
Total user fees

04 018
§'000 §'000
1.038 1.247
55 197
1.548 1.
91 B3
1,512 1.323
158 142
4,506 4,703
2020 018
£'000 $000
14 808 19,309
473 55
73 35
412 BG5S

17 14

5 42
2,883 3418

. i

3 5

1.547 1,896
20,441 26,320
20,441 26,320
20,441 26,320

Liser fees ane recognised as revenue at & poind in time, or gver fime, when (o as) the performance obligation ks satisfied. Recognition is basad

on the underlying contractual ferms,

34 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following
Summary of grants
Commaonweatth funded grants
State lunded grants
Total grants income
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2020 2019
000 £'000

13,388 20011
4,072 8,600

7 460 28,10






3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd)
{a) Operating Grants

Total

Recurrent - Commanwealth Govemmant
Children's serices

Community health

Financial assistance grants

Aged cane

Recurrent - Stafe Governmeant

Aged cane

Community, planning and development
Children Services

Youth services

Maternal and child health

Commiumity health

Total recurrent cperating grants

Non-recurrent - Commonmwealth Government
Integrated planning

Assel management

Aged care

Non-recurrent - State Government
Sport and recreation

Assel managemeant

Wasie management

Community health

Matemal child and health

Youth services

Integrated planning

Children's services

Council and community planning

Othar

Total non-recurrent operating grants
operating grants

(b Capital Grants

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Buikdings

Roads

Car parks

Ricraational, lsisure and community facilibes
Non-recurrent - State Government
Buildings

Roads

Foolpaths and cycleways

Drainage

Recraational, leisure and community facilities
Parks and opern space

Total non-recurrent capital grants

Total capital grants

{c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Operating

Batance af starf of year

Received duning the financial year and remained unspent al balance dale
Recaived in prior years and remained unspent at balance dale

Recawed n prior years and spent duning the fnancial year
Balance at year and

2020 2019
$'oon §'000
KL 4
95 8
5127 4546
B36 347e
539 1,255
: 145
1 -
A9 m
1035 1,037
. 10
B053 iaE
. 154
B s
k]
B m
42 :
289 100
20 20
2 161
a7 268
50 247
55 100
: 20
& k1]
[Fil 1413
5021 12602
2020 2019
§000 $000
1.122 8,998
858 1,185
4810 -
110 53
754 2,385
439 1,904
g9 o
15 121
&7 447
F 10
FLE 16,106
5 16,108
2020 20189
£'000 $'000
1,640 4.302
11,038 B
152 B
1,442 3,209
} 1,!:11:J H,&E"
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3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd)

{c} Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner [cont'd) 2020 2015
§'000 §000
Capital

Batance al start of year 2613 -
Receved dunng the financial vear and remaned unspent at balance date 28,368 2,340
Received in prior years and remained unspent al balance date 1,835 273
Received in pror years and spenit diing the financial year g;gl .
30, 2613

Balance al year end
Grant income is recognised &t the point in time when the councl satisfies its pedormance obligabions as specified in the underying agreament.

1.5 Contributions 2020 2018
000 §'000
Monetary 5,142 T.497
Non-maonetary 378 51
Total contributions 5,520 7,248
Confrititions of mon monetary assels wene received in refation fo the following assel classes:
Land 157 51
Dramage 187 .
Plant machinery and aquipment 34
Total non-monetary contributions i 51
Monetary and non monetary coninbutions am recognised as revenusg when Councit oblains control over the contributed asset
3.6 Net gain/iless) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2020 019
$'000 $'000
Proceads of sale 854 829
Written down value of assets disposed {565] {res}
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 289 64
The profif or loss on sale of an assed is detemined when control of the assel has passed to the buyer.
3.7 Other incoma 2020 2019
§000 000
Interest on invesiments a1 1,242
Intesast other 2 3
Rent 30 275
Total other income 1,123 1,520

nterest is recognised as i is eamed. Other income is measured at the fair value of the considerabion received or receivable and is recognised
when Council gams control aver the right ko receive the income,

HNote 4 The cost of delivering services

4.1 (a) Employee costs 2020 2019
§000 000

Wages and salaries 48,923 49,174
Workcover ara 612
Superannuation 4548 4 G64
Fringe benefits tax 513 521
Total employee costs 55463 54 971

() Superannuation
Council made contributions to the fallowing funds

Defined benefit fund

Employer contibutions to Local Authionties Superannuation Fund [Vision Super) 251 222
251 222

Employer contribuions payabéa at reporting dale. x

Accumulstion funds

Employer contrbutions to Local Authofies Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 2462 2,589

Employer contributions - othar junds 1,935 1.853

4,397 4,442

Employer contribubions payable at reporting dale.
Refer to nofe 9.3 for further information relating 1o Councils superannuation cbigations.
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4.2 Materials and services 2020 19
§'000 $000
Agency staff 829 1,426
Apprantices 484 38z
Bank charges 368 389
Cleaning 975 852
Communications, postage and advertising 122 1313
Consultants 976 1393
Cost of goods sokd 794 70
Fire services lavy 10 106
Food costs - meals on wheels 508 401
Fuels, oil, registrations and running costs - plant & fleel 1,034 991
Grants to community 438 427
Ingurance 888 &
Legal lees 611 &2
Library contribution 2679 281
Licence fees 191 24
Mainlenance 3740 3511
Marketing and promation 355 27
Matenals - depot and golf courses 1,258 1135
Memberships | subscriptions 306 251
Printing and stationary 142 153
Sacurity 78 w3
Training 370 a3
Uiniforms 103 93
LHilitsers 3553 4172
Othar 3426 4,106
Contract payments - home cane . 2967
Conlract payments - wasts 12,830 11,769
Confract paymints - operalions 4,457 4,054
Contract paymenls - valiations [i:] &5
Contract paymenis - election - 3
Confractors - other 6,326 5229
Tatal materials and services 49,378 51,820
4.3 Depreciation 2020 2019
§'000 5000
Froperty 4,530 4363
Plant and equipmant 2,080 2,143
Infrastrectune 15372 15,625
Total depreciation 21,992 nim

Reder o note 5.2(c), 5.8 and 6.1 for a mone detailed breakdown of depreciation and amorisation charges and accounting palicy.

4.4 Amortisation - intangible assels 2020 2018
§'000 000

Sofware 243 337
Total amortisation - intangible assets M43 a7

4.5 Amortisation - right of use assets 2020 2018
$'000 §000

Photocoplers b =

IT Equipment s <
Ciher m =
Total amartisation - right of use assets ErL) »
4.6 Bad and doubtful debis 2000 2019
000 $'000

Orhar deblors - 13
Total bad and doubtiul debts - 13
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4.6 Bad and doubtful debts (cont'd)
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year 49 52
MNew provisions recognised during the year (19) 20
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible {4) n
Amaounts provided for but recovered during e year - {16)
Balance at end of year 26 49

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss moded. This model considers both historic and forwand looking
information in detamining the bevel of impaiment.

4.7 Bomrowing costs 2020 2019
$000 $'000
Interest - borrowings 202 967
Total borrowing costs 902 967
Bormowing costs are recognised as an expense in the penod in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised as part of a qualifying
assat constructed by Council,
4.8 Finance costs - leases nxn 2019
§000 $'000
Interest - lease liabilities 3
Total finance costs 35
4.9 Other expenses 020 2019
$'000 $'000
Auditors’ remuneration - VAGOD - audd of the inancial stalements, performance statement 7% B4
and grant acquittals
Auditors’ remuneration - intemal 132 135
Councillors' allowances nr 32
Operating lease rentals 202 257
Assets writhen-off / mpaired 2940 2191
Total other expenses 3,667 2,959
MNote 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets 2020 2019
(a) Cash and cash equivalents §'000 $000
Cash on hand 25 5
Cash at bank 10,213 1,118
Term deposils 37018 14 906
Total cash and cash equivalents 47,256 16,049
(b) Other financial assets
Term deposils - cument 20,598 36995
Term deposits - non-current 1,057 1,279
Total other financial assets 21,655 38,274
Total financial assets 68,911 54323

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary usa. These include:

- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3) 5,582 4829
Total restricted funds 5,582 4829
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalants 41,674 11,220
Intended allocations

Although not extemally restricted the following amounts have been allecated for specific future purpeses by Councal:

= cash held to fund camied forward capital works 2075 7.207
- current operating and capital grants received dunng the financial year, or previous 30,876 1,640
financial years, and remain unspent at batance date

Total funds subject 1o intended allocations 32,951 8847

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and ofher highly liquid investments with original maturities of 30 days or less,
net of outstanding bank ovendrafts, Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at onginal cost.
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5.1 Financial assets (cont'd)
{e) Trade and other recelvables

Current
Statutory recanvabios
Rates deblors
Garbage changes - deblors
Infringemant debtors
Provision for doubtul debls - infingements
Non siatulory receivables
Loans and advances to communily onganisations
Interest accrised - offer investments
Other deblors
Provision for doubtiul debls - other deblors
Total current trade and other receivables
Nen-current
Statufory recelvabies
Rates deblors
Garbage chanes - deblors
Non siafutory recenvables
Loans and advances to community arganisafions
Interest accrued - othar investments
Other deblors
Total non-current trade and other receivables
Total trade and other receivables

2020 2019

§'000 §000

3290 2314

545 455

165 233

] (14}

3 3%

73 a7

17281 8,393

17 (35)

21441 11,680
41

2 1

&0 B

73 .

103 24

kit 155

21,718 11,635

Shoet lerm recaivables are camed at nvoice amounl. A provsion for doubtfl debits is recognised when there i objective evidence fad an
impairment has oocurmed, Long temm recetvables are camied al amortised cost using the effective interest rale method.

{d) Ageing of receivables

The ageing of the Council's trade and other recaivables (exchuding statutory recetvables) (hat are nol impained was

Current (not vet dus)
Past due by up to 30 days

Past due between 31 and 180 days
Pas! due betwean 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year

Total trade and other receivables

(&) Ageing of individually impaired recelvables

307 3153
1761 345
B 4.5

671 o2
207 105
3,718 8831

At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $84 B20 (2019: $44,130) were impaired. The amount of the
provision raised against these deblors was $8482 {2015: 530 000). They indridually have been impained as a resull of thewr doubiful collecton,
Many of the lang outstanding past dus amounts have been lodged with Council's dabl colieclors of ate on payment amangaments.

The ageing of receivables that have been mdeidually determined as impaired al reporting dale was:

Currend {not yet due)

Past due by up 1o 30 days

Past dug between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Pas! due by more than 1 year

Total individually Impaired receivables

5.2 Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories

Inventones hekd for distribution
Inventores held for sale
Total inventories

10

31 3

53 3l
84 44
2020 e
$o00 §'000
138 169
256 4
404 33

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost. adjusted when applicable for any loss of senvice potential. All other inventones, including
land hedd for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net reafisable vale. Where inveniosies are acquired for no cost or nominal

consideration, they are measured al curment replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
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5.2 Non-financial assets (cont'd)

{b) Other assets 020 2019
$'000 §'000
Prepayments 923 419
Accruad income 1 51
Total other assets 24 470
(c) Intangible assets 2020 2018
§'000 §'000
Software Thd 782
Total intangible assets TE4 782
Software Total
£'000 $'000
Gross camrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2018 1,664 1,664
Additions 126 126
Balance at 1 July 2019 1,780 1,780
Additions 245 245
Disposals - fully depreciated (639} (B39)
Balance at 30 June 2020 1,396 1,396

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 July 2018 671 ET1
Amaortisation expense 337 337
Balance at 1 July 2019 1,008 1,008
Amortisation expense 243 243
Désposals - fully depreciated (639) (639)
Balance at 30 Juna 2020 612 612
Ned book value al 30 June 2019 782 Th2
Net book value a1 30 June 2020 T84 T84

Intangible assets with finite ives are amortised as an expense on a syslematic basis over the asset's useful We. Amortisation is generally
calculated on a straight line basis, al a rale that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated usaful life.
Estimates of the remaining wseful bves and amortisation method ane reviewed al least annually, and adjustments made where appropriate,

5.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables 2020 Pk}
§'000 $000
Trade payables 7,704 13,343
Accrued expenses 1,259 1,159
Total trade and other payables B963 14,502
(b) Trust funds and deposits 2020 Pk
$000 §'000
Current
Refundable deposils 3323 2837
Fire sarvices lavy 405 286
Retention amounts 642 862
Other refundable deposits 1,206 838
Total current trust funds and deposits 3,576 4823
Non-current
Other refundable deposits B -]
Total non-current trust funds and deposits B 6
Total trust funds and deposits 5,582 4829

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as frust funds until they are retumed, transfemed in
accordance with the purpose of the receipt. or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining contred of the funds, are to be
recognised as revenue at the time of forfest
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5.3 Payables (cont'd)
{b} Trust funds and deposits
Purpase and rature of items
Refundabie / Other Refundable Daposits - Deposits are taken by council as a form of surety in @ number of cirsumslances, inchuding in refation
1o building works, lender deposits. contract deposts and the uss of civic facilities.
Fire Service Lewvy - Council is the collection agent for fire sérvices levy on behall of the State Govemment. Council rermits amounts recelved on a
quarterly basis. Amaunts disclosed hare will be remitied to the stale government in ine with that process,
Retenton Amounts - Council has a confractual right bo retain certain amounts until a contracior has met centain requirements or a refated

wamant or defect penod has elapsed. Subject to the salisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounls
will be pakd 1o the refevant contractor in ine with Council's contractual obligations.

{c) Unearned income 2020 P
000 §000

Current

Grants recaived in advance - oparasng 11,066 =

Granls recetved in advance - capial 19,810 =

Tetal current uneamed income 30,876 -

Non-current

Granis received In advance - capdal 10,780 -

Total current unearned income 10,780 -

Total unearned income 41,656

Mon-current uneamed income amaunts mpresent grant funding received by Council in retation to large, multi-year capital construction
agreaments. The non-curment porfion has been identified via planned expenditure and progress towards the projects as per Councils 10 year

capital works program and adopled budget.
5.4 Interest-bearing liabilities 2020 2019
§'oo0 §000
Current
Borrowings - secured 2518 1,308
Total current interest-bearing liabilities 2618 1,358
Nen-current
Borrowings - secured 15817 17.286
Total non-current interest-bearing liabilities 15,817 17,286
Total interest-bearing liabilities 18,435 18,654
Borrowings are secured by a deed of change over Counci rates,
(a) The maturity profile for Council's bomawings is:
Mof Later than one year 2618 1.308
Latar than one year and nof laber than five years 6637 6323
Later than fve years 9.180 10,963
18435 18,684

Bormowings ane initially measured at {air value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs. The measuremant basis
subsequent o initial recognilion depends on whether the Gouncil has categorised is ineresi-bearing liabiliies 85 efther financial iabites
designated at fair valuee through the profit and loss, o financial liabilities at amarised cost. Any differencs between the initial recognised smount
and the redemption value is recognised in net resull over thie period of the bomowing using the effective interest mathod. The classification
depands on the nature and purpaese of the inieres! bearing liabifies, The Council determines the classification of s mferest bearing Eabilities al

initial recognition.
5.5 Provisions

Total
2020 §'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 13848
Additional provisions 5,205
Amaunts used {3.012)
Change in the discounted ameunt arising because of time and
the effect of any change in the discount rate 150
Balance at the end of the financial year 15,282
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5.5 Provisions (cont'd)

2019

Balance at beginning of the financial year 13,287

Additional provisions 4227

Amounts used {3.950)

Change in the discounted amaount arising because of time and 285

Balance at the end of the financial year 13,848

(a) Employee provisions 2020 2019

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 menths $'oo0 §000

Annual leave 3,168 2,808

Long service keave 1,089 935

Service gratuities 5 22
4,262 3,825

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months

Annual leave 1,148 @

Long service leave 7842 T30

Sarvice graluites 7 81
9,167 8,392

Total current employee provisions 13,428 12,217

Non-current

Long service leave 1863 1,632

Total non-current employee provisions 1,863 1,632

Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:

Curment 13428 12,217

Nos-currant 1,863 1,632

Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 15,292 13,849

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all redevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date,

Wages and salanes and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salanes, including non-maonetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expecied to be wholly settled
within 12 manths of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefils in respect of employee services up to the reporing
dale, classified as cument liabdities and measured at their nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected 1o be wholly setthed within 12 months of the reposting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefils
as current liabilities, measured at the presant value of the amounts expected o be paid when the liabilities are seted using the remuneration
rale expacled to apply at the time of satemeant.

Long service leave

Liability for long servica keave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present value, Unconditional LSL
is disclosed as a currend kability, Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yel lo reach a qualifying term of employment, is
disclosed as a non-current liability.

Key assumptions: 2020 2018
- weighted average discount rale 0.57% 1.15%
- inflation rate 4.25% 4.31%
5.6 Financing arrangements 2020 2019
$o00 £'000

The Council has the following funding arrangaments in place:
Bank overdraft 1,300 1,300
Corporate purchasing cards 300 200
Total tacilities 1,600 1,500
Used tacilities 1 198
Unused facilities 1,489 1,302
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5.7 Commitments
The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at

their nominal value and prasented inclusive of the GST payable.

Later than 1  Later than 2
year and not years and not
Mot later than  laterthan2  laterthan5 Laterthan §

2020 1 year years years years Total
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
Operating
Recycling 1,290 29 - - 1,619
Waste management 10,308 2628 - - 12,936
Other 2783 1,553 1,393 - 5729
Cleaning contracts for councl buildings 958 626 634 - 219
Total 15,340 5,136 2,027 - 2,503
Capital
Buildings 2329 - - - 2329
Roads 1439 - - - 1,439
Parks and reserves 122 . - . 122
Total 3,890 . - - 3,890

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not years and not
Mot later than  laterthan 2 laterthan §  Later than 5

019 1 year years years yEars Total
§'000 §'000 §000 §000 000

Operating

Recycling 1,280 1,306 330 . 2926

Waste management 10,307 8,760 2216 - 21,93

Other 661 124 36T - 1,152

Cleaning contracts for council buddings 1,171 915 1,161 - 3247

Total 13429 11,105 4074 - 26,508

Capital

Buidings 5,895 &1 - 5,956

Roads 185 - - 185

Total 6,080 &1 - - 6,141
5.8 Leases

Policy applicable before 1 July 2019

As a lessee, councl classifies leases as operating or finance leases basad on its assessment of whether the lease transfermed significantly all of
the risks and rewards incigental to ownership of the underlying asset o council.

Operating leasa payments, including any confingent rentals, were recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income stalemant on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another sysiematic basis is more represantative of the time patiem of the benefits derved
from the use of the leased assel. The leased asset was not recognisad in the balance sheet.

All incenfives for the agreement of a new or renewed operaing lease were recognised as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the
uge of the beased assel, imespective of the incantive’s nature o form or the timing of payments.

In the event that lease incenfives wene received 1p enler into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives were recognised as a reduction

of rental expanse over the lease ferm on a siraight-line basis, unless another systematic basis was more reprasentative of the time patbem in
which economic benefits from the leased asset were consumed,
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5.8 Leases (cont'd)
Policy applicable after 1 July 2018
Council has applied AASE 16 Leases wsing & moddied retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as an
adjustment 1o the opening balance of accumulated surplus a1 1 July 2012, with no restaternen of comparative mformation, The councl applied
the: approach consistently i all leases in which i is a kssas.

Cin transstion to AASE 16 Leases, Coencll elkcled (o apply the practical expedient 1o ‘grandiather’ the assessment of which fransactions ane
leazes. The counca has appled this practcal expedient to all of its confracts and therelore appbed AASE 16 Leases only to contracts thal were
previously identfied as leases

At incaption of a contract, afl entines would assess whather a conract s, of containg, 2 lease. A contract is, or conlains, a base il the confract
conveys the nght 1o control the use of an dentified asset for a pariod of ime in exchange for consideration. To identify whather a contract
conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset, it is necessary to assess whether,

- The contract invalas the use of an identified asset;

- The customer has the right 1o obiain substantialty all of the econamic benefits from use of the asset throughout the peniod of use; and

- The customes his the right io direct the use of the assel

This palicy i appled 1o contracts eniered into, or changed, on or afer 1 July 2015,

As a lesses, Council recognises a righl-of-use assel and a lease Habidty at the lease commencement date, The nght-of-usa assat is initally
measured 3 cost which comprises the inttial amount of the lease Rability adjusted for.

- any lsase payments made al of bedore the commencemant date less any lease incentives received; phus

- any initial direc costs incurmed; and

- an estimate of costs 1o dsmantie and remove the underying asset or o resione the underying assat or the site on which it is located

The right-od-use assel is subsequenty deprecated usang the straight-fime method from the commencemant date to the earer of the end of fhe
usefud fite of the right-of-use assat or the end of the lkase tem. The estmaled useful ives of nighl-ol-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment, In addition, the night-of-use assel s periodically reduced by impairment kosses, if any, and
adjusted for cerlain measuaments of the lease liability.

The leasa Liabiity is inisially maasured at e present value of the lease payments that are nof paid at the commancament dale, dscounted wsing
the inerest rate mplicit in the lease or, i thalrale cannot be readily determined, an appropnate incremental bormowing rate. Generally, Council
uses an approprigte incremental borrowing rade as the discount rate.

Leasa payments included m the measeremeant of the lease liabilty compnisa the following:

- Fixed payments,

- Variable leass payments thal depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rale as ai the commencemeant date;

- Amaunts expecled 1o be payable under a residual value guaraniee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that Counci is reasonably cartain fo exencisa, lease payments in an opticnal renewal period if
Councd is reasonably certain fo exerdse an extension cphion, and penalties lor early terménation of a leass unless Council is reasonably coriain
neA 4o ferminate eady,

When fhe lease Kability is remeasured in this way, a comesponding adjustment is made 1o the camying amaunt of the right-of-use assal, oris
recorded in profit or kess i the carmying amount of the night-of-use asset has been reduced 1o e,

Councd has elecied to apply the lermparary option available under AASE 16 Leasas which allows not-for-prafit entities to not measura rght-of-
use assels al initial recognition at fair vake in respect of leases that have significanlly below-market terms.

Right-of-use assets Photocopiers 1T Equipmeni Other Total
o000 §000 §'o00 $'on0

Balance al 1 July 2019 18 - 25 43

Addstions i 1411 36 1,568

Amorlisation charge 29 (275) (20 1324)

Balanca at 30 June 2020 110 1.136 41 1287

Lease liabilities fruif]

Maturity analysis - contraclual undiscounied cash flows §000

Less than one year 555

One to fve years B15

More than five years .

Total undiscounted lease liabdities as at 30 June 1,370

Lease liabilites included in the Balance Sheef at 30 June:

Current 513
HNon-cument 7B
Totad lease Gabilities 1,302
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5.8 Leases (cont'd)
Short-term and low value leases
Council has elected not 1o recognise nghl-o-use assets and leass liabiiies for shon-term leases that have a lease ferm of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets (individual assels worth less than existing capitalisation thresholds for a fike asset up to a maximum of
AUDS10,000}, including IT equipment, Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an axpense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term

200
Expenses relating to: 5000
Short-term leases 114
Total 114

Non-cancellable lease commitments - short-term and low-value leases

Commitments for minimum lease payments bor short-lerm and low-value leases are payable within:
One year 18

Total lease commitments 18

Leases classified as operaling leases under AASE 117 Leases:

Al transiion, leass Tiabiities ware measured at the present value of the remaining bease paymeants, discounted at Council's incramantal
borrowing rate as al 1 July 2019, Right-of-use assets are measured al an amount equal to the lease lishilty, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments, Council applied this approach to all applicable leases.

Council used the folowng practical expedients when applying AASE 16 Leases 1o leases previously classified as operating leases under AASE
117 Leases:

- applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characierisiics;

- adjusted the nght-ol-use assets by the amount of AASE 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabifties and Contingent Assels onerous contract
provision immedialaly before the date of initid application, as an allemative & an impaiment review,

- apphied the exemplion not o recognise right-ol-ise assets and liabiFties for keases with less than 12 months of kease term; and

- usad hindsight when determining the lease lerm if the contract contains oplions io extend or terminate the lease.

Leasas previously classified as finance leases.

For keases that were classfied as finance leases under AASE 117 Leazes, the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease Kability at
1 July 2015 are determined al the camying amount of the lease asset and lease lab@ity under AASE 117 Leases immediaely before that date.

Councl is not required 1o make any adjusiments on transition ko AASE 16 Leases for leases in which it acts as a lessor, except fora sub-leass.
Councl accounted for its leases in accordance with AASE 16 Leases from the date of initial appiication.

Impact on financial statements

On fransifion fo AASE 16 Leases, Councll recognised an additional $42.610 of right-of-use assets and $42 610 of lease hiabilies. When
measuring leass Eabilites, Councll discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2015, The weighted-average rale
anohed is 3.50%.

2020
£000
Operating lease commitment a3 30 June 2019 as
disclosed in Councis financial statements LiL
Descounted using the incremental bormowing rade af 1
July 2019 (6]
Financs lease liabity recognised as ot 30 June 2018 170
Recognition exempbon for:
shor-term keases 2
Lease liabiities recognised as al 1 July 2019 43
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Note & Assets we manage (cont'd)

Acguisibion

The purchase mathod of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
acquisition plus any incidental costs atinbutable to the acquisition, Fair valye is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset (or paid 1o
transfer 3 Eabilly) in an ordedy transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Where assels are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construchion, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during
constrechon, and an appropate share of direclly attnibutable vanable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limas have applied when recognising assets wilhin an applicable assel class and unless
othenyise slated are consistent with the priar yaar

Depreciation

naed Threshold limst

Asset recognition threshelds and depreciation perieds Years §'000
Property

land
Buildings

buildings 25-150 10
Plant and eguipment

pant, machinery and equipment 2-10

fixtures, fittings and fumituna 2-15 07

works of an

computers and telecommunications 2-10 07
Infrastrectune

road pavements and seals 36 - 65 20

road substructure 36 0

road formaton and eanhworks 150 - 200 20

road ke, channel and minor culverts &5 ]

road appurtenance 10-65 5

lactpaths and cycleways 50-80 5

drainags 10 5
Parks, reserves and recreabional

sub-surface drainage 10 5

imigation 10 ]

larke: impaovement warks 60 -80 5

spading grounds surtaces 20-50 ]

playground equipment 5-10 ]

public seating §-10 5
Intangible assats

intangible assets 5 2
Land wnder roads

Councl recognises land under roads it controls at fair value,

Depraciation and amorisation

Buikfings. land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and ofher assets having limited useful ives are systematically deprecialed
owver thiir useful ives to the Councl in @ manner which reflects consumption of the sarvica potential smbodied in those assels. Estimates of
ramaining usafud lives and residual values ase made on a reguler basis with major assel classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and
methods are reviewed annually,

Whare assals have separate identfiabbe components that-are subject 1o reqular replacement, these components are assigned distingt useful
Fves and residual vahues and a separaie depreciation rate is determined for each companenl.

Road earthwaorks are not depreciated on (he bass thal they ane assessad as nod having a bmited useful life.
Straight line depreciation k& charged based on the residual useful Me as delermined each year.
Depreciation pencds used ane fisted above and ane consistent with the prior year unless othanwise staled

Repairs and mainienance

Where the reparr relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capdalisation threshold the cost is capitaised
and depreciated. The carrying value o the replaced assel i expansed,
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Valuation of land and buildings

The valuation of land and bulldings is a faif value, being marke! value based on highest and best use permitied by relevant land planning
provisions, Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced o refiect this limitation. This adjustment is
an uncbservable inpul in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.

Specialised land ts valued a1 fair value uging site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped andior unsendced) characleristics, accass rights and
private interests of other pasSes and enfillements of infrastructure assels and serices. This adjustment is an unobsarvabla input in the valuasion,
The adjustment has na imgact on the comprahensive ncoma statement.

Ay significant movements in the unobsenvable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair vahue of these
assels.

Vaduation of land and buildings ware undertaken by a qualified independent valuer {James Graps AAPI - Certified Practising Vetuer No. 101826)
in May 2020, Valuations for financial reporting purposes ang conducted bl-annually by Council, with the most recent previous revaliation
underaken in 2018, Sinca then, & sgnificant downturn in marke? values has cccurred, dus to the uncerainty craated by events inclefing the
royal banking commission, federal re-glections and global economic slowdown, Property markets reacted positively 10 the lederal alaction in
May 2019 which resulied in a rise in marked values from 2019 through o early 2020. Many suburbs, including those within Councl's municipal
area, aimos! surpassed their peak values from 2018 by early 2020, until the recent oulbreak of the novel coronavines COVID-19. COVID-15, and
Its declaration as a glabal pandemic by the Workd Health Organisation on 11 March 2020, has created uncartainty in the real estate markel.
Market condans currently change on a daily basss, remain highly unpredictable, and have stifled further growth in marke! values across
Victoria. Due bo these factors, and despe the general resiliency of property values and attempts of government stimulus o stabifse the
economy, markel prices contines io expenence downwarnd preassung.

Detaibs of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair valise hierarchy as al 30 June 2020 are as foliows

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Date of Valuation
Land 11,360 670,631 Jun20
Specialised land : : 232 560 Jun20
Buildings = 2018 200,406 Jun:20
Total 5 13,379 1,103,797

Valuation of infrastructure

Valuabon of infrastructure assets has been determined in accordance with valualions camed out by an accredited valuer, The date of the
current valuation is detaded in the following labke. The valuation is at fair valee based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at
the date of valuation,

Detgils of the Councils infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as al 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of Valuation
Roads = - ZB5 446 =20
Footpaths and cycleways . . 293N Jun-2i
Drainage . . 267 833 Jun-20
Off streel car parks - - 19,209 Jun-20
Total - - 601,899

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land (land under roads) is valued using a marke! based direct comparison technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the
axtent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per squara metre, The extent and impact of restnictions on use vanes and
resulls in & reduction fo sumounding land values of 95%. The marked value of land vares significanily depanding o the location of the land and
the current market conditions, Cumently land values average $543.94 per square meire.

Mon specialised land is valued using a marke! based mass modeliing lechnique. Significant unobsenable inputs inclede the extent and impact
of restricion of use. The extent and impact of restricions on use vanes, and the marka! value of land vanes signficantly depending on the
location of the land and the curment market conditions.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacemnant cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement
cost and remaéning useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastruchire assels are determined on the basis of the cument
conditon of the asset. Replacemaent cost is sensitive to changas in market condifions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through 1o
the valuation, Usetl ives of infrastrecture are sensitive fo changes in use, expaciations or requirernenis that could eher sharten or extend the
useful lives of infrastructure assets,

2020 2018
Recanciliation of specialised land §ooo §'o00
Land under roads 232 558 250,141
Total specialised land 232,559 250,741
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6.2 Investments in associates, joint arangements and subsidiaries 020 2019
§'oo0 §000
{a) Investments in associates
Investments in associates accounted for by the equity method ane

- Eastern Regional Livary Corporation 3305 3950
- Narre Warren User Group 2n 247
Total 3578 3447

Eastern Reglonal Library Corporation

Background

Councils equity share in the Eastern Regianal Library Cosporation as a1 30 June 2020, based on the Corporation’s unaudited financial repor, is
disciosed as a non-cument invesiment

The equity holders m the Eastern Regional Library Corporation ane

Maroondah Cay Council - 24 89%

Krow City Council - 36.39%

Yama Ranges Shire Council - 38.72%

Council's share of accumulated surplus | [deficit)

Council's share of accumulated surplus | (daficit) al stand of year 3,150 3.025
Feporied surplus | (defici) fos year 155 125
Council's share of accumulated surplus | (deficit) at end of year 3,305 3,150
Narre Warren User Group
Background

Council holds a 15.94% inferest in the net asssts relating fo the use of the now closed Name Wasmen regional landfill (aciity. The invesiment held
by the Mame Wamean User Group is used for monitanng of fhe site, receipl of royalties and interest on the mvestmenl. Feder to Note B.1
Contingeni assets and Rabilites.

Council's share of accumulated surplus [ (deficit)

Coumncil's share of accurmdated surplus / [daficil) al start of year 287 287
Reporied surplus | (deficil) for year (24) -
Councirs share of accurmuiated surplus / (deficit) af end of year FIE 7

Associates are all entites over which Councl has significant influence but not control or join control. Invesiments in associales ane accounted
for using the equity mathod of accounting, afer initially baing recognised al cost.

Investmants in joint arangemants ane classified as either jeint operations o joint ventues depending on the contraciual righls and obligations
each invesior has, rather than the legal structure of the join arrangement,

For joint operations, Council recognises its dirmet right 1o, and its share of jointly held assels, liabilities, revenues and expanses of joint
operations

Interests i joint vantuses are acoounied for using the equity method. Under this method, the interests ara indbially recognised In the consofidaled

barlance sheel a1 cost and adjested thereafter to recognise Countil's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movemens in athes
comprehensive incame in proft or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.

Committees of management
Al entites controlled by Council that have matenial revenues, expenses. assels or kabilibes, such as commitiees of management, have been
included in this financial report. Any transactions betweean these enfities and Cotinl have been aliminated in full

6.3 Non-current assets classified as heid for sale 2020 208
§'000 $000

Land and bulldings - carmying amounl 6,799 .
6,799 -

Hon-current assets dassified as held for sale (including disposal groups) ane measured ad Me lower of its camying amount and far value less
costs of disposal, and ane not subject bo depreciation. Non-cument asses, disposal groups and relaled Eabiities and assets ane ireated as
current and classifed as held for sale if thesr camying amount will be recovered through 8 salke fransaction rather than fough continuing use.
This condition is regarded as mef only when the sake is highly probable and the asset’s sale (or disposal group sala) is expecied to be compleled
within 12 months from the date of classafication.
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Hote T People and relationships

7.1 Council and key management remuneration 2020 2019
No No.
(a) Related Parties
Parent endify
Manoondah City Council i the parent enlity.
Subsidiaries and Associates

Interests in subsidianies and associates are detailed in Note 6.2.

(b) Key Management Personnel
Details of persons holding the positien of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the year are:
Councillors T. Damante
T. Dib
M. Graham (including as Deputy Mayor November 2019 to current)
N. Larmont
P. Macdonakd
5. Mazzuchelli
K. Spears (including as Deputy Mayor July 2015 - Novernber 2018)
R. Steane (including as Mayor July 2019 - November 2019)
M. Symon (ncluding as Mayor November 2019 to curment)
Key Management Personnel  Chief Executive Officer
Director - Corporate Services
Director - Development and Amenity
Director - Operations, Assets and Leisure
Director - Strateqy and Community

Total Number of Councillors 9 10
Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 5 5
Total Number of Key Management Personnel 14 15
{c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 2020 2018

$000 $'000
Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-emm benafits 1,880 1,820
Long-term benefits (25) 116
Post employment benefits 122 116
Total Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 1,976 2,052
The numbers of key managemant personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any 2020 2018
refated entities, fall within the following bands: Ho Neo.
$1,000 - $9,999 - 1
$20,000 - 529,999 7 T
$40,000 - $59,999 1 1
$60.000 - $89.999 1 1
$220,000 - $239,993 1 2
$240,000 - $249,999 1 -
$250,000 - $258,999 - 2
$260,000 - $269,993 2 -
$340,000 - $359.999 - 1
$380,000 - $399,999 1 o

14 15

{d) Senlor Officer Remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports direcily fo the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000

The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their rebevant income bands: 2020 2019
Income Range: No. No.
$150,000 - $159,999 3 3
$160,000 - $169,999 . 2
$170,000 - $179,999 10 12
$180,000 - $189,999 4 -

17 17
Taotal Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included above, amounted fo; 2974 2872
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7.2 Related party disclosure 2020 2018
(a) Transactions with related parties §'000 $'000
Duning the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parbes,

There were 12 fransactions that occumed during the curment period with ane related party for
mowing services. The fotal of these transactons was 552 487 50, and wera made on standard 57
terms through an open tender process.

(b) Qutstanding balances with related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reparting period in relation lo
transactions with related parties

There were 2 transactons with one related party for mowing senvices that represent an
oulstanding balance at the end of the reporting penod. The total balance of these transactions, g s
which were made on standard terms through an open lender process, is $8,833.00.

(c) Loans to | from related parties
The aggregate amount of lans in existence at balance date thal have been made, guaranieed
of secured by the council 1o a related party as follows:

Mo koans to / from related parties for the 201920 year,

(d) Commitments to | from related parties
The aggregate amount of commitments in exsstence al balance date that have been made,
guaranieed or secured by the council 1o a related party are as follows:

Mo commitrments to or from related parties noled for the 2019720 year.
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Mote B Managing uncertainties
B3 Contingent assets and liabilities
{a) Contingent liabilities
Contingent assats and conlingent labiities are not recognised in the Balance Shee!, bul are discosed and if quantifisble, are measured a1
nominal value. Contngent assets and liabilibes are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectively.

Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benafit superannuation scheme thal may result in the need fo make additional contributions to the
scherme, matiers relating to this polantial obdigation ane cutlined in Note 8.3, As & result of the volatility in financial markets the likeihood of
making such confrbations in future panods exsts,

Insurance claims

Council requiary receives claims and demands arising from incidents which ocour on land belonging to Councl or thal anise from the actions o
omissions of Council and or #s officers. Councl is & participant of the MAV Lisbiity Mutua! Insurance {LMI) Scheme. Councl cares $600m of
public iability insuranca and $600m of professional indemnity insurance, both with & policy excess of $50,000 each, The maximumn liability of
Council in any single claim is the axtent of its excess. There are no above excess daims of which Council is aware which would either fal
cutside the terms of Council's insurance polices or that have not been repored o the LMI scheme.

Legal matters
The Council is presantly involved in several confidential legal mafiers, which are being conducted through Councils soficitors. As the matters are
yet 1o be finalised. and fhe financial culcomes are unable 1o be estmaled, no allowance for thess contingencies have been mada in the financial

repon

Building cladding

Councd has assessed ils potential exposure io rectification works and ofher claims in relation 1o buikding cladding as low risk and Emiled
exposure, with their poteniial financial impact being minimed.

Liability Mutual insurance

Council is a participant of the MAY Liabifity Mulual Insurance (LMI) Scheme, The LM scheme prowides public liabiity and professional indemnity
insyrance cover. The LMI scheme slales that each pasticipant will remain kable 1o make further contributions to the scheme in respect of any
insurance year in which if was a parbcipant to the exient of s participant’s share of any shortfall in the provision set asde in respec of that
insurance year, and such liabilty will continue whether or not the participant remains a participant in futune insurance years

Other contingent liabilities

Approximately §1,715,275 (§1,864 000 in 2019) is held by Whitehorse Crty Counca in a Landfill Sne Aftercare Resane in relation to the Name
Warren Landfil Site to deal with any envieonmental problems that could anse in relation 4 the completed landfl site. Based on expenence
during operation no problems are expecied but the Reserve will continue to be held for approximately the ned 20 years unt] ihe site is safe
Council's exposure is 15.94% per ceni of any works that are required o be completed.

{b) Guarantees for loans to other entities

The amount disclosed for fnancial guarantee in this note ks tha nominal amount of the undedying loan that is guaranteed by the Council, nol the
fair valiee of the financial guarantes.

Financial guarantes contracts are nof recognised as a lability in the balance sheet unkess the bkender has exercised thelr ight o call on the
guarantee of Council has olher reasons fo bebeve that A ks probabile that the nght will be exercised.

Maroondah City Council acts a5 guaranicr against the bormowings for Ringwood Diving Inc. The fability is imiled fo $25.000,
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8.2 Change in accounting standards

Thiz folkowing naw AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting peniod. Council has assessed thase pending
standards and has identified the following poiential impacts will Bow from the apphcation of these standands in future reparting periods.

AASE 1059 Service Concession Armangements: Granfors (AASB 1058) (appliss 2020:21 for LG Sector]

AASE 1059 addresses the socounting for a service concession aangement by a grantor thal is a public seclor entily by prescribing the
accounting for the arrangemeant from the grantor's perspective. i requires the grantor io;

- necognise 3 service concassion assel constructed, developed o acquired from a fhird party by the operator, including an upgrade fo an existing
assal of the grantor, when the grantor conlrels the assat,

- reclassify an existing asset (including recognising previcusly unrecognised identifiable intangible assets and land under roads) as a senice
concession asse! when It mests the criteria for recognition as a sanvice concassion assel,

- infhally measure a senvice concassion assel construcied, developed or acquired by the operator or reciassified by the grantor at current
replacemeant cost in acoordance with the cost approach 1o fair value in AASE 13 Fair Value Measuramenl. Subsequent to the initial recognition
or reclassification of the asse!, the service concession asset i accounted for in accondance with AASE 116 Property, Plan! and Equipment or
AASE 138 Intangible Assets, a5 appropriale, except as speciied AASE 1059,

- recognise a comesponding habilty measured initally at the fair value (cument replacement cosl) of the senice concession assat, adjusted for
any other consideration between the grantor and the cperator, and

- disciose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to enderstand the nature, amound, tirmeng and uncerainty of assels,
liabilities, revenue and cash flows arising from service concession amangements,

Baszed on the Council's current assessmant, here is expecied to be no impact on the transactons and balances recognised in the financial
statermnents as the Counc is nof a grantor in 3 senice concession arangement

AASB 2018-7 Amendments fo Austrafian Accounting Standards - Definition of Maferial (applies 2020021 for LG Secior)

The Standard principally amends AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASE 108 Accounting Policses, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Emors. The amandments refine the definibon of matenial in AASE 101. The amendments clarfy the defindion of material and is
application by improving the wording and aligning the definition across AASB Standards and other pubications. The impacts on the local
govemment secior are expected to be menimal,

AASE 2018-1 Amendments to Ausirahan Accounting Standards - References fo the Conceplual Framework (apphes 202021 for LG Sector)
This Standard seis oul amendmeants % Australian Accounbing Slandards, Interpretations and ofher pronouncements o reflect the issuance of
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting {Conceplual Framework) by the AASE. The impacts on the local government sector are
expacied 1o be minimal,

8.3 Financial instruments
{a) Objectives and policies
The Council's principal inancial inslruments comprise cash assats, lerm deposiis, receivables (excluding statulory receivables), payables
{excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Delails of the significant accounting policies and methods adopled, including the critena for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial lability and equity instrument is disdosed in the notes of the financial staterments. Risk management is camed out by senior
managament under policies approved by the Council. These polices include identification and anatysis of the nsk exposure fo Council and
appropnate procedures, controls and risk minimisation

() Markit risk

Market risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash Rows of councl financial instremants will fuctuate because of changes in market prices,
Council's axposura bo marked sk is primarily fhrough interest rate risk with only insignifican? expasure fo other price risks and no exposurne to
foreign currency risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate sk refars o the nsk that Bie vatue of a financial instrument or cash flows associabed with the instrument will fluctuate dus to
changes in market interes! rates. Councils interest rate liabilty risk arises primanly from long lerm loans and bemowings at fixed rales which
exposes council io fair value interest rate risk. Council does nol hold any imterest bearing financial instruments that are measured af fair value,
and theredore has no exposure 1o fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financisl
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marke interast rates, Council has minimal exposure fo cash flow mlerest rale risk.

Investment of surples funds is made with approved financial institufions under the Local Govemment Act 1989 . Councl manages intaras! rate
risk by adopling an investiment policy Shal enssnas

- diversification of mvestment products,

= monioring of returm on investment, and

= benchmarkeng of retums and companson win budgat.

There has bean no significant change m e Council's exposure, or its ohjectives. policies and processes for managing intenast rate sisk of tha
methods used to measane this risk from the previows reporing period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficently significant during the year 1o have an imgact on the Councils year end resull
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8.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)

{e) Credit risk

Cred risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obfigations under a financial instrument and cause Coundl to make a financial
loss, Council have exposure o cred® risk on some financial assets mcluded in the balance sheet. Cradit risk exists in relabon fo outstanding fees
and fines az well as loans and recehables: from sporting clubs and associations. To help manage this nsk:

- council have a palicy for establishing credi limits for the entities council deal with;

- council may require coliateral where appropriate; and

- councd anly invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credil rating specified in council's investment palicy.

Recevables consist of & large number of customers, spread across the ralepayer, business and govemment sectors. Credit risk associated with
thie council's financial assels is minimal because the main deblor is secured by a charge over the rateable propery. There are no malarial
financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired

Council may also be subject 1o credit sk for ransactions which are not inclided in the batance sheet, such as when council provide a guarantee
for another party. Details of our contingent lisbilities are disclosed in Note 8.1{a).

The maximium axposure i credil risk al the reporting dale fo recognised Binancial assets is the camying amount, ned of any provisions for
Impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financia staiements. Council does not hold any collateral.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk inchudes the nsk thal, as a resull of councils operatonal busdity requitements it will nol have sulficient funds 1o seftie a ransaction
when required or will be forced to sell a financial assel at balow value or may be unable to sattle or recover 8 financial assel. To help reduce
thesa risks Coundl:

= have a hguidity policy which tangets a minmum and average levef of cash and cash equivalents to ba maintained;

- have readily accessible standby laciities and other funding amangements in place,

- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requees surplus funds i be invested within various bands of liquad instruments,

= manitor buedged lo actual parfommance on a regular basis; and

- set limits on borrowings relating to the parcentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of foan principal repayments fo rala revenue,

The Councd's maxmum axposure ko liquidity nsk is the camying amounts of inancial lisbilites as disclesed on the face of the balance sheet and
the amournts related (o financial guarantess declosed in Mole 8.1(b), and is desmed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and cument
assessmant of nsk

There has been no significant change in Counclls exposure, of its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity rsk or the methods
used 1o measurs this risk from the previous reporting period.

With fhe exceplion of bormwings, all financia liabilibes are expected fo be setted within normal terms of trade. Detads of the maturity profile for
borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.

Unless otherwise stated, the camying amounts of financial mstruments refiect thear fair value.

() Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, fulure expectations, economic forecasts, and managements imowledge and expenance of the financial
markets, Councl believes the following movements are ‘reasonably possibie’ over the next 12 months:

- A parallel shift of +1% and -1% In markel inerest rales (AUD) from year-end rates of 0.25%.

These mavements will not have a malerial impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they have a matena impact
on fhe results of Councdl's operations
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8.4 Fair value measurement

Fair valug higrarchy
Councls financial assats and kabilites are nod valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Councils financial assets and Eabifites are
easured at amorised cost,

Council measums cartain assats and Nabilises a1 fair value where required or parmitied by Australian Accounting Standards. AASE 13 Faér valie
reasurament, aims b improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single souros of fair valus
measurement and disclosure requiremints for use across Australian Accounting Standards,

AASE 13 defines fair value as the prce (hal would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabdty in an orderly fransaction between
market parficipants af the measurement date. Fair value under AASE 13 is an exit price regardiess of whether that price is directly ocbservabile or
estimated using another valuation technique

All assats and liabikties for which fair value 15 measured or declosed in the financlal statements are categorised within a tar value hierarchy,
dascribed as foflows, based on the lewest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) marked prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilites

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is dineclly or indirectly
observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valee messurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determingd ciasses of assels and Babilities on the basis of the natune, characieristics and
risks of the assal or liabilty and the level of the fair value higrarchy as explained above.

In additon, Council detesmines whether fransfers have occumed betwesn levels in the hisrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant lo the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting pericd.

Revaluation

Subsequent fo the inifial recognition of assats, non-current physical assels, other than plant and equipment, are maasured at thedr fair vaiue,
being the price that would be recaived 1o sellan assat {or paid 1o fransfer a Eabilty) in an orderfy fransaction between markeat participants af the
measuremant date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the camying value of the individual classes of assefs measured af tair value fo ensure
{hat each asset malenally approximated &s far valus, Where the camying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class
of assel was revalued.

Fair value valualions ane determined in acoordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes o the valuation hieranchy will only occur if an extemal
change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset resull in changes to the parmissible or practical highest and best usa of the assel. In

addition, Ceunsil undertakes a farmal revaluation of land, buildings, and mfrastructure assels on a regular basis ranging from 2 to 5 years. The
valuation s performed edher by expensnced councl officers or independent experts

Where the assats are revalued, the revaluation increments are crediied directly to the asset ravaluation resenve excepl io the exdent that an
increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the incrament is
recognisad as revenue up o the amount of the expense. Fevaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except whare prior ncrements
are included in the asset evalualion resene for that class of asset in which case the decrement & taken o the resenve 1o the extent of the
ramaining ncrements. Within the same dass of asses, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Impairmant of assels

Al each reporting date, the Council reviews he camying value of its assats 1o determing whather there is any indication that these assats have
been impaired, If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel. being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use, is compared to the assets carmying value. Any excess of the assets camying value over ifs recoverable amount is expensed fo
the comprehensive income statement, unless the assel is camed al the revalued amount in which case, the impaiment loss is recognrised
directy against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of assal fo the exdent that the impaimment loss does nol axceed thea amount
in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset

B.5 Events occuring after balance date
o matiers have occurred afier balance date thal require disclosure in the financial report
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Mote 9 Other matters

8.1 Reserves
Balance at
beginningof  Adjustments for Increment  Balance at end of
reporting period prior periods {decrement) reporting peried
$000 $'000 $000 $oo0
(&) Asset revaluation reserves
2020
Property
Land 540,322 . (49,368) 459,956
Buildings 63,449 - 2,250 65,739
6121 - (47 ,078) 585 6595
Infrastructure
Roads 243,352 . 6,540 249 992
Footpaths and cycleways 26,953 - 746 27 5499
Drainage 146,459 . 6956 153415
Off street car parks . . 447 447
416,764 - 14,789 431,553
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,029,535 . (32,288) 997,247
w19
Froperty
Land 582 268 . {32,948) 549,322
Buildings 63,440 . 63,449
645,717 - (32,948) 612,71
Infrastructure
Roads 23 AS6 - 12,896 243,352
Footpaths and cycleways 25468 - 1484 6953
Drainage 136411 - 10,048 146,459
392 336 - 244728 416,764
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,038,053 z {8,518) 1,029,535
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Councils assets aver time.
Balance at Transfer from
beginning of  Adjustments for accumulated  Balance at end of
reporting period prier periods surplus reporting pericd
§'000 $000 §000 §'000
(b) Other reserves
2020
General 11,000 . . 11,000
Total Other reserves 11,000 - - 11,000
2018
General 9,000 - 2,000 11,000
Total Other reserves 9,000 - 2,000 11,000

The general reserve is used to record funds set aside for future possible confingencies e.g. unfunded superannuation call, unplanned capital
expanditure.
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9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus | (deficit) 2020 2019
$'000 £'000

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 10,335 25,546
Depreciation and amartisation 22,558 22468
(Profil) / loss on disposal of propery, infrastructure, plant and equipment (289) (64)
Assets written off and adjustments 2,718 1,684
Finance costs Q37 967
Confributions - non-monetary assets (378) (51)
Cther (205) (209)
Change in assets and fabities:
(Increase) [ decrease in frade and other receivables (9,883) (4,216)
(Increase) [ decrease in prepayments (454) 642
Increass | (decrease) in trade and other payables (1,858) (216)
Increase | (decrease) in trust funds and other deposits 753 346
{Increase) | decrease in inventories (1) 69
Increase | (decrease] in uneamed income 3a.027 -
Increase | (decreass) in provisions 1,443 562
Met cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 64,593 47,390

9.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation confributions in respect of its employees 1o the Local Authorities Superannuation
Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of which is funded differently.
Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation cateqonies, Vision MySuper [ Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee contributions on a
progressive basis. Employer contributions are nomally based on a fixed percentage of employee eamings (for the year ended 30 June 2020,
this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guaraniee (SG) legislation).

Defined benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category, This is because
the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan,

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the defined benefit
obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific
employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared
with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable o allocate benefit liabilies, assets and costs between emplayers for
the purposes of AASE 119,

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustes on the advice of the Fund
Actuary.

A triennial actuarial review is cumently underway for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 and is expected to be completed by 31
December 2020,

As a1 30 June 2020, an interim actuarial investigation was hekd as the Fund provides ifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit calegory. The
vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer was 104.6%. The financial assumplions
used to calculate the VBIs were:

Met investment retums 6.6% pa

Salary information 0.6% pa

Price inflation (CP1) 1.2% pa

The VBI is used as the primary funding indicator, Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2020 actuarial investigation determined the
Defined Benefit calegory was in a satistaciory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding
arrangements from prior years.
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9.3 Superannuation (cont'd)
Employer contributions
Regular contributions
On the basis of the results of the 2017 full actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Acheary, Council makes employer contributions to the
Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2020, this rale was 9.5% of membars’
salanes (9.5% in 20182015), This rate s eapacted fo increase in line with any Increases in the SG contrbution rate and reviewed as pan of the
30 June 2020 trennial valuation.

In additon, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefs paid as a consequence of retrenchment above the funded
resignation os retiremant benafit

Funding calls

If the: Defined Banafit category is in an unsatstactory financial position at an actuanal investgation or the Defined Benefit categony's VB is
beldow its shortfall Bmit al any ime ather than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Banefil calegory has a shorall for the purposes
of SP5 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so thal the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall cccurring. The
Fund monitors is VB on a quarterly bass and the Fund has set it shortfall fimil 2t 97%

in the event thal te Fund Actuary defermines that there is a shodtfall based on the above reguirement. the Fund's participating employers
(including Council) ane required ip make an smployer contibution to cover the shorfall.

Using the agreed methodelogy, the shorfall amouni is apportioned between the parficipating employers based on the pre-1 July 1953 and posi-
30 June 1993 service katilies of the Fund's Defined Benafil category, together with the employer's payroll &1 30 June 1993 and at the date the
shortfall has baen calculated.

Due o the nature of the contractual chiigations between the paricipating employers and tha Fund, and that the Fund inchedes lfetime
pansioners and their reversionary beneficianes, it i unkiely that the Fund will be wound up.

It there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be retemed 1o the paricipating employers.

In the evant that a paricipating employer & wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transfered to that employer's
SUCoessor

The 2019 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An acluarial investigation is conducled annually for the Defined Benefit calegory of which Counc is a contributing employer. Generally, a full
actuarial Investigation conducied every three years and intenm actuarial investigations are conducted for each intervening year, An inferm
Investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2019 and the last full actuanal imvestigation was conducted as at 30 June 2017,

The Fund's actuarial investigations identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is & contributing employer:

2019 2017
§'000 £'000
A VBI surplus 151,300 69,800
& tofal service liability surplus 233,400 183,500
A discount accreed benefits surplis 256,700 228,800

The V81 surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested benefits that the
defined benefit members would have been entitied to if they had all exited on 30 June 2019,

The total sarvice Eabiity surplus means thal the curent value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category plus expected future
confributions exceeds the value of expecied future benefits and expenses as a1 30 June 2018,

The drscounted accrued benefil surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefi category exceeds the value of
benefits payable in the fulure bul accued in respect of senvice to 30 June 2019,

Council was notified of the 30 June 2015 VBl during August 2019 (2018: August 2018).
The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation

A trennial actearial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2020, 1 is anboipated that his actrarnial imeesbgation
will be completed by 31 December 2030, The financial assumpbions for the purposas of this investigation are:

020 2017

per annum per annum

Het investmant retums 5.60% 6.50%
) 2.50%

Salary infomaton (first two years, 2 75% per annum thereafter) 3.50%

Prica inflation (CP} 2.00% 250%
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10 Change in accounting policy

Council has adopled AASE 15 Revenue from Coniracts with Customers, AASE 16 Leasos and A458 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Enfites |
fram 1 July 2019. This has resulted in changes in accounting pobicies and adjusiments o the amounts recognisad in the financial stalements.
[Dhue fo the transition methods chosen by Council in applying these standards, comparative information throughout these financial statements
has not besn restated to reflect the requiremants of the new standards eocepl in relation %o contracts that were not complete at 1 July 2019, The
transition impact of these are delaiad below

a) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - impact of adoption
AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customars applies fo revenue fransactions whene Councll provides sarvices or goods under contractual
arrangements,

Councll adopted A4SE 15 Revenue from Contracts wilth Customers using the modified {cumulative catch up) method. Revenus for 2019 as
reported under AA58 118 Revenve & not adjusted, bacause the new standard s only applied from the date of initial applicaton

AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Cusfomars requires revenu from contracts with customers fo be recognised as Council satisfies the
perfrmance obligations under the contract.

b) AASE 16 Leases

AASE 16 Leases requires right of use assets and related liabilities for all lease agreements fo be recognised on the balance sheet. The
Statement of Comprehensive Income s fo separalely recognise the amorisation of the right of use asset, and the finance costs relating 1o the
laase. Council has elecied 1o adop! the modified (cumulative catch up) method under the standard and as such has nol adjusted 2019
disclosures. Refer o Note 5.8 Leases.

c) AASE 1058 Income of Notfor-Profit Entities
AASE 1058 Income of Nod-for-Profif Enfites applies to income recelved where no confract i3 m place. This inchdes statutory charges (such as
rates) as well as most grant agreemeants.

Councl adopled AASE 1058 Income of Nod-for-Profit Enfies using the modified (curmiative catch up) method, Income for 2018 is not adjusted,
because the new standard &5 only appbed from the date ol inilial application

AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profif Entities requires income 1o be recognised as Council satishes the performanca cbigations under the
contract

d} Transition impacts
The following table summanses tha impact of iransition o the new standards on relained eamings at 1 July 2019,

2019

£000
Fetained eamings a1 30 June 2019 820,938
Adjustment - impact of A4SE 15 Revenwe from Confracts with Cusfomers {B0)
Adjustment - impact of AASE 1058 Income of Nol-for-Profl Entifies (2,550)
Retained eamings at 1 July 2019 818,308

Council adopted the practical expedient of deeming the lease asse! o be equal in value to the lease Eabdity at 1 July 2019. As such there was
no impact on retained eamings on the adoption of AASD 16 Leases

Thee following table summarises the impacts of transition to the new standards on Council's balance sheet for the year ending 30 June 2015,

As reported 30 Post adoption 1
June 2019 Adjustments July 2019
§'000 $000 $000
Assets

Right-ol-use assats 3 43 43
. 43 43

Liabilities
Unearned income - operating grants - B &0
Uneamed income - capital grants - 2550 2,550
Lease liabilites - curment - ] k]
Lease liabiltes - non-curnent 3 4 4
- 2573 2673
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Performance Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Description of municipality

The City of Maroondah covers a land area of 61.4 square kilometres in Melbourne's
outer east, 22 kilometres from the Central Business District (CBD). The area is a
substantially developed peri-urban residential municipality, with an estimated population
of 118,558 residents' and 46,324 households with an average of 2.56 people per
household.?

The City of Maroondah includes the suburbs of Bayswater North, Croydon, Croydon
Hills, Croydon Narth, Croydon South, Heathmont, Kilsyth South, Ringwood, Ringwood
East, Ringwood North and Warranwood. The City also includes small sections of Kilsyth,
Park Orchards, Vermont and Wonga Park. With little remaining land available for
greenfield residential development, future population growth will be mainly stimulated
by housing consolidation and medium density development.

Maroondah has the strategic advantage of being located at the north-eastern junction
of the Eastern Freeway - EastLink corridor. There are two train lines and a large number
of bus routes linking the City with other regions. Some areas have limited access to
public transport and many residents are reliant on private vehicles. Our sustainable
transport links continue to expand, with on-road cycling paths and shared paths on major
trails, including the Mullum Mullum Creek Trail, the EastLink Trail, Taralla Creek Trail
and the Dandenong Creek Trail.

Disclosure of COVID-19 impacts on the current reporting period

On 11 March 2020, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) was declared a global pandemic
by the World Health Organisation. COVID-19 had a significant impact on the operations
of Council in the current reporting period ending 30 June 2020.

The effect on information contained within this performance statement because of the
pandemic has been considered in commentary on material variations, and is reflected
in results across several indicators contained within this report.

This Performance Statement reflects Council performance on indicators included in the Local
Government Performance Reporting Framework. Please note that the source for some of the data
included in this framework is derived from external sources such as the Local Government
Community Satisfaction Survey, the Australian Bureau of Statistics and the Department of Health
and Human Services.

! Estimated Residential Population, Australkan Bureau of Statistics, 2018
! Margondah Population Forecasts, Id Consulting, 2018,
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VAGO

IndEpend Ent AUditurls Rep'ﬂrt Viclorian Auditor-General's Office

To the Councillors of Marocondah City Council

Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Maroondah City
Council (the council) which comprises the:

. description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2020

* sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2020

* service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2020
. financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2020
. other infarmation and

. the certification of the performance statement.

In my apinion, the performance statement of Maroondah City Council in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2020 presents fairly, in all material respects,
in accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989,

Basis for Opinion | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Auwdit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the performance statement section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. | and my staff
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Prafessional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria and have also fulfifled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion,

Councillors' The Councillors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
responsibilities for the  performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting

performance requirements of the Locel Government Act 1989 and for such internal control
statement as the Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair

presentation of the statement of performance that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
responsibilities for the  ©N the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
audit of the are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
performance staterment as a whaole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
statement fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement,

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council's internal contral

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

LY
MELBOURNE Sahchu Chummar
26 August 2020 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Annual Report 2019/20

Other Information

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report.
The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity,
service performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a
description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results.
This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act
1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the
council’s strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in
the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each
indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the
materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in
its strategic resource plan on 27 July 2020 and which forms part of the council plan. The
strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long
term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose
Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014.

Antonio Rocca CA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: 17 August 2020

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of Maroondah City Council for the
year ended 30 June 2020 presents fairly the results of council's performance in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and
results in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any
particulars in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Flanning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

.

M Symaon

Mayor
Dated: 17 August 2020

{4C /‘{b‘““j
s

Dated: 77 August 2020

7

S Kozlowski
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 17 August 2020

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 227





Annual Report 2019/20

Our integrated service delivery

Council delivers a broad range of services that all play a role in delivering on the Maroondah 2040
Community Vision and the associated outcome areas. The table below indicates the range of primary
outcome areas for different services delivered by Council.

SHOQ0

Council service

= . 5
© o) T >
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> ) > (0]
c 2 v 1= o= c £ O£ ce
= E C (0] E = -y
s £ = c35 o} oc¢ © O
T c 00 @© = = O i > 0O
<0 fole) == o o® o9
go 85 | 58 52 | 6% 30
©.2 < £ = QL © © + ) 2
" Q5 >6 0 c c 8 2 3
<4® <o << <8 <c <a
Aged and Disability Services ° ] o [ )
Aquahub/Croydon Memorial Pool ()
Aquanation [ )
Arts and Cultural Development ° (] (]
Asset Planning and Management °
Building Services (]
Bushland and Waterways ® ®
Business and Activity Centre ° °
Development
Communications and Engage- ® ° ° ° ®
ment
Community Health and Emer- ° A ~ ®
gency Management
Construction Maintenance (Op- ° °
erations)
Council and Community Planning ) ® ) ®
Customer Service [ () ®
Engineering Services ) ) ®
Financial Services [ )
Governance Administration )
Human Resources Advisory o
Services
Information Technology )
Karralyka ]
Learning and Development () ® °
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Council service
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Libraries ) )
Local Laws ) °
Maroondah Golf and Sportsfields [ ) )
Maternal and Child Health (] ®
Maroondah Nets ° ®
Occupational Health and Safety () )
Organisation Development ®
Park Maintenance ) ) )
Payroll ®
Procurement )
Project and Facilities ) ) ) )
Property and Valuations ) )
Risk Management and Integrity () )
Sports and Recreation (] () () ®
Statutory Planning (] [ )
Strategic Planning and Sustainability ) °
The Rings [ )
Tree Maintenance ° ()
Volunteer Workforce Services ) )
Waste Management ® )
WorkCover and Injury Management [ )
Workforce Relations [
Youth and Children’s Services () ® [ ) ) )
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Glossary

Access Key: Customised accessibility guides that
provide convenient and accurate information about
venues or events including but not limited to venue
layout, parking, access in and around including
ease of movement, customer service/ticketing,
toilets including environmental specifications,
accessible offerings, procedural and sequential
information on accessing services and sensory
elements

Advisory Committee: Specialist appointees
who form a committee that provides advice and
recommendations to Maroondah City Council
on matters relating to the delivery of strategies,
services and activities.

Advocacy: To provide support to a cause or to
make public recommendation.

Aquahub: Formerly known as Croydon Leisure
and Aquatic Centre, Aguahub comprises a fully
equipped gym, group fitness studio, cycle room,
multipurpose room, multisport indoor stadium,
family leisure pool, 25m pool, warm water program
pool, spa and sauna.

Aquanation: A state of the art regional and leisure
centre in Ringwood that incorporates the State
Diving Centre, a 66.5 metre 10 lane swimming and
diving pool, warm water pool, a dedicated learn to
swim pool, a large gym with three separate group
fitness rooms, dry diving training room, child care
facilities and a cafe.

Auditor-General: An independent parliamentary
officer appointed by legislation to examine and
report to State Parliament and the community on
the management of public sector resources and
provide assurance on the financial integrity of
Victoria’s system of government.

Asset: An asset is a facility or part of a facility that
has value, enables a service to be provided and has
an economic life greater than 12 months.

Asset renewal and maintenance gap: The variance
between what Councils need to spend on their
existing infrastructure to maintain or renew it to
its original service potential or useful life, and
what Councils actually spend on renewal and
maintenance.

Benchmarking: Qualitative and quantitative
comparisons with similar services/service
organisations that provide a benchmark for
service standards and therefore, ensure Council is
providing services to the municipality at or above
the best possible service quality standards.

MAROONDAH CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Best Practice: To adopt or develop standards,
actions or processes for the provision of goods,
services or facilities which are equal to or better
than the best available on a state, national or
international scale.

Best Value: An approach to Local Government
service delivery which includes community input,
effective service delivery and cost efficiency as
key service outcomes. Victorian Government
legislation requires all Victorian councils to review
their services and adopt a model that consider six
principles.

Black Spot program: A road safety program to
identify and raise awareness of hazardous spots
on Victoria’s roads initiated by the State and
Australian Governments.

Biodiversity: Different plants, animals and
microorganisms make a variety of life incorporating
their genes and the ecosystems.

Capital Works: Projects undertaken to establish,
renew, expand, upgrade and dispose of assets
owned by Maroondah City Council in the
community.

Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act
2006: Legislation created to protect and promote
human rights. It sets out freedoms, rights and
responsibilities.

Community Grants: Council funding made
available to local not-for-profit community groups
and organisations to assist in the provision of
activities and services not available through state,
federal and private resources.

Community engagement: defined as the range

of opportunities for public involvement in

Council decision-making, relationship building

and community strengthening. Community
engagement is achieved when the community is
and feels part of a project, process or relationship.
Council adopted principles and practices regarding
community engagement are outlined in the
Community Engagement Policy (2015).

Community Satisfaction Survey: A Victorian
Government survey conducted annually to gauge
community satisfaction levels with Council services.

Continuous improvement: The process that
ensures ongoing review and improvement
practices are built into operational activities.

Corporate governance: Council’s responsibility
for the economic and ethical performance of the
municipality.





Council: The collective group of nine elected
councillors that set the strategic direction for
Maroondah City Council, monitor organisational
performance, liaise with stakeholders and ensure
operational compliance.

Council Plan: A four year plan which provides the
framework and outlines Council’s medium-term
strategies to work toward the outcome areas set
out in Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’.

Councillor: A member of the community elected
in accordance with the Local Government Act
71989 and the new Local Government Act 2020
to represent the residents of a ward within the
municipality, as a member of Council.

Croydon Memorial Pool: A seasonal outdoor
heated 50m pool, with toddlers’ pool, grandstand
and shaded lawn areas.

Croydon Town Square: Was opened in 2019 and
provides new vibrant open space in the heart

of Croydon, providing improved pedestrian
connections between the railway station with Main
Street.

Current Assets: Assets where Council expects to
receive the future economic benefit within the next
12 months unless the asset is restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Current Liabilities: Liabilities where Council
expects to fulfil its obligation within the next

12 months unless the Council does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after reporting date.

Development Contributions Plan: A plan
developed by Council that identifies financial
contributions required from developers towards
the provision of shared community infrastructure
to service new developments and communities.
Items or infrastructure funded by way of a
Development Contributions Plan may include (but
are not limited to) the construction or widening
of roads, provision of bus stops, public parks
and recreation facilities, provision of stormwater
drainage and community centres.

Dorset Golf: A secluded 18 hole public golf course
located in Trawalla Rd, Croydon offering a fully
stocked golf shop and golf lessons.

Environment Protection Authority: A statutory
authority established under the Environment
Protection Act 1970 to ensure the protection
and control of air, land and water pollution, and
industrial noise.

Equity: The residual interest in the assets of
Council after deductions of its liabilities, which is
made up of accumulated surplus and reserves.
Total equity is also equal to net assets.

Feasibility study: An analysis and evaluation of a
proposed project to determine if it is technically
feasible, is feasible within the estimated costs, and
will be profitable. Studies also often consider the

potential impact of the project and discuss options.

Governance: How Council operates as a
decision-making body, its relationship with the
administration and the ways that Council engages
with their community.

Home and Community Care: Council service which
assists elderly and disabled residents with essential
house cleaning and daily living tasks so that they
can remain living independently in their own
homes.

Indigenous: Originating in a particular geographic
region or environment and native to the area and/
or relating to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
people.

Infrastructure: Facilities required for the
functioning of the community, such as roads,
drains, footpaths, public buildings and waste
systems.

Karralyka: An architecturally award-winning
function venue and theatre located on Mines Road,
Ringwood East. The venue offers outstanding
facilities and services for live theatre, corporate
events, wedding receptions, private celebrations,
conventions and exhibitions.

Liabilities: Future sacrifices of economic benefits
that Council is presently obliged to make to other
entities as a result of past transactions or other
past events.

Local Laws: The laws adopted by Council that
prohibit, regulate and control activities, events,
practices and behaviours within Maroondah.

Local Government Act 2020: This newly legislated
Act seeks to improve local government democracy,
accountability and service delivery in Victoria. The

Local Government Act 2020 received Royal Assent
on 24 March 2020 and will be implemented in four
stages from April 2020 to July 2021.
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Glossary

Local Government Act 1989: This Victorian
Government legislation outlines the intention for
Councils to provide a democratic and efficient
system of local government in Victoria. It provides
Councils with the authority to meet the needs

of their communities and provides the basis for
an accountable system of local governance in
Victoria. Most of Council’s statutory requirements
under this Act remained in place for the full
2019/20 financial year.

Local Government Amendment (Performance
Reporting and Accountability) Regulations 2014:
Sets out a financial planning and reporting
framework for local government, that commenced
from the 2014/15 financial year.

Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework: A Victorian Government planning
and reporting framework that seeks to provide a
comprehensive picture of Council performance.
The framework comprises four indicator sets:
service performance, financial performance,
sustainable capacity and governance and
management.

Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014: Supports the operation

of the new Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework for Councils under the
Local Government Act 1989.

Local Planning Policy Framework: The Framework
provides the strategic basis for land use planning
as controlled by the Maroondah Planning Scheme.
The Framework consists of the Municipal Strategic
Statement together with local planning policies.

Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’: A shared
strategic vision for the future of Maroondah
developed by Council and the community. The
strategic framework within the community vision
provides the strategic basis for all of Council’s
service delivery and operations. The Vision was
first developed in 2013/14 and was reviewed during
2019/20 as part of a collaboration process with

the Maroondah community. The revised Vision was
adopted by Council on 22 June 2020.

Maroondah Federation Estate: A community,
cultural and arts facility located on the site of the
former Ringwood Primary School in Greenwood
Avenue, Ringwood. The facility incorporates the
Maroondah Art Gallery, a cultural centre, a lifestyle
centre, the ‘AMazing Space’ accessible playspace,
landscaped gardens, tree sculptures, Sensory Time
Trail, and a courtyard.
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Maroondah Nets: An indoor four court, multisports
complex that enables training and competition

for netball, volleyball, badminton and table tennis
with grandstand seating for approximately 300
people. There are also four outdoor netball courts
with spectator viewing areas. The stadium has a
cafe, male and female toilets, a Changing Places
toilet facility, change facilities, officials and first

aid rooms, sport association offices, a gym and a
multipurpose room.

Mission Statement: The overall corporate
philosophy that articulates how the Maroondah
2040 community vision will be achieved.

Municipal Emergency Coordination Centre
(MECC): The centre responsible for the
coordination of the provision of human and
material resources within the municipality, during
response and recovery phases of emergencies.

Municipal Strategic Statement (MSS): Outlines
the key land use and development objectives and
strategies for the municipality. The MSS provides
the basis for zones, overlays and particular
provisions. Council will review the MSS every
three years.

Municipality: A geographical area that is
delineated for the purpose of local government.

Net Assets: The difference between total assets
and total liabilities, which represents Council’s net
worth. Net assets are also equal to total equity.

Plan: A focused and structured detail of action to
be undertaken, involving a series of specific steps,
to implement the outcomes and key directions of
an overarching strategy.

Planning Scheme: The planning scheme sets out
policies and requirements for the use, development
and protection of land located within the City of
Maroondah.

Policy: A set of position statements intended
to influence and provide direction for Council
decisions, actions, programs and activities.

Productivity Commission: The Australian
Government’s independent research and

advisory body established to consider a range of
economic, social and environmental issues that
affect the welfare of Australians. Its role is to help
governments make better policies in the long term
interest of the Australian community.

Rate and Charges Income: Income received from
ratepayers in relation to general rates, garbage
rates and special rate schemes.





Realm: Council’s new library, learning and cultural
centre on Maroondah Highway in Ringwood that
is the centrepiece of the new Ringwood Town
Square. The facility integrates a library, a learning
centre, an art gallery and Council service centre.

Revenue: Revenue is the amount of money that
Council actually receives from its activities, mostly
from rates and services provided to customers and
ratepayers.

Ringwood Golf: An 18 hole public golf course
located at the corner of EastLink and Canterbury
Rd offering golf lessons, a fully stocked golf shop
and a café.

Ringwood Town Square: Ringwood Town Square
was opened in October 2015 and integrates with
the Ringwood Station and Realm, Council’s library,
learning and cultural centre.

Risk Management: A discipline for developing
appropriate procedures to minimise or eliminate
the risk of adverse effects resulting from future
events and activities. Principles for managing risk
are set out in the Australian Standards for risk
management AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009

Service Centre: Council’s customer service centres
handle requests, enquiries and payments from the
general community.

Service Delivery Plan: A detailed work plan to
guide how a Council service area will achieve the
relevant outcomes and key directions set out in
Maroondah 2040 ‘Our future together’ and the
Council Plan.

Statutory Authority: Organisations established
under an Act of the Victorian Parliament or
Australian Parliament for a public purpose.

Strategy: A long term systematic plan of action
to achieve defined outcomes in an area of Council
activity or responsibility. A series of key directions
is set out to meet these outcomes and specific
actions are outlined to deliver on these key
directions.

Structure Plans: A land-use document that
provides direction for planning and development
of a defined geographic area or precinct. Structure
plans are subject to community consultation

and may be incorporated into the Maroondah
Planning Scheme.

Sustainability: The principle of providing for
the needs of the present community without
compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs. The principle seeks to
achieve long-term health and well-being across
social, economic, environmental and cultural
domains.

The Rings: Formerly known as Maroondah Indoor
Sports Centre, The Rings is a four court indoor
stadium, catering primarily for basketball and
netball users.

Values: Represent underlying attitudes and
beliefs within Council that are demonstrated
through organisational practices, processes, and
behaviours.

Victorian Auditor General’s Office: A public sector
audit organisation providing auditing services

to the Victorian Parliament and Victorian public
sector agencies and authorities.

Vision: A statement of direction that defines the
shared aspirations of Council and the Maroondah
community. The Maroondah 2040 Community
Vision serves to guide all of Council’s service
delivery and operations.

Wards: A geographical area which provides a fair

and equitable division of a local government area.
The City of Maroondah is divided into three wards,
each with three elected Council representatives.

Wyreena Community Arts Centre: A classic
English Tudor-style building set on four acres

of lawns and gardens on Hull Road, Croydon.

The facility incorporates a recently redeveloped
Adventure Playground, the Wyreena Gallery, and
the Conservatory Café. A range of short courses,
ongoing courses, after school programs and school
holiday programs are offered in the creative arts.

X Space: A children’s playground and activity
space adjacent to the Y Space in Croydon Park.

Y Space: An outdoor activity space in Croydon
Park designed to enable a variety of activities
that meet the needs of young people and the
wider community.
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Commonly used acronyms

AAS: Australian Accounting Standards
ABS: Australian Bureau of Statistics

ALGA: Australian Local Government Association

AS/NZS I1SO 31000:2009: Australian Standards for

Risk Management

ATO: Australian Taxation Office

CBD: Central Business District

CCTV: Closed Circuit Television

CEO: Chief Executive Officer

CFA: Country Fire Brigade

CIV: Capital Improved Value

CMT: Corporate Management Team
COAG: Council of Australian Governments
CP: Council Plan

CPA: Certified Practising Accountants
DCP: Development Contributions Plan
DHHS: Department of Health and Human Services

DELWP: Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning

DVD: Digital Video Disk

EBA: Enterprise Bargaining Agreement
EDMS: Electronic Document Management System
EEO: Equal Employment Opportunity
EFT: Equivalent full-time

EOC: Equal Opportunity Commission
EPA: Environment Protection Authority
ERL: Eastern Regional Libraries

FDC: Family Day Care

FOI: Freedom of Information

FSC: Fire Services Levy

GIS: Geographic Information System
GST: Goods and Services Tax

HACC: Home and Community Care

IBAC: Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption
Commission

ICT: Information and Communications
Technologies

IFRS: International Finance Reporting Standards

IPAA: Institute of Public Administration Australia
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IT: Information Technology

KPI: Key Performance Indicator

KSA: Key Strategic Activity

LASPLAN: Local Authorities Superannuation Plan
LGPA: Local Government Professionals Australia
LGPro: Local Government Professionals

LGV: Local Government Victoria

LLEN: Local Learning and Employment Network
MAV: Municipal Association of Victoria

MAC: Major Activity Centre

MBS: Municipal Building Surveyor

MCC: Maroondah City Council

MCH: Maternal and Child Health

MECC: Municipal Emergency Coordination Centre
MEM: Municipal Emergency Manager

MERC: Municipal Emergency Response
Coordinator

MEREDG: Melbourne East Regional Economic
Development Group

MERO: Municipal Emergency Resource Officer
MFPO: Municipal Fire Prevention Officer

MFB: Melbourne Fire Brigade

MRM: Municipal Recovery Manager

MSS: Municipal Strategic Statement

NAC: Neighbourhood Activity Centre

NBN: National Broadband Network

NCP: National Competition Policy

OH&S: Occupational health and safety.

PC: Personal Computer

PCP: Primary Care Partnership

RMAC: Ringwood Metropolitan Activity Centre
SACS: Social and Community Services

SDP: Service Delivery Plan

SME: Small to Medium Enterprise

UDF: Urban Design Framework

VCAT: Victorian Civil Administrative Tribunal

VLGA: Victorian Local Governance Association










To contact Council

* phone 1300 88 22 33 or (03) 9298 4598

* SMS 0480 020 200

* visit our website at www.maroondah.vic.gov.au
¢ email maroondah@maroondah.vic.gov.au

Translating and Interpreter Service
1314 50

National Relay Service (NRS)
1336 77

El MaroondahCityCouncil

[@ maroondahcitycouncil

M Maroondah City Council
El @CityofMaroondah

B CityofMaroondah

y
/waroondah m - -

City Council MAROONDAH

mcc158-Aug20





